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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
FTiday, 6 NovcmbeT, 18Sii. 

Question of Procedure.-Seh:uro of the "Forest King." 
-Adjournment. 

The SPEAKER took the chair <1t h:1lf-past 
3 o'clock. 

QUESTIOK OF PROCEDURE. 
The SPEAKER said : It will be in the recol­

lection of hon. members that in the early part of 
the session a question of procednre arose with 
regard to what was called the enacting clause of 
a Bill. I have already read to the House two 
letters I received from the Speaker of the K ew 
South \Vales Legislative Assembly, and from the 
Speaker of the Victorbn Legislative Assembly, 
in reference to the worde "Be it enacted" at 
the commencement of Bills. 1 informed the 
House that I had written also to Sir Erskine 
iVIay, with a view of obtaining his decision upon 
the subject ; and in order that he might have 
the full particulars Lefore him, I thought it 
necessary te enclose a copy of Hansard containing 
a full report of the debate upon the point, and 
also a copy of "Votes and Proceedings." By the 
mail yesterday I received Sir Erskine May's 
reply, which I will now read to the House :--

,.House of Commons, 
H2tth September, 1885, 

"DlU_RS!R, 
"It is amusing to find that a matter whieh has 

neYer excited the least attention in our Parliament 
should have been the occasion of grave discussion and 
controversy in Queensland. 

"I may tell you in a few words how the case stands 
in both Houses of I)arliament at 1Yestminster. 1\'"hen 
there is no preamble to a Bill the clauses are proceeded 
with at once seriathn. As for the formula "Be H 
enacted, etc.," which is an essential part of every Bill, 
but 'vithout any enacting force of itself, it is treated 
simply as a formula and no question is put upon 
H. It was a"'smned in the debates of your Assembly 
that these words must be added by the officers of 
the House; but this is a misapprehension of the 
case. A Hill is ordered to be brought in by certain 
members and it is presented accordingly with those 
words, of necessity, inserted and printed as part 
of the Bill. 1Vhen the Committee has agreed to all 
the clauses, with or without amendments, as the 
case may be, the Chairman is directed to report the 
Bill, an cl he reports the whole Bill accordingly, includinf!; 
the formula, '''hich has throughout formed part ot 
the Bill, and that Bill is afterwards eonsidered by the 
House, read a third time, and passed. 'l'he authority is 
complete and patent from the very beginning. 

"You observe that my work is silent upon the sub­
ject-the simple reason being that there was nothing 
whatever to say abont it. 

""-~ith kind regards and all good wishes, 
"I a1n, 

"Yours very truly, 
"T. ERSKTNE 31AY. 

"The Hon. 
"'l'he Speaker, etc., etc., 

"Brisbane." 

In accordance with the opinion of such a high 
authority on parliamentary procedure, it will be 
my duty-if I have to give a ruling on the point 
again-to rule in accordance with the Imperial 
practice. 

SEIZURE OF THE "FORRST KING." 
:Mr. MIDGLEY, inmoving-
1. 'rllat the report of the select committee on the 

seizure of the schooner "Forest King," laid upon the 
tnble of the House on the 27th instant, be now 
adopted. 

2. That the House will, a.t its next sitting, resolve 
itself into a Committee of the 1i\-Tho1e to consider of an 
address to the Governor, praying that His Bxeellency 
will be pleased to ea use proyision to be made upon the 
Supplementary }~stimates for giving effect to the recom­
mendation of such report. 

-said: Mr. Speaker,-I quite believe that this 
motion will be approached with different feelings 
on the part of hon. members. I suppose some will 
feel with regard to it the strongest anta~onism, and 
some will feel the strongest disposition to favour it. 
Others will desire the matter to be decided purely 
upon its merits ; while again others will deal 
with it as a party question, and the result as a 
party result. I disclaim, Mr. Speaker, any wish 
to do or say anything merely for the purpose of 
embarrassing the Government; but prefer that 
the matter should be fairly and dispassionately 
considered, an cl that party feeling, instead of 
running rleeper as the evening goes on, Inay be 
somewhat allayed and diminished. Personally, 
as the hon. member for B:1lonne said last even­
ing, I shall be very glad to have the thing 
finished and decided. Members of the 
Committee are aware that the report of the 
select committee into the alleged wrongful 
seizure of the '']\west King" contains a 
series of papers in reference to the affair. 
\V e have first of all an account of the 
proceedings in the Vice-Admiralty Court and 
the summing up and decision of the judge. 
Then we have the report of the Royal Commis­
sion appointed by the Government to inquire 
into the manner in which these islanders, brought 
by different vessels from different islands, were 
obtained. Then we have the report of the 
select committee appointed by this House, in 
September last, to im1uire into this matter and 
report to the House. The constitution of that 
committee was such as ought to ensure for it the 
conclusion on the part of the House, that it 
would act fairly in the matter. There were 
members on it from both sides of the House­
members in favour of kanaka labour and members 
strongly opposed to it. The majority of the mem­
bers of the <;ommittee were upon this side of the 
House. The committee as finally constituted 
consisted of Mr. Aland, Mr. Foote, Mr. Wake­
field, and myself from this side of the House, 
and J'vfr. Ferguson, Th'Ir. Stevens, and Mr. 
Donaldson from the other side. vV e had some 
ten meetings aL which a good deal of evidence 
was taken-much of it evidence that had really 
been taken Lefore elsewhere ; and after careful 
consideration we came to the conclusion em bodied 
in our report to the House. I shall be troubled 
with one thought this afternoon, and that is 
the fear of detaining the House too long. I be­
lieve in brevity, and yet it is almost impossible 
to treat this subject with anything like brevity; 
nor do I think that everything should be sacri­
ficed, in a matter of this kind, to the one ccm­
sideration of brevity. I will be as brief as I 
possibly can in stat'ing the case as reported by 
the committee. In order to do this it will be 
necessary for me to give, first of all, a hurried 
history of the voyage of this vessel, the " Forest 
King." She left the port of Brisbane on the 
17th" of May, 1884, after having been duly 
equipped and prepared for her voyage in the 
particular business in which she was engaged. 
She had on board a Government agent selected 
and approved by the Queemland G01•ernment. 
She was, I think, the first vessel that sailed 
under the Polynesian Act of 1884, which 
Act contained new and more rigid provisions 
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with regard to the manner in which this trade 
should be conducted. The owner of the ship, 
So.muel Hodgson, hrtcl been engaged in this tmde 
about two years. This wo.s the third trip of 
the ".Forest l{ing." She was captained on 
this voyage by Cnpbcin Dickson, a man who had 
been engaged about ten years in the Po.cific 
Island labour trade. He had been a considerable 
number of voyages before this; he had been 
t\vel ve voyages in one vns~el, the '' l\Iay Queen," 
and had been with four or five Government 
agents. During all th~ct time there had been nothing 
reported to his disadvantage. I do not know whnt 
value hon. members may attach to this, lmt some 
degree of value is attached to evidence of this 
kind in a court of justice. If there is no record 
against a. n1a.n in his previous career that is 
frequently considered :son1ething in hi~ favour 
when he is charged with wrong-(loing ; if there 
is anything of official record to hi.-; disndvantage 
that i., justly considered in the trial of the man. 
During all these voyages made by Captain Dick­
son he seems to have conrlncted himself as a 
captain of a bbour ship should. }et any rate 
there is no evidence-no record-of anything to 
the contrary. The Government agent on this 
occasion was a man narned .Tohn rrhmnp::~on, a 
Hlan who, judging by his n1annel' and de1neanour 
before the select committee, was as good a man 
as could pos,;ibly be funnel to occupy that 
peculiar, difficult, and not altogether s~cfe position. 
He wa~ a man who gave his evidenC"t-: in a 
prompt, manly, straightforward wny. His ap­
pearance and hiH nu1nner were in his favour, and 
the way in which he gave his evidence did not 
belie the favourable impression which the man 
gav•e to the committee. H1s records, the ac­
counts of the voyage, had all been kept to his 
credit. In sailing on that voyage the '' l1'orest 
King" was subject to certain Acts which applied 
particularly to the labour trade. There was the 
Kidnapping Act of 1872, with the provisions of 
which no doubt hon. members are acquainted. 
Clause 3 of that Act necessitates the giving of a 
bond by the master before a ship c'w go 
recruiting islanders. Olau.,e 8 recognises exist­
ing Acts for the prosecution of this labour trade, 
and the right of the Queensland Government to 
pass Acts dealing with the trade. The first pnrt 
of clause 9 is to this effect :--

"If. a Br1tish 8Ubject c,~mmits any of the follo"'>ving 
offences, that is to say :-

"I. Decoys a. native of any of tl1e aforesaid islawls for 
the ]_.Hll'lw,;e of importing or removing such native into 
any island or pla.c~e other tlmn that in 'vhieh he was at 
the time of the commission of snch offence, or carries 
away. confines. or detains any sneh native for the purpose 
aforesaid, without his consent. proof of which consent 
sh:J.ll lie on the party accused." 

Then follow a number of other provisions, and 
the clause goes on to say :~ 

"He shall for each offence be guilty of felony, and 
shall be liable to be tried al1(l punished for sneh felony 
in nny Supreme Court of Justice in anv of the Australa­
sian colonies, and shall, upon convictiOn, be liable at the 
discretion of the conrt to the highe:·,.t, pnnisluuent other 
than capital vunisllrnent, or to any less pnui.-;hment 
awnrdefl for any felon~' by the law of the colony in 
which such offender shall be tried." 

Other clauses in this Act provide that a ship 
engaged in this trade can be seized, and in another 
part of the Act provision is made for the pay­
lnent of costs and darnages, at the diRcretion of 
the British authorities, when the result of the 
trial is in favour of the defendant. Then, in 
addition to this, there is our own Polyne.sian Act 
of 18.~0, \Vhicb recognises the trade, encourages, 
and sanctions it. Clause G is to this effect :~ 

"The Governor in Council mar ft•om time to time 
apyoint nt and proper person. to 1je GoYernment agents 
to aecompan~v ves~els licensed to carry Pacifie Islanders 
under tile provisions of this Act." 

Clause 12, subsection 3, is as follows :-
,, 'l'he master shall not obstruct orattemvt to obstrnct 

the Government agent in the discharge of llis duty, anU 
shall uot. bring on boa.rd, or allow to be brought on 
boanl, or remove. or allowed tu be removed from the 
ship. any pH.ssengcr, without the consent o1 the Govern­
ment agent.'' 
In addition to this there is the Act J'assecl in 
1884, to which I have already alluded, contain­
ing 1nore detailed and Htringent provisions with 
rctS'ard to the recruiting of Polynesians. Clause 
G provides that-

" ~o 1)orson shall l:le employed as the mnster. or as a 
uutte, or :t shill intcnde<l to cany native pm;;sengcrs 
fr1)lll the P:H·ifie Ishnd:.;; to Queenslancl. or as the agt-mt 
of an iutcndin.g CllllJlO.\ er on board of any such ship, 
unle.;;s he has beC'u approved by the .Jiinister as a fit 
person to be ::;o employed ... 

Clan;;e 7 provides that~ 
"Xo person shall pay or give, or a~reP to pay or give, 

to the 1uast1•r of an.' sl!ip employed in carrying JJ<IS­
sengc·r:.;; from the Pad tit: J sland~ to Qucenslan(l, or any 
other pt'r:,.:ons Clll}lloyed tltemon. any snm of monry or 
other alna.blc eon~dtit>ratiou, the amonnt. wllcreof is 
dependent eithel' iu \Vhole or in part upon the number 
of pass~~IL:crs <>HV{·'Yed t) Qneensland. But the re­
muneration of tlte ma~tcr of ever; ~nch ship, and of 
eYery other ver~on employed thereon. shall be nta paid 
r:tte, either for the voyage, or dep(;nllcnt wholly upon 
the time O<'cnpied in the voyage." 

Clause 8 provides that there shall he kept a 
detailml statement of the expenditure on ohips 
engaged in recruiting-. _A_1:J hon. gentlemen are 
aware, the obiect of the Act of l::lS4 was to 
prevent certain abn1:les which were k1wwn to 
exist in this trarle, and clause 7 was one which 
was deemed to be urgently needed. It provided 
that there should be no allowance in the shape 
of payment by reimlh<, but that the senices of 
those engaged on a vessel should be a. fixed surn ; 
and tlmt there should be no inducement, no bribe, 
no allurement in the shape of anything specially 
J!itid in proportion to the number of the recruits 
obtained. This Act was assented to on the 
lOth March, l.SS4 ; so that, as I said before, 
the "Forest King" appears to have been the 
first ship that sailed from Brisbane to the Pacific 
Islands under this new Act. The objects of the 
committee were to ascertain if these laws had 
been violated~if they had been knowingly, 
wilfully, violated~violated in such a way that 
guilt and blame and punishment should justly 
be brought to bear upon those owning the ship 
or those in charge of her; and I am convinced 
that the committee, if the evidence had been of 
such a character as to ,;how that there had been 
a violation of the law~th:tt there had been an 
evasion of the regulations-with regard tn this 
tmde, on the part of those in ch,uge of her, 
would ha Ye come to this conclusion : let those 
who have been guilty suffer the consequence.s. 
But if there has been no such violation of the law 
-if the voyage and the recniting were properly 
and fairly done~then the seizure of this vessel 
has inflicted a wrong on the owner, and let mch 
restitution be made o.s is just awl bir. The 
"Forest King" left Brisbane on the 17th May, 
anrl arrived at an island called Hosel Island on 
the 27th :\Jay. Tbere was an attempt-a partial 
attempt-made when they arrived there to engage 
in recruiting. The natives of the island appear to 
ha Ye been perfectly willing to recruit~at any rate 
to go on boa,rd and go away; but as yet the ship 
watJ not in p()S8ession of an interpreter, and while 
the captain appeared to be anxious and eager to 
push trade an•l get on with .his business the 
Ci-overnrnent agent at once InterpoRcd. He 
appears to have been nwre rigid and deterrnined 
in the discharge of his duty, almost, than the law 
wantecl or required. The captain's pretext was 
to obtain i.~landers and trust to good fortune to 
get interpreters afterward>'. The Gm·ernment 
agent wrote hiln a letter, (lrawing hiR attention to 
the regulations under which they were working, 
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and told him he would be no party to the recruiting 
of islanders without interpreter,. In doing this 
he drew his attention to the regulations which 
had been issued by the Queensland Government, 
and which were in conformitv with the Act under 
which he was working,anddrew his attention to the 
particular clauses ; and as a consequence, because 
of the rigid firrnne"s and determination of the 
Governn1ent agent, some rlegrf!e of friction arose 
there and then between the Government agent 
and the captain. It was apparently nothing 
serious ; still there was a degree of friction. 
From Rose] Island the "Forest King " voyaged 
to Sud-Est, but heing unable to obtain inter­
preters they journeyed from 1:-\ud-Est to a place 
called Brierly Island. Thus far no interpreters 
had been obtained, but at Brierly Island they 
obtained an interpreter called Cassoway, who, 
it is admitted, and not denied, could speak in 
son1e n1easure the English language, and could 
undoubtedly speak the 1:-\ud-Est language, being 
a native of either Sud-Est or aN adjacent island. 
Having obtained Cassoway as an interpreter the 
"lforest King" went back to Sud-Est; and I 
do not think I can do better now than quote 
frmn the Governn1ent agent's log. 

The PREMIER: That is not a document we 
have before us. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: This document, from which 
I am about to read, is a document that was 
taken in evidence in the trial before the Vice­
Admiralty Court ; and a document that was 
deemed good enough there ought to be good 
enough for this Assembly. 

The PREMIER : Is it printed so that we can 
see it? 

JIIIr. MIDGLEY: I do not think so. How­
ever, it is here in the neat, concise, creditable 
way in which the Government agent did all his 
work. 

'' Sunday, June 1st, 6 a.m.-3foderate south-east 
breeze, and fine weather, Cassoway, a Brierly Island 
native (speaks pretty good Bnglishl, came on board, 
and offered to come with us as interpreter. ~\ written 
agreement Wati drawn out between Ca;ptain Diekson 
and Cassoway on the following terms,namely:-·Cassoway 
agrees to come on the voyage (interpreter only), for the 
sum of ten shillings per month, one suit of cloth~·~. two 
tomahawks, one knif0" pipe and tobacco. Captain 
Dick~on agrees 'vhen the voyage is ended to return 
Cassoway to his native island, or to hi~ former master, 
Kicholas ::.\Iinister, at present engaged tlshing in the 
vicinity of Brierly Island. Said agreement was made 
in the presence of ~icholas Jlinister and myself. 

That is the account of the engagement of Casso­
way. Then comes the following :-

" 1-Ionday, June 2nrl, 6 a.m.- Light S.E. breeze and 
fine weather. Eight o'clock went ashore with boats; 
retL1rned at 2 p.rn. with two recruits. In compliance 
with regulations and my instructions I carefully ex­
plained the terms (through Cassoway the interpreter). 
I am satisfied they understand the nature of the engage­
ment the~v have entered upon. VVeighed anchor, and 
proceeded eastward on south side of Sl:td-Est Island." 
On ,June 3 he narrates the obtaining of the 
recruits. I had intended to read those extracts 
more fully, but on second consideration I will 
refrain from doing so. They had Cassoway on 
board seven or eight days ; but on the lOth June 
he abandoned them-ran away. The log says:-

"June 10, 6 a.m.~Light easterly winds and fine 
weather; 6·30, went ashore with boats. Besides the 
interpreter we took with ns a boy we recruited yester­
day. Captain Dickson asked my permission. I gave 
my consent on C'lllditions-it would be at his o'vn risk 
if the boy should go away ; I would not be held respon­
sible. "-'hen we reached the shore we pulled into an inlet 
where we obtained two boys "'hen we got out again 
it appears, from what the recruiting agent told me, that 
the interpreter requested him to pull iuto some other 
place where he said he could get five boys. 1-Vhen we 
got there the interpreter took the recruit with him, as 
he was well known amongst the natives there, and went 
ashore. 1Ve waited from two to three honrs, but they 
did not return. Vfc came to the conclusio11 they had 

deserted. At 2·30 p.m, went on board; took the two boys 
·with us. After lunch boats went ashore again; returned 
at 5 o'clock; no signs of them. I advised Captain Dick­
san to Teturn to Brierly Island. only about thirty-three 
mile~ from this pbtC'e, where we might obtain another 
interpTeter. He said he would. I also told him~I could 
not sign the two boys till such time as we do obtain 
another interpreter." 

The ship was then without an interpreter from 
the lOth of the month to the 14th, when they 
cmne across a man called Moses, a tnan who had 
been in the service of "' Greek on the island, this 
same Nicholas Minister. He could speak pretty 
fair English, and at first agreed to go on board as 
interpreter, but afterwards changed his mind 
and went back to his master. He was only on 
board about a day, but the Government agent, 
wbile he had Moses on board, made uwe of him 
to put these recruits already obtained through 
another examination. He had obtained them 
through the int·"rpretation of Cassoway, and was 
satisfied that they nnder"tood the nattire of their 
agreements ; but to satisfy himself further he 
aiTain examined them through the interpretation 
of Moses. He was thus confirmed in his con­
viction that the recruits already obtained fully 
understood what they were to do, where they 
were going, and how long they were going 
for. Having lost Cassoway and :Moses, the 
ship was again without an interpreter, and 
they went to Teste Island, recruiting mean­
while being stayed. At Teste Island they 
obtained, through the information of the 
wife of the missionary J erry, the services of 
three interpreters-Harry, Archie, and. Charlie. 
Charlie appears to have been the best mformed 
and most experienced; he had knocked about 
the world a little, or, at least, on the Australian 
coast. With the services of these three inter­
preters they went on r~cruiting at various 
islands until the 8th of July, when they had 
obtained thirty recruits. I would just like to 
ask the House; lYir. Speaker, to pause and con­
sider fairly: Is there any evidence thus far that 
there had been any wrong-doing-any evasion of 
the law, or attempt to evade tbe law, on the 
part of those in charge of the " Forest King"? 
Is there not fair evidence- the evidence of 
records kept at the time-records kept by a 
man in the employment of the Government, 
a man who, so far as any open legal act 
can go, could not be under any obligation to the 
captain or anyone else on board the ship-a man 
whose salary was fixed by the Queensland Gov­
ernment, who W<LS their servant and was respon­
sible to them alone? I think the House will at 
any rate admit that so far there is no evidence 
that there was any wrong-doing with regard to 
the recruiting. The question now comes in, 
whether, in the recruiting of these natives, there 
was any deceit on the part of anyone-did the 
islanders who had been obtained understand 
what they had been engaged to do? Hon. mem­
bers are aware that on the 9th of July the vessel 
was boarded by officers from the "Swinger," a 
vessel of the British Navy. ~U first, after making 
an examination of the ship's papers and the 
recruits, they came to the conclusion that every­
thing had been fairly and properly done, and 
Lieutenant Torlesse made an entry to that effect 
in this book from which I have been reading:-

"Wednesday, July 9, least Cape. 
"I have this day boarded the schooner' Forest King,' 

and have examinCd lwr, and found all papers in accord­
ance with instructions in l'acific Islanders Act.. 

,, HENRY H. rronLESSB, Lieut., R.:\." 

That is what Lieutenant Torlesse says on his 
first examination of the ship. I may say, Mr. 
Speaker, that there is subsequently an erasure in 
this entry, the only erasure-the only serious 
alteration, at any rate-to be found in this book, 
and it is a serious alteration. I remember 
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asking Mr. Thompson, in his evidence, if he had 
ever been guilty of making any alteration or 
erasure in this log. He is not an Englishman, 
and perhaps did not understand what' the word 
"erasure" 1neant, and he tlaicl "No." Now 
that is the only flaw I can find in the evidenc~ 
lYir. Thompson gave, and that flaw in the man's 
evidence is an additional testimony to his veracity. 
There are erasures in the entries in this book, 
hut they are only erasures which are evidence of 
the man's care and conscientiousne;:;s. It is easy 
to .see what they were. He is a man who, not 
bemg an Englishman and not perhaps thoroughly 
well educated--

The HoN. Sm T. MolL WRAITH : What is 
~? . 

Mr. MIDGLEY: I do not know. 
The PREMIER : A Dane. 
Mr. MIDGLEY: They are alterations in 

which there has just simply been a misspelling 
of a word-the alteration, perhaps, of a letter. 
The only serious alteration to be found in this 
book is to be found in this erasure, when, subse­
quently, Lieutenant Torlesse, on board the ship, 
drew his pen throug·h the word "everything," 
and substituted the words " all papers." Then 
the entry reads thus :-

"I have this day boarded tlu~schooner 'Porest King,' 
and have examined her, and found all papers"- -

He said "everything" before-
" in accordance with instructions in Pacific Islanders 
Act." 
There was an examination on board the ship of 
the islanders already obtained-in fact, all the 
islanders that were obtained on the voyage-and 
the contention of :Mr. Milman and of others who 
have given their evidence is that some of the 
islanders, at any rate, did not thoroughly under­
stand the nature of the agreements into which 
they had entered-that they did not understand 
the length of those agreements or the nature of 
them. This is answered by the rejoinder of those 
who had to do with the ship and the recruiting­
the objection founded on the statement that the 
interpreters could not interpret for some of the 
islanders on board is answered by the reply 
that the interpreters on board were not allowed 
to interpret-that they were put into the back­
ground, and kept in abeyance- they were 
not allowed to show what their powers were. 
And then there was the seizure. Mr. Milmau 
contends that these men did not understand the 
nature of their agreements. I have got the 
number of the pages in which the replies on that 
point are to be found, but I will quote from 
memory from the proceedings in the Vice­
Admiralty Court. Mr. Milman contends that 
the islanders did not nnder,tand their agree­
ments and that the interpreters could not inter­
Jll'et-at any rate, for some of the recruits. JY1r. 
Thompson says the same thing. I,ientenant 
Bruce states to the same effect ; but Charlie, in 
Mr. Bruce's evidence, never appears on the scene 
at all. Captain Dickson, in his evidence, states 
that the ship's interpreters were not allowed 
to interpret. The boatswain, who was the re­
cruiter, gives sworn testimony to the same effect. 
l'llr. Thomvson, the Government agent, declares 
also to the same effect. The very important 
queotion which this Committee lms to consider is, 
could Char lie speak the Sud-Est language ? It 
is stated that he could not. Have we any evi­
dence that he could ? JI/Ir. Milman says he could 
not, in his report. His words in his report of 
26th July, 1884, to the Colonial Secretary are-

" The natives from Sud-Est I was unable to commn­
nicilte with at all, there being no interpreter for them on 
board, though I am informed that H pairl_ jnterpreter 
ha<l been on hoard 'vllen they were recruited, but hacl 
tiincc gone a way." 

J erry, the interpreter, employed to conduct 
the examinations by Mr. Milman and Mr. 
l\1acfarlaue, was a missionary teacher at Teste 
Island. J erry declares that Char lie could not 
speak Teste. Lieutenant TorlBsse says the 
same thing. Bnt there is this significant fact : 
that when Charlie had an opportunity of being 
put to the test he could speak the Teste 
language in a way that astonished J erry. If 
hon. members will read the evidence taken at 
the Vice-Admiralty Court they will see that 
J erTy seemed to have been astonished at the 
manner in which Charlie could speak the 'l'este 
language; and he says that Char lie m1mt have 
picked up the language subsequently to the 
seizure of the ":Forest King." I can only ask 
the House this-is it not equally credible that 
Uharlie could have picked up some of the 
Sud-:B~st language prior to the seizure of the 
vessel? T 1 '" is evidence enough, to my mind, 
that Charlie could speak the Sud-Est language, 
and the scene in the Vice-Admiralty Court, 
when J erry was being cross-examined by the 
counsel for the defendant, was the most grotesque 
and a1nusing that conld be in1agined in a court 
of justice. Char lie discomfited J erry as to his 
capacity and knowledge with regard to the 
Sud-Est language. The Chief Justice-and I 
suppose hon. members will give credence to his 
judgment-in comparing Charlie and Jerry, 
say8:-

''All the otller persons prqsent, including )Ir. J\Iilman, 
~:I:r. :;Hacfarlane, Lieutenant 'l'orleose, and Bruce, on 
the one side, an<l Captain Dickson, the recruiter of the 
':Forest King,' and the Government agent on the other, 
were ignorant of the tongues Slloken by the natives on 
board. Cha.rlie ma.\·, perhaps, be excepted. The case 
for the Crown would rest almost entil'el\· on the credit 
to be given to Jerry's testimony-if the burden 
of proving the consent of the natives were not imposed 
by statute upon the defendant. JetTy's testimony is 
pure hearsay-simply what the natives told him 
-and even that statement made under circum­
stances which would eompel me to receive it 
'vith hesitation aud doubt. He a.dmit.s that on 
asking the natives for what tinw they would go to 
Q.neensland he told them they would die in two 
months. I am inclined to believe that he told them 
that, in the 1irst instance, with reference to the nnmber 
of years, anrl not to the nmnher of months; becanse, 
if he referred to their dying in t\VO mOllthti, how 
"·as it that so many were willing to come Jor that time F 
If the natives were intimidated they miglrt recede from 
their contract, and we must hesita,te to rest our belief 
on Jerry. I attach no importance to the attempt of 
the natives to escape in the night, after the statement 
of JetTy. If a fmv of them jnm}Jed overboard, many 
others would follow like a Hoek of sheep. Rut the 
burden of proof of consent is on the defendants; it is not 
thrown on the Crown to prove non-consent. '!'here were 
three intcr11reters on board em]Jloyed by the 'l~m·est 
King' -Char lie, Harry, and Arc hie. I believe that 
Charlic and Harry ar~ able to communicate with the 
islanders now. .Terry sa.ys they have learnt the lan­
guages, Qnanatai and 'l'~rwarra, since the seizure of the 
ship. '!'he boys, Charlie and II~trry, had been in 
the h:eepmg of the Crown until within a week oE 
the trial. Proof ought, therefore, to be forthcoming of 
any attempt to learn these languagPs. There is none. 
'l'lwre is e-ridenco, however, (.Terry ·s an cl Char lie's), 
that Clmrlie had been on board a man-of-war as guide 
and interpreter for five months, and Jerry's wife told 
the Government agent that Charlic knew all the 
languages of all the islands in that neighbourhood. I 
think the weight of evidence is rather in favour of 
Charlie and Harry having made the i~htnders under­
stand the nature of their engagements in the t-ir::-;t 
instance, in which case the defendants must have the 
benetit of it as a 1n·oof oE consent. 'rhat some of the 
islanders did not reply to Charlie ln i\lr. )iilman's pre­
sence. after Jerry had endeavoured to speak to them, 
may have arisen from the unnstml circumstance of the 
arrival of the man~of-war. the frefgtent questioning, 
Jerry's description of the risks of coming to Queens­
land, and other inciclents of the hour. which 'vould 
make men, who are but 'children of a larger growth,' 
aet like children and remain silent. Charlie gave l\-Ir. 
:J-filman to understand (whether in 'vords, orb~·' hangi.ng 
down his head,' does not appear1-bnt somehow ~Ir. 
Mihnan understood-that Oharlic meant he could not 
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communicate with the before-mentioned live natives, 
whieh is of course true, if they had become unwilling to 
t·eply to him. I think that it is to be regretted"--

This is a point, Mr. Speaker, on which the Chief 
Justice appears to have been satisfied after 
taking the evidence brought before him-that 
is, that the ship's interpreters were not put to 
the test. At all events, that can be the only 
justification for the inferance he dr·aw.~. He 
continues :-

"I think it is to be rep.;rettcd that the ship's inter­
}Jreters 'vere not tested before ,Jerry had been allowed 
to speak to the islanders." 

.!\ ow I rest a considerable amount of weight on 
such 'a summing up as that on the part of the 
Chief ;r ustice. I will not entertain the opinion 
for a moment which was entertained by a good 
many peovle Just after the trial, that the Chief 
Justice was influenced by political bias or 
partiality. I am perfectly certain such ~hings 
were said of him to me, but I think the aetwn of 
the Chief Justice in subsequent cases ha' mnply 
pr<wed that when guilt ca.n be sheetec( home ~o 
those engaged in this traffic, he is not m:ly dJS· 
posed to deal with them severely, but wtth the 
utmost severity-a severity which almost ma.de 
this community revolt, owing to the extent to 
which it went. But there is other evidence­
and I Wltnt to be clear on this point-that 
Charlie could speak the :::lud-Est language. 
I ask the House to turn its attention 
now to the l'eport of the Royal Commission. 
The very first witness examined before the Hoyal 
Commission with reference to the" :Forest King" 
case was a boy named Loo-Lucy, a native of Sud­
Est Island. The first questions put to him were 
as follows :-

" ''rhat is the name of your place;.- Sawnt. 
"In what ship did yon con1e ? Secuna. 
'' \Vhy did you come~ l~o~n came asllOrt' to bi\U~~h. 

White man asked me to come on shi11 and go to 'vh1t" 
man's plac0. '1\;stc Island boy (ChH.rlie) askecl me to 
work along white man, four moon finish, then come 
back." 

I shall have to refer to that man's evidence 
arrain to show its utter unworthiness of evidence. 
IfCha.rlie could not speak the Sud-Estl:mgna.ge­
was utterly ignorant of it-how could he act as 
interpreter for the Sud-J£st natives, how could 
he possibly hold enmmunication with the witness 
Loo-Lucv'? The Royal Commis,ion in its report 
said that Charlie could not speak the Sud-l<;st 
htttguage, and there was the state1_nent of the 
witness Loo-Lncy that he could. If he was com­
petent to speak· to Loo-Lucy and inteqn·et for 
him surely he was COllljJetent to speak to and 
inLe~pret for the other recruits that came from 
that island. But it will be shown afterwards 
that this mau'H evidence was not worthy of 
credence. Another question a~ked of Loo-Lucy 
was~ 

'· Did Cllarlle give anything to you~" 

And the answer was-
,, Tomahawk, knife, 1li11c and tobacco." 

The Royal Commission, in th&ir report on the 
evidence, state that Charlie spoke the Teste 
lan"uage, and that there were only one or two 
of the recruits who could speak the Teste !an· 
gua.ge. The objection might be raised that 
Charlie spoke to those men in the Te.,te language; 
but those were not the men tclluded to in the 
Royal Cmnn1ission'::; report; Loo~Lucy was not 
referred to in that report as being one of the 
men who could speak the Teste language. I 
will now turn to the evidence of Gegilly, also a 
Sud-Est Island native. Beginning at question 
3,230, this witness wa.s asked:-

"On schooner did you mark paper~ Yes; at my 
island. 

"Did you touch pen~ Yes. 
Did Wari boy (Charlie) talk to you; Yes. 

"·what did he sa.y :- 'You and I go to white ma.n's 
conntry; I go too.' 

" Did he tell yon how long:- He no tell me three 
borima; he told me two moons, then I come back. 

"At another islnnc1, did Jerry come on board: Yes; I 
see him missionary. 

" How did he come~ In stea.mcr. 
''Dirt hetalktoyou~ Yes. I.Vewereall turned up on deck. 
"\fhat did he usay? He asked me, 'Hmv long white 

man tell you you work in Queensland' r I tell hiln 
''1',,-o moons, and come back.' 

"""hat did he say then r 'All right.' All boys belong 
to me did not knm\r '£este. 're two, Tosi and I, under­
stood him. 

''How many boys ftom your island knew Teste~ One 
other !'l'osi), and myself." 

It must be remembered that at this time Char lie 
was in communication with a Snd-:Est Islander 
who could spectk Teste, and Cha_rlie may possibly 
have been speaking Teste to hnn. If the evt­
dence of Gegilly is of any value as taken before 
the !loyal Commission, it is of some val;1e to 
this House surely, to know that we have tt on 
record that only he and Tosi could speak the 
Teste language. Supposing tha.t Charlie could 
not speak the Sud-Est language, there was 
no evidence whatever that Cassowa.y could not, 
or that lVIoses could not, or that the others 
could not. \Vhat urgent necessity was ther~ to 
seize the vessel when one of the regulatwns 
made under the Act provided that the vessel 
should have a competent interpreter either on 
board or at the vort of debarcation? Even sup­
posing she had not a competent interpreter on 
board-supposing that Cassoway and the others 
had died, a.nd that at the time when the officers 
of the ''Swinger" went on boarcl there was nocon~­
petent interpreter on board-th><t wa.s not a. suffi­
cient justification for seizing the vessel w}1en the 
very regulation under whi~h the>: were actmg, and 
had acted before made tt posstble for the vessel 
t,; go e> en to h~r pnrt of destination to get a 
competent interpreter; only tf one was not 
obtained there the recruits would ha.ve to be sent 
back again. Supposing that Cassowa.y, _a.nd 
Moses, and Archie, a.nd the others had de?etved 
those in connection \vith the '' Fore:-.t J(Ing"­
and there was not the slightest evidence of that­
but no one was proof against the possible 
rleceit of interpreters, as the Royal Curn­
miosion and the Vice-Admiralty Court found­
there is the evidence, a.t any rate, that 
those natives, when l\fessrs. 'l'orlesse, Bruce, 
and the others went on boa:·d, promvtly 
answerecl to the names by whtch they w:re 
already known on board the ve,;sel-names w~teh 
had been put on the ship's records when they 
were recruited; and they responded ec1ua.lly as 
promptly to their names when they we~e called 
Ly ::\Ir . .:'IIilman ~nd Mr: Ma:farlane, w!th .J erry 
as interpreter. Ihere ts thts much evtdence_ at 
anyrate-that those who interpreted acted wtth 
/,ollrr,fides in the matter. I 'n.mld ask the House 
again to consider the vety different stnten1ents 
,~hich were made in regard to the result of . that 
examination held on board the "Forest Kmg." 
Mr. Niilma.n says, at pa.ge 5 of the report of the 
Admiralty Court proceedings :-

"On fnrther inquiry, witll the natiVf'fl tl.at I was able 
to comumnicnte with (throngh .Jcrry), I fon11d that 
onl\· live ,vcrc 'villing to go for the full term of three 
ye:lrs, and consider it very doubtful if they fully under­
stood wlmt they were agreeing to. 11he lnLlar~ce of 
them point blank declined to go for the term rt was 
professed they had agreed to serve. Unt~cr these 
dreumstanct:" I am of opinion that these natives have 
been recrnited contrary to the regulations of the 
Pacifie Island labour trade, and have the honour to 
draw your attention to the above-stated faets." 
The Ruval Commission in their report, at page 
35, in concluding their RUmmary upon this special 
case of the" Forest ICing," state:-

"We are of opinion thnt all the recruits brought by 
the 1 Forest King' were decoyed on board under false 
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pretence~: that the nature of their engagements was 
never expla.ined to them; and that none of them 
nnder::;tood they were to work on a, ~mgar plantation 
for any periotl, much less for three yCtJus." 

That is the conclusion of the Royal Commission, 
and if the evidence given before the Commission 
be taken, it will he found that not one of them 
states, so far as I remember, that he was engaged 
to serve for a period of three years ; but 1Ir. 
lVIilman admits that there were five who, when 
he examined them, stated that they were engaged 
for three years. Where were these five? How 
is it they were not produced before the Commis­
sion? Is it not possible that amongst the men 
examined before the Commission there were 
some of these very men who admitted to Mr. 
Milman that they were engaged for three 
years ? One recruit called vV arowaggo, for 
instance, gave his evidence before the Royal 
Commission, and stated that he was only 
engaged for a short term of moons ; but the 
Govern1nent agent~a man of whon1 I lutve ex­
pressed my opinion-declares that this man 
vVarowaggo was one of the rect·uits, who, when 
on board the shii> was examined by Mr. Milman 
and Mr. Macfarlane throuf<h the interpretation of 
J erry, said he was engaged for three years. He 
h'td special reason for remembering this mn,n 
as he stood out prominently among his 
fellow recruits as a remarkably jolly good­
natured fello\v, who was always laughing, and 
he remembered him also as a s,Jrt of nurse, who, 
when any of the boys were sick, brought water 
or medical comforts to them. The Government 
'Cgent remembers this man specially, and he 
states that he was one of the five who on board 
the ship acknowledged that he was recruited for 
three years. I know th<tt the committee, and 
especially myself perhaps, may be regarded as 
being in a very invidious position, midway 
between the proceedings of the Royal Commis­
sion ; but it is perfectly just, that in attempting 
to make good the report which the committee 
brought into this House, they desired to show all 
the grounds, so far as I can point them out, on 
which the conclusion of the committee rest,;. If 
the two lots of evidence be put in contradistinc­
tion and comparison, we ask, whn,t h the evidence 
for the unquestioning credence and irnportance 
which are att>tched to the evidence given by the 
recruits before the Royal Commi'''iou? Coulcl it 
be shown that any of this evidence is substan­
tially incorrect and unreliable-if it can be 
shown that it is incorrect and unreliable in the 
cttse of two or three witnesses, c3.sually referred 
to, it is only fair and rensmmble to draw the con­
clusion that others may be incorrect and unreliable 
<Llso. I will again draw attention to the evidence of 
Loo-Lucy. In his evidence he says he could not 
speak the Teste langun,ge, yet he admits that 
Char lie, who it was declared could not speak the 
811d~Est language, con1rnunie~1ted \vith hi1n. Loo~ 
Lucy states in his evidence that when he was 
recruited Charlie was in the boat, and that 
Charlie recruited him ; but, as a matter of fact, 
we are informed that Chn,rlie was not on board 
the 8hip at all at this time. I am speaking now 
of what Loo-Lucy ,.aiel before he got to Brisbane. 
I am not alluding to what he "aiel of Charlie 
after he got to Brisbane. But this very man 
Ch"rlie, whom he says was interpreter at the 
time he was recruited, was not then on board the 
ship at all; and was not on board until some 
time afterward", after the ship got to 'Teste 
Island. 'The nmn who wn,s on board the ship 
at the time as interpreter was Cassoway. 
L\ll the witnes>es allude t•' Cassoway as being- the 
interpreter on board at that time, n,ncl it is unmis­
takably proved by the evidence taken before the 
Roy"l Connnission, and unless all these men have 
been grievously misreported by the Han"u·d staff, 
we must take his evidence as unreliable. 'rhere 

is another man called Beclanna, who was also 
examined by the Royal Commission. On page 78 
of the Royal Commission report, it will be found 
that this man. was examined as follows:-

" ·what is the name of :y·our place 2 Gaaga. 
· In wha.t ship did you come:- 'Porest King.' 

·· \Vlmt hapvened when she came to your place!-' Boat 
came ashore. 

"\Vho were in the boat:- Oapt:tin, boatswa.in, Harry, 
Charlic, 'l'mu, and Peter. Government agent stopped 
on board. 

"Dill anybody t:;peak to you: Harry, \Yari boy, said, 
'You come in boat, you and I go schooner.' 

"Por what dW he say r 'l'o see white man's country for 
two moons, then come back. 

·· \Vhat were ycu to do there:- Xothing; sail about and 
come back. ~ 

'·Did he give anything to you;.. rromallawk, pipe, and 
tobaeco. 

""\Vhy did you think he gave you the~e-justforsailing 
about ·with him? Yes; and when I came here I found 
work." 

He "found work," and I have no doubt it Wt1,S to 
him a bitter disappointment. He expected to 
be paid to go, and sail about, and then found 
he had got to work. 'That was a great contrast. 
However, this m<Ln, according to the evidence of 
the Government agent, came on board the 
''Forest King" and volunteered to corne to 
Queensland as a recruit. It may be asked what 
evidence is there of that? It i; narrated in the 
(}overnrnent agent'~ log-although there is a very 
important omission, but th"t very omission is 
very strong substantial evidence of the truth of 
the record. I will point out what the omission 
was directly. 'The Government agent writes as 
follows:-

"Friday, ,Tuly 4th, 6 a.m.-Light south-east breeze, 
cloudy alHl misty. 7.30 went ashore to Xormanby 
Isbmd; from there stood across to li1erguson Island. 
Returned to ship at 5.i10 p.m 'vithont any recruits. 
Xatives ou Ji1ergn:-;on Island numerous but shy; very 
few will come 1war us. One :Xormanby boy came on 
board during the Llay 1in a canoe) and ofl't~red himself as 
a reeruit. I ttuestione l him through the interpreter, 
and when I felt satistiell that he came on bom·d by him­
self with the intention of going to Queensland, I ex~ 
lllained the terms required by hnv. ·when the inter­
Vl'eter informed me that he (the recruit) Lhoroughly 
under..;tood the nature of his engagement, I signed him 
as a recruit." 

In all that record there is no account of the 
name of this man, and it may be said that this 
very important omission i" a very serious defect 
in the evidence. It may be said that other 
islamlers from N ormanby Island were recruited, 
and that there is no more evidence that this was 
the man than that it might have been some other 
mn,n This is the point I wish to mention, Mr. 
Speaker : His name is not mentioned in the Gov­
ernment agent's log; but if we turn to the 
tabulated record of the recruits obtained on this 
voyage of the ":b~orest King'' when they came 
to Normanby Island, we will find that this 
man's name is the very first on the list. He, 
according to the report of the Government 
ag-ent, was the first man obtained at Normanby 
Island, but that officer did not take the pre­
caution to record his name ; and I maintain that 
that omission from the log, which we find 
recorded in an(Jther document, is strong circum~ 
stantin,l evidence-proof--that Becln,nna is the 
very man who came in his canoe and voluntarily 
offered to go to Queensland <LS a recruit. I am 
<[uite prepared to admit that, in this business, 
there has been a lamentable and considerable 
amount of lying - that the proceedings are 
utterly discreditable to somebody; but, while I 
am prepn,red to admit that there may be circum­
stances in which the word of a black man 
or a coloured man may be as good .evidence 
as that of a white man, and while I am prepared 
to admit that there may be eases in which the 
evidence of a black man is better than that of a 
white man, as a Britisher I am not prepn,red tu 
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go th.at leJ?gth. a~ to a~mit the possibility of a 
case m winch It IS possible for the evidence of ·t 
rec_ruit, an islander, a ~avage, to be o;;o va1id, R~> 
reliable, and so_unqc1estwnabl>: true as to utterly 
exclude the evidence of a w h1te man. This is 
what was done by the Royal Connni,sion in 
dealing ;vith ~his matte~·· There may be circum­
st';'nces I_ll which the evidence of recruits may be 
t!~Ken with all credence as undoubtedly substan­
tially true, but when we are asked to sanction 
proceedings in which the evidence of white men 
in rebuttal or cross-examination is utterly ex­
cluded, I say it is asking us to go too far. \Ve 
must ha ye ~he other . side, and, if possible, 
get an mqmry that IS thorough and com­
plete. l\ir. Hose, one of the members of 
the Royal Commission, gave evidence before 
th~ select committee _appointed to inquire into 
this case ; we asked hnn a number of questions· 
we referred to the manner in which the Com: 
mission obtained the eddence of the islanders 
and he said in reply that he considered jt th~ 
best possible evidence, or words to that effect. 
If that is :\ir. Rose's view of the case and i£ that 
is the view of the Commi,sion a.pp~inteLl to in­
quire into it, it is not to be wondered at that 
the evidence not only of white men but of 
white men implicated, white men ' blamed 
white men condemned, in this matter-I 
say, it is not to be wondered that their 
evidence was altogether excluded from the 
proceedings. It may be retorted that the select 
committee took evidence only on one side · 
that is about the only reasonable objectim; 
to our proceedings, :\Ir. Speaker, that I 
have heard-that we only took the evidence 
of white men. Well, if it comeo to a mat­
ter of choice, JVIr. Speaker, or if we must 
take one to the exclusion of the other, I am 
Britisher enough to take the evidence of my own 
countrymen about matters of this kind. I do 
not know that I am saying anything unjust 
of n1en who are t5aYage8, who are addicted to 
all manner of deceit, who are not to be 
blamed nearly so much for that deceit as 
white men when they are guilty of it ; never­
theless I am not rJrepared to take the evidence of 
those mPn in these matters in which there is 
every inducement to deceit, as I shall show-I 
say I am not prepared to take the evidence of 
tho~e 1nen as nJtogether overweighing, excluding, 
and destroying the evidence of my fellow-country­
Dlen. 

The HoN. Sm T. MciLWRAITH: Hear, 
hear! 

Mr. MIDGLEY: I do not intend to say a 
word a~ to the 1nanner in \vhich evidence was 
extortBd from Mr. Rose by the 'elect 
committee. I do not wi'h to say ltny­
thing personal, or, at any rate, offenRive; 
but I must say thi, -that there wa' a 
most marked contra't between the ma,nner in 
which we obtained the evidence of i\Ir. l{c),,e 
and the manner in which it was given by ali 
other witnesses. I maintain that truth is spon­
taneous; that it springs to the lips freely, 
promptly; that when a man knows the truth be 
ha.s no hesitancy or difficult~" in saying what it is 
-m speaking it-that there will lJe nothing 
laboured, thoughtful, and reflecti vc about it. 
The committee had to extract from :\Ir. Rose 
answers to questions -to abstract questions 
thoroughly in regard to the subject we were 
inquiring in.to. Mr .. Rose took time to reply to 
those questrmm, winch was really sometimAs 
most tantalising to the cotamittee. I mention 
this because it bas been stated as true that there 
was o:·erbearing, browbeating on the part of the 
cmmmttee ; but there was nothing of the kind. 
Each witness that came before the committee 
had the exercise of his own sweet will, and l\Ir. 

Rose was the man who took aclvantage of it to 
the full. He rewinded me very much of one of 
the characters in one of the operas. There were 
two charn,cters in it-one who persisted in ever­
lastingly alluding to "the royal father''-" the 
royal father" baid this, that, or the other ; and 
the other character, in his impatience and vexa­
tion, Raid, uwre than once, " Go hang your royal 
father." 

An HoxoUHA!lLIC l\lEMBJm : " Smother your 
royal father." 

Mr. MIDGLEY: Yes;" Smother your royal 
father." I knew it was wmething like that. 
~With reg>trd to iYlr. ltnse and his report he 
really might have left that report behind J{im. 
\Vith regard to some questions we asked him, the 
time he took to consult that report, and 
the reluctttnce >tnd deliberation with which 
he gave his evidence, robbed it of a great deal 
of its value. However, Mr. Speaker, the 
evidence of lHr. Rose had great value. \V e 
extmcted--got from him a,n admission that the 
inquiry was not a fair one ; tht~t it was not a full 
one; that it would have been better if the men 
implicated or condemned had been called to o-ive 
their evidence, or that somebody had appe,;:red 
for them-a very important admission. Anrl we 
obtained from him the further admission that it 
was his wish that thm;e men should have been 
called at that inquiry, but that he was over­
ruled. Now, why should he have been overruled? 
I am no lover of law, l\Ir. Speaker-no lover of 
lawyers; I am sure the House knows that. Rather 
than go to law I would suffer great loss, because 
I know that in the end the lav~yers would get the 
be~;t of it, and I do "''t like any man to get the 
best of me. Now, when I contrast the manner 
in which the inquiry was conducted by the Vice­
Admiralty Court-with that conducted by the 
Royal Commission-on the one hand both parties 
appfl.n..ring with their witnei"t~e~, their eYidence, 
their cross-examination, their documents-every­
thing said and done that could be said and done 
-dorw in a waY which cannot but excite the 
admiration of every British subject and in­
crea.se fJUr reverence and rm;pect for those who 
administer the law in this colouy-and on the 
other-but I cannot trust myself to ""Y what I 
think of the other mode of proceedings. I maint:.1in 
that the Government should have protected the 
GoYernnwnt ~tgent at that inquiry. He was 
their officer, and he, at any rate, should not 
have been exposed to all this trouble without 
someone appe<Ll"ing on hb behalf. It was in the 
iuterests of tlie Government-it was the duty of 
the Government to have had someone there to 
watch the proceedings on behalf of the Govern­
ment agent-to protect him as far as possible. 
He was their servant-their agent. 

The PHE:\IIER : He had left their service a 
cnnsiderable time. 

::V.lr. J\IIDGLJ<~Y : I am told that Mr. Thnmp­
r:::on could not be procured. 

The HoN. Sm T. MciLWRAITH : That 
is not true. 

:\Tr. ::\IIDGLEY : Surely there might haYe 
been someone appointed to appear before the 
Cmntnission for the Governnl8nt agent in the 
same way that emmselappeared for the petitioner 
before the select committee. It would have 
been quite competent to ha Ye allowed someone 
to appear as counsel on behalf of those who were 
so deeply interested and implicated in the 
matter. They oug·ht to have had inflicted upon 
them the heaviest pemtlty of Queensland lnw. 

The PHEMIER : The boy" were kidmcpped. 
Mr. l\IIDGLEY: I am speaking with reg·ard 

to subsequent proceedings that were t1tken 
against the vessel and with regard to the 
position of the Government in regard to the 
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owner of the ship. They eviclently believed 
that all thh; was done and then that the cost 
and damages D., l expense of it should fall 
upon the head of the man who owned the 
ship. I say if that was the conclusion of 
the Roy>1l Commission they should have given 
1\:Ir. Hodgson and his ser·nmts some opportunity 
of defending themselve~. Now, Ishall not detain 
the House much longer, except to refer to a few 
other matters. I want to put this before the 
House. The Commission largely relied upon the 
evidence of a man c<tlled Cago. l.Tltimately they 
placed implicit reliance on what he told them, 
and yet this very man Cago is shown, in the 
report of the Royal Commiosion, to have been 
guilty of great deceit or very culpable cowardice. 
He was the interpreter for the schooner 
"Hopeful," and when he got to Tovinsville he 
told a tale which was a tissue of lies. That man 
was the chief interpreter relied upon by the 
Royal Commission, and they appear to have 
taken his evidence as reliable and implicitly true. 
Now, what reason has this House to believe on 
the face of it, seeing that this man Cago is 
already condemned out of his own mouth, and 
seeing that he is condemne<l by the Royal ·com­
mission-what reawn has this House to accept 
the evidence of that man any more than the 
interpretation of Char lie on board the " l<'or·est 
King"? New, I anticipate what will be the 
'frouncl of defence taken up by the Government. 
The statement will be made that they are not 
responsible for the action of .i\lr. 1\Iilman. 
'V ell, I think that that ground of defence has 
already been taken from undet· the feet of the 
Government. The Premier told ns the other 
night, that had Mr. Milman not acted on the 
information he received he would have deserved 
and probably have received instant dismissal 
from the Government Service. That was an 
intimation that he was acting on the Government's 
behalf. I do not mind the Premier's laugh one bit. 
If the Government maintain that if :i\ir. 1\Iilman 
had not clone a certain thing they would have 
dismissed him that is a recognition that he was 
in the service, and that is the logical conclusion 
of the Premier's speech, because if 1\Ir. JYiilman 
was not in the service of the Government why 
should and how could the Government dismiss 
him? 

The PREMIER : He was in their service. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: Quite so; that is all the 
admission I want. If Mr. 1\Iilrnan was then in 
the Government employ and did what he did as 
a Government servant, and what he did was 
wrong, and inflicted datnage and wrong and 
injury upon a member of the community, the 
Government must hold themselves responsible 
for th<? action of their servant. I did intend to 
quote the speech of the Premier, delivered when 
I gave notice of this motion for the appointment 
of a select committee. I will not do that; but 
I must and will say that that speech may well 
be read and taken now as my speech on behalf 
of Mr. Hodgson, the petitioner. If it can be 
shown, and the Premier has shown, that a man is 
responsible for the action of his servant, then the 
Government must take the responsibility in this 
case. lVIr. !Vlilman was their servant ; he was dis­
charging duties on behalf of the Government; 
and n1y English cornn1on sense enables n1e to 
draw that conclusion. The admission of the Pre­
mier last night just clinched the whole thing, 
and I was very glad to hear such a sentiment 
coming from him. I know that :Mr. Milman in 
engaging in this affair was somewlu;t unfortunate. 
I know that the Premier was afraid of the man 
he had to deal with, and the result of Mr. 
JHilman's importunity made the Premier keep 
him at arm's length. He made application to 

inquire into the Polynesian trade, that he might 
go and report upon this matter, and nltimately 
his request was acceded to. 

The PREMIER : That is not correct. 
Mr. MIDGLEY: Then I must go into the 

matter more elaborately. \Vhat I have stated is 
substantially correct, and cannot be contmclicted. 
J\Ir. Milman asked for a. holiday, and for permis­
sion to go amongst the islands ; that perrnis~ion 
was granted. He then asked if he might inquire 
into the way in which recruiting was being carried 
on, and if he might report upon it; and ultimately 
the reply was that he might report only. He 
wanted to know if he could do anything more 
than that, and the answer of the Premier was 
" No"; therefore, he was a servant of the Gov­
ernment to that extent. I cannot understand 
l'dr. IVIilman's reason for this request ; I do not 
understand why he could not go and enjoy his 
holiday quietly-why he could not throw off all 
the cares and troubles and duties of his official 
position, and take his rest and enjoy himself. I 
do not know why, unless it be that there is a 
clause in the Act providing that the informant 
shall be entitled to half the proceeds of the 
seizure. That may possibly be the solution of 
Mr. Milman's importunity ; I cannot think of 
any other reason. The Act provides that he 
shall be entitled to half the proceeds resulting 
from an information. 

The PREMIER : 'Vhat clause is that? 
The Hox. Sm T. MciL WHAITH : Do not 

be interrupted, and go on with your speech. 
Mr. MIDGLl~Y : I shall have an opportunity 

of replying-, and if that is contradicted I can 
easily bring up the records. 

The PREMIER : There is no such law. 
Mr. MIDGLEY: Then I must detain the 

Committee until I find the clause. 
The HoN. Sm T. MaiL WRAITH: Go on with 

your speech. 
1\Ir. IVIIDGLBY: I shall have an opportunity 

of pointing out where the clause is to be found ; 
but it is in the Act, and if it does not apply to 
i\lr. J\lilman I am wrong in my in terprot,l.ttOn of 
the Act ; but the clause is there. 

The PREMIER: The clause is not there. 
Mr. MIDGLEY: Well, it is there, and I 

will find it there. 
The Hox. Sm T. MciLvVRAITH: Do not 

let him interrupt you; it is a trick ; go on with 
your speech. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: I will not tletain the 
House, but I know the clause is in the Act. I 
should be wasting the time of the House if I 
were to look for it ; I am convinced it is there. 
:Now, I ask the House to look at this absurdity : 
of course it is an absurdity if my interpretation 
of the law be correct, but if it is not correct, then 
of course the absnrdity will not exist. The Act 
provides that the informant shall receive half 
the proceeds of any seizure that results in 
forfeiture. 

The PitEMU;R: No. 
The HoN. Sm T. MciLWHAITH: Uo on; 

go on! 
Mr. ;yiiiJGLEY: Well, I will go on, but 

I will not point out the absurdity I refer 
to until I know what the clause really is. 
There is another matter, Mr. Speaker. These 
men brought by the " l<'orest Kin!(" were all 
ultimately engaged on the varions plantations to 
which they were sent. They were engaged 
through the medium of the same interpreter­
Charlie-after the proceeding' in the Vice­
Admiralty Court. This man, when acting as 
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interpreter, appears to have been sufficient for 
the Government then. He wao deemed suffi­
ciently reliable to act then. Charlie was the 
interpreter acting when these men were ulti­
mately engaged. If the Govemment were RO 

thoroughly satisfied that he was utterly 
incompetent, whv was he allowed to act 
again ? Not only were those men engaged 
through the medium of the same inter­
preter; but, when JVIr. Thompson left the 
service of the colony, there was handed to him 
a most honourable dismissal, u farewell ; and he 
has a letter that, as a Government agent, he 
may be proud of, and in possession of which 
he may feel himself secure against any further 
proceedings. 'rhere are other matters. It may 
also be suggested that the damages are excessive. 
I am not going into that now, nor into the 
details of the claim, nor into the fact that the 
Government admitted the responsibility last night 
in those law costs which were passed. It is said 
that Mr. Hodgson was engaged in a nefarious and 
infamous traffic, and that if a man engaged 
in a dangerous, or wrong traffic or trade of 
this kind, he must take the consequences. Mr. 
Hodgson was engaged in a traffic which has been 
originated, and legalised, and sanctioned, and 
protected by the Queensland Government, and 
if he were engaged in this trade honestly that is 
not a thing that ought to be said against him. 
Any blame that attaches to the traffic attaches 
to the Government of Queensland and the colony 
of Queensland. It is a trade, it seems to me, 
which-if the evidence taken before the Royal 
Commission he true-if the recruiting on board 
the ":Forest King" were not properly done, it 
never can be properly done, and it is a trade which 
•ught to be immediately swept away and done with; 
but a trade which the Government of Queensland 
has recently deliberately ]Jroposed to establish and 
continue for another five years to come, if it waR 
not properly conducted by the ":Forest King''­
if these recruits were wrongfully brought to the 
colony, I can see no jmtification for the Gov­
ernment deliberately proposing to continue that 
trade for five years, nor can l see what reasons 
they can have for supposing that the recruiting 
trade will be more honestly conducted than it 
was in this c·ase. In conclusion, I will just draw 
the attention of the Hom;e to the position of the 
pbtitioner, Jl.lr. Hodgson. He is an old citizen 
in this colony, and a man of whom I know 
very little. He was once a member of this 
Assembly, some years ago, and a man who has 
suffered in miml, body, and estate because of the 
s8izure of his ship. A man with whom I have 
never had any business transactions-and I men­
tion that, because it has been supposed by some 
that I have ; Lut I have had no business connec­
tion with him to the extent of one penny. That 
is the only humiliating thing I have had to say 
to-day-to nmke a statement of that kind in self­
defence. He is 1m old citizen in this colony ; he 
has been in businesR for a great rr1any yca1;;', a.nd 
he has Leen a member of this House. ;:-;ubse­
quent to the seizr,re of his ship there is a terrible 
outcry in this colony against the black labour 
traffic ; cer·bin men are arrested and tried ; 
certain men are terribly punished, with the 
utmost rigour of the law-some of them nearly 
hanged. But I nn1 not speaking on the 1nerits 
of those cases. I am drawing attention to the 
fact that this man has been engaged in this 
trade. There have been two trials, as it 
were, before this committee. There was an 
inquiry before the Vice-Admiralty Court, in 
which the petitioner was h"nourably acquitted, 
and then there was the Iloyal Commission, 
which, in its verdict, really condemned the pro­
ceedings of that vessel. There is a popular 
clamour and outcry against this trade, and there 
is an unmistakable determination on the part 

of the Government to repress abuses. It is its 
unmistakable determination to punish offenders; 
and yet this man, in the midst of all this 
outcry, is elevated in the midst of it and says, 
''Although the Royal Commission condemned 
me, I cry for anrl demand further inqniry." 
That is not the action of a guilty man. The 
action of a guilty man is to sneak away and be 
silent. The action of a guilty man is not to de­
mand further inquiry into proceedings which are 
condemned by the powers that be, as of a 
questionable character. This man says " I 
demand further inquiry. " 'rhat is the 
den1and of a man who is engaged in a 
business honestly and fairly. A select com­
mittee was appointed, which resulted in the 
report, the adoption of which I move this 
afternoon. I shall have another opportunity of 
speaking on the subject, and going into the 
details of the claim, every item of which I 
believe to be just and fair, in my own mind. I 
leave the matter in the hanrls of the House to 
consider whether it shall be taken as the claim 
of a citizen who believe" he has been wronged. 
I trust it will be fairly and honestly and gener­
ously dealt with by this Legislative Assembly. 

The PREMIER said: Mr. Speaker, -The 
hon. member evidently takes a very warm inte­
l'f"St in this matter, and has spok&n very warmly 
on the subject. He has attacked the Gov­
ernment-1 do not know why, or on what 
ground-he has attacked the Hoyal Commission, 
anrl has attacked persons who gave evidence 
before it. But all th .. t, I am sure, he will see 
in his calmer -moments is altogether beside 
the question. The question which he is asking 
the Hmme, by his motion, to give its attention to 
is as to whether it should adopt the report of the 
select commit.tee-that is to say, to affirm that 
the select committee have proved to its satisfaction 
that the statements in their report are correct. 
That is the motion. The hon. gentleman was 
far from addressing himself to the motion and 
showincr that those allegations are correct. 
That the Government is responsi8le for the 
action of the "Swinger,;' iH another proposi 
tion involved in his n1otion, and, instead of 
addressing himself to it, he has addressed him­
self to this point : That JI.Ir. Hodgson is an 
injured man; that he is an honest man, and 
his captain was an honest man; and that, as a 
matter of fact, there was no kidnapping carried 
on on board the " Jcorest King." I will concede 
the whole of that, so fnr as JYlr. Hodgson is 
concerned, there was no kidnapping carried on 
on board with his knowledge, or the knowledge 
of the captain, or of the Government agent ; but 
in proving that, the hon. gentleman has not 
advanced one step towards what he asks the 
House to adopt. The question before us 
is not whether 11r. Hodgson's captai11 acted 
with perfect ban" .tides, or whether the Govern­
ment agent acted with perfect bonn ,tides, and 
they were misled by the i':terpreters that th:y 
obtained-whether ,Terry misled them or Char he, 
or somebody else. That is not the question. 
The question is whether the seizure by the 
" Swing_er:.' \Vas justified ur:der tbe cir??-~s~ance,~ 
then ex1stmg. The captam of the Swmger 
was employed on ]Jolice duty in the Pacific under 
the provisions of the Kidnapping Act just a;; much 
aH a policen1an is engaged when patrolhng the 
streets of Brisbane, and his duty was to act upon 
the circumstances as they presented themsel Yes 
to him. Sometimes an innocent man is arrested 
on a charge of crime, but you do not hold the 
Government responsible because the policeman 
has arrested him. Yet that is the case the hrm. 
tne1nber is endeavouring to 1nake out to the 
House. But it is not even that. He does 
not seek to hold the Government answerable in 
that sen,e, Lut to make the employer of the 
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man who gave the information respon,ible. 
That is the position. I will just illustrate it. 
The pro posit: ',J is this-that if my servant is in 
the street, and is informed that a crime has been 
committed in a neighbouring street, and he goes 
and tells a policeman that he io so informed, and 
the policeman arrests the wrong man, I am to 
pay the damagefi. That is an exactly analogous 
case to this. But the hon. member has not 
addressed himself to that ; he has contented him­
self with endeavouring to show that Mr! Hodgson 
is innocent. I do not wish to assert that Mr. 
Hodgson is guilty; nobody supposes for one 
moment that he would connive at any improper 
recruiting. Nor does anyone for a moment believe 
that theG<>vernment agAnt on board that ship con­
nived at improper recruiting. He did his duty as 
well as he could ; but because he was liable to 
be deceived, it was not thought fit that he should 
continue any longer in the Government service. 
I believe he acted honestly, but he Wt<s misled. It 
is not necessary, therefore, to go minutely into 
the question whether the evidence of the ' oly­
neRian witness Bedanna, or any other witness, is 
correct. For instance, what is the use of in­
vestigating ~he question whether the account 
he gave is primarily t<ccurate, or whether 
it was interpreted with perfect accuracy 
by the interpreter? \Vhat light does that throw 
upon the matter? It throws none. Suppose 
that the interpreter in the "J<'orest King" case 
made a mistake in the Admiralty Court, or 
suppose the interpreters for the Royal Com­
mission made a mistake-it is most likely that 
all the interpreters made a mistttke-what b the 
use of investigating minutely a matter like that? 
I propose to deal with the matter on a broader 
basis. But before doing so, I wish to make a 
few remarks in reference to the attack made on 
Mr. Rose, one of the members of the Royal 
Commission. The h<m. member attacked the 
Commission generally. \Ve have nothing to do 
with the Royal Commission in considering this 
case. If any hon. member desires to bring 
forward a vote of censure on the Royal 
Commission, or a vote of censure on the 
Government for appointing the members of 
it, or a. vote of censure on the Governnwnt 
for acting upon their report, let him do so. 
Let him do so at once, and we will meet the 
matter fairly. But the hon. member is not 
bringing forward a vote of censure of that 
kind, although I am perfectly aware that 
son1e hon. rnernbers intend taking advan· 
tage of the opportunity to vilify the Com­
missioners. Nevertheless the fact remains 
that the Commission has done a great deal 
of good for the colony, a good which cannot 
be undone by any abuse or vilifi<'ation showered 
down upon the Commissioners by members of 
this House, whoever they are. The h<m. 
member compared the manner in which ~Ir. 
Rose gave his evidence with the manner in 
which the other witnesses gave their evidence. 
But let any one read the C[Uestions put to 
Mr. Rose. lH there no difference in ask­
ing a n1an to give a narrative and asking 
a nwn what were his itnpressions or n1otives '? 
\Vould the hon. member for J<'assifern like to sit 
there and be cros.-examinecl by me in the manner 
in which he cross-examined lYir. Rose before the 
committee? If he was asked what he would 
have thought if somebody had said so-and-so 
when he said something else, would he not hesi­
tate before he answered? I ask anybody to read 
the evidence and see the questions put to Mr. 
Rose. 

Mr. DO:t\ALDSON: Quote some of them. 

The PRKI\HER : I am not going to· 'luote the 
evidence all through. I have read it all 
through, and I can understa,nd any hesitation 

in answering smne of the questions. It was 
quite impossible to answer them except in a 
speech of two or three minutes. A very 
grec<t number of the questions asked of the 
other witnesses throughout the inquiry were 
questions to which simply an answer "Yes" 
or "No" was sufficient. Judging from my 
experience of the examination of witnesses it 
appears to me that a full narrative of the case had 
been prepared, and the questions were put in a 
form which only required the answer 'Yes" or 
"No "-they were leading questions. I w1ll now 
just say one word as to a matter which is per­
fectly irrelevant to the inquiry, and that is the 
suggestion that l\1r. l\Iilrnan was actuated, in 
giving information to the captain of the "Swin­
ger," by the hope of obtaining half the penalty. 

i That suggestion ought not to have been made. 
The hon. gentleman said he would have an 
opportunity of speaking on the subject again, 
and I would ask him to withdraw the in­
simmtion. There is no provision in the Kid­
napping Act allowing reward to any person 
giving such information. A vessel can only be 
seized by an officer of Customs, or a public 
officer in any British possession, a commissioned 
officer on full pay in the military service of the 
Crown, a commissioned officer on full pay in the 
naval service of the Crown, and a consul or con­
sular ag·ent appointed by Her Majesty to reside 
in any island not within the jurisdiction of any 
civilized power. These are the only persons who 
can seize a vessel, and in no case can they have 
any share in the forfeiture. Probably whttt the 
hon. member referred to wtts the provision in 
the Polynesian Act of 1884, which states that if 
a ship is forfeited for a breach of the provisions 
of that Act the informant may receive half the 
penalty. 

Mr. JYIIDGL:EY: That is right. 
The PREMIER : Having now dispo"ed of 

that matter, I will deal with the merits of the 
case. The report of the committee which the 
hon. member asks the House to affirm, says, 
firstly, that the allegations and st".tements of 
the petition of i\ir. Hodgson have been sub­
stantiated ; secondly, "that there is no evidence 
to show that the owner of the 'Forest King-,' 
or anyone engaged on her during the voyage 
when she was seized by the 'Swinger,' was 
guilty of, or aware of, any breach of the 
laws or regulations affecting the recruiting 
of islanders in Polyne.,ia." That is a somewhat 
startling and sweeping a1:1sertion. It involYes 
the assertion that the interpreters, and everybody 
on that ship, many of whom the committee 
never saw, and of whooe conduct and pro­
ceedings they could have no information, were 
not guilty of any breach of the laws and 
reg-ulations with respect to the recruiting of 
islanders, \Ve are aoked to say th"t there 
is no evidence that anybody on the ship was 
guilty of any breach of the law. Now, t'here is 
ample evidence that many of the islanders 
recruited were deceived; some of them may not 
have been deceived, but if one was deceived that 
is sufficient. There is ample evidence-I will 
not say condusi ve evidence, as that is a matter 
on which each may form his own conclusion­
that some of the i.slanclers were deceived. 
·whether the committee thought the evidence 
taken by them was more trustworthy than that 
is another thing ; but to say that there is no evi­
dence that those men were deceived is simply to 
say something contrary to fact. 

Mr. DONALDSON: What evidence do you 
allude to"! 

The PREMIER: The evidence of the islanders 
themselves. I do not say it is conclusive; that is 
a matter on which each member may have his own 
opinion ; but the committee stttte thttt there is 
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no evidence that thev were deceived. The hon. 
member must see that there is evidence, thoug-h 
he may disbelieve it. He does not, however, 
say that he disbelieves that evidence, but asks 
this House to affirm that there is no evidence 
that anyone engaged in the "Forest King," 
when she was seized by the "Swinger," was 
guilty of any breach of the laws affecting 
the recruiting of islanders in Polynesia. 
Then he asks the House to affirm as the third 
IJrOposition this most startling, most extra­
ordinary proposition :-That, in consequence of 
the seizure of his vessel, the" li'orest King," the 
petitioner has suffered loss, ex!Jense, and damage 
to the extent nf £3,000. He asks the House to 
affirm that at once. Of course, that i,; a matter 
which should be considered in committee, where 
the question could be gone into fully ; but 
to ask us to affirm this proposition is 
something sur!Jrising, to say tlw least. Surely 
he would have done more wisely if he 
had followed the ordinary emu se of pro­
posing, not to adopt the report, which is 
a useless JJroceeding, but to affirm that :VIr. 
Hodgson should be compensated, if the majority 
of the House are of opinion that he should be 
compensated. As to adopting the report of the 
committee, that is quite impossible. Before we 
could do that we should have to send it back to 
the committee to get all the evidence available; 
for I am sorry to say that they have not even 
taken the trouble to ascertain what damage .1\Ir. 
Hodgson has really sustained. He puts in 
a claim, which I can only characterise as being 
preposterous. He clahns the gross earnings 
of the ship, puts down the total amount it 
would have been possible for the ship to earn, 
and instead of deducting the expenses from 
the earnings he adds them on. I am not 
going to trouble the House much about the 
details of the lofl>'es. The committee had 
ample evidence available, if they had chosen 
to ask for it. Under the Act of last year 
every labour ship is bound on returning from a 
voyage to send in a sworn return of the expenses 
of the voyage ; and on going to the Polynesian 
Office they could have obtained a statement 
showing the expenses of every ship since that 
Act was passed. I will give the House 
sotne inforrnation as to the sworn returns 
of expenses on the voyages. As a matter of 
fact, JI!Ir. Hodgson has not sustained this loss. 
I know that he wanted to sell the " Forest King" 
to the Government some time ago, and it is well 
known that that vessel was not paying expenses. 

AN HONOURABLE N1E3IEER: vVhen did he 
want to sell it? 

The PRKlvll:ER : Six months ago ; but the 
vessel was not paying before that. lYir. Hodgson 
may have been specially unfortunate, but it is a 
fact appearing from his own returns that the 
average cost per heacl of all the islanders he 
has introduced since that Act was passed has 
been over £100. The passttge money was, 
say, £21 per head, so that it is quite im­
possible that he could have made a profit of 
£3,000 in four months. I do not want to expose 
lYir. Hodgson's affairs mme than is necessary, 
but I will mention particulars in regard to other 
ships. I have the particulars here, and they are 
public property. Taking thirteen vessels at 
random, sailing from various ports of the colony 
laHt year, I find that the lowest cost at which 
islanders were introduced wao £Hi ;)s. a head, 
and that was in the case of a veHsel which had 
a very large complement of recruits and took back 
a large number to the South Seas. The average 
cost in reg-ard to a large number of vessels, not 
one of which belong to JI!Ir. Hodgson, was £22 12s. 
per head. That being the average cost per head 
in introducing islanders, and the passage money 

being, say, £21, it is ridiculous to ask the House to 
aftrm that Mr. Hodgson has sustained a loss of 
£3,000 in feur months on one voyage. Now, I ask 
the House to consider the real question in this 
case, and that is, whether the seizure of the 
" li'orest King" was justifiable under the circum­
stances, and, after that, supposing it was not, 
whet her the Government are responsible for it? 
It has been stated that Mr. Milman was in the 
service of the Government. Of course he was ; 
he was a. police magistrate in the service of the 
Government, and that is the only ground on 
which the claim can be made-that the seizure 
was in effect made by Mr. Milman, and that 
the Government are responsible. Now the 
seizure was not made by Mr. Milman in any 
sense whatever. He was not more responsible 
for the seizure, nor are the Government any 
more responsible, than I am responsible for the 
actions of any of my servants to whom I give 
a holiday. The hon. gentleman, Mr. Midgley, 
said that after some hesitation I allowed Mr. 
JVIilman to go to sea. The corre,,pondence was 
laid on the table of the House last year, and can 
be seen at page 983 of the second volume of 
"Votes and Proceedings." A letter came from 
Mr. Milman, addressed to Mr. Gray, on 13th 
June, as follows-

")fr. :J.iacfarlane, from Xe\v Guinea, is now in town, 
and has asked me to accompany him in the 'l~Uan­
gowan' to New Guinea. It will be an opportunity not 
likely to occur again for some time, as on this occasion 
she (' Ellangowan'J is to go to J<~ast Cape and visit every 
settlement between that und the Fly River. He informs 
me I should be about three weeks away. I wonld have 
an opportunity also of seeing some of the fishing stations 
of men sailing from this port, including Nicholas-the 
man reported by labour agent of 'Oeara.' ""Will you 
kindly wire me, on receipt of this1 if I can go, if I have 
been able to dispose of Lee's affair, and no other impor­
tant business crops up~" 

This reply was sent by telegram :-
"You may go to Xew Guinea if public business will 

11ermit .. " 

'l'hen on the 24th :Mr. Milman telegraphed-
" Captain of 'Ellangowau' just arrived report,s teacher 

told him wholesale kidnapping going on at. Basilisk 
~Iorcsby and other islands in vicinity by three i3J mastctl 
~chooner ·Heath' also that 'Lizzie' reeruitcd in like 
manner If I go :Jir. l\Iaefarlane states I can '\isit these 
places and if instructed would inquire into truth of 
these reports ' Ellangowan ' sails 11r ednesday ." 

I minuted on that-
" :J:Ir. l\iilman to go and make inquiry." 

vVas that rig·ht or was it wrong? And where 
was the hesitation? The telegram was dated 24th 
June and instructions were given by me on the 
25th 'as soon as I saw it. The hem. member 
end~avoured to suggest that the Government 
distrusted lYir. Milman, and did not want to let 
him go, but the dates show that the contrary 
was the case. ·what was the duty of the Govern­
ment on being informed that kidnf1pping- was 
going on in New Guinea? The papers were 
beginning to comment on it ; and I had been 
informed in Townsville just before that irregu­
larities were going on ; and was it not the duty 
of the Government to investigate the matter 
when they had an opportunity? I say that 
if the position the Government take up 
is right, if we were b<;und to put down 
abuses, then, when a d1rect statement was 
made to the effect that abuses were going on, 
and an opportunity arose of inquiring into the 
truth of the statement, we were bound to accept 
it and let Mr. Milman go and make inquiries. 
The formal instructions given to Mr. Milman 
,,~ere-

" Colonial Seerctary wishes YOU to visit if possible the 
pJaee::s where islanclers by ':neat.h' ancl ' Lizzie' are 
alleged to have been kidnapped and to make full inquiry 
and report." 
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He replied the same day--
" Have I any power to do more than make inquiry 

and report if I find some vessel actnally engaged in 
illegal recruiting off New Guinea~'' 

::\iy minute on that was-
" Report only." 

He >tsked afterwards whether the Government 
would send any presents to the chiefs ; >tnd I 
said-

"Take a supply of trade with you, and distribn!e at 
discretion. You have no power to do more than report. 
which you should do fully.'' 

That is what the Government did. Now, to 
what extent are the Government answerable 
for what Mr. Milman did on that voyage? 
It is very hard to see where the responsibility 
comes in. But what did Mr. Milman do on tluct 
voyage? He dirl what any honest rrutn was 
bound to do. Any man hearing the statements 
that were made to him, who did not act as !Hr. 
.iHilnmn did, would have ceased to desen e the 
reputation of a gentleman. He would simply 
have been properly branded as a conniver at 
kidnapping. I say any man who has such a 
curious notion of morality as to say, in face of 
the facts to which I am about to call the attention 
of the House, that JYlr. JYiilman did wrong in 
that respect, must have some strange perversion 
of his moral nature. This is what happened ; it 
is not denied. Of course there are persons who 
say that Mr. Milm>tn should have regarded Mr. 
Macfr~rlane, Mr. Chalmers, and JYir. Lmves as 
liars; but Mr. Milman, I believe, does not phtce 
them in thl1t Clttegory. This is the only evidence 
given by Mr. Milml1n thl1t the committee ht1d 
before them. He Wlts examined in the Vice­
Admiralty Court; he was not examined before 
the committee. If the committee did not 
believe whr~t he st1id they should lmve called 
him ; if they did believe him we should tl1ke it 
""truth. They certainly might have ct11led him if 
they thought it Wltsnot correct. I must reltd this to 
the House-it is on page 12 of the proceeding' in 
the Vice-Admimlty Conrt---becltu8e these 2.re the 
circnmstltnces connected with the seizure by the 
"Swinger," not a stt1tement of what happened 
ltt Moresby Island or Sud-Est, or some other 
place some days before. The question is 
whether the Cl1ptl1in of the "Swinger" did right 
under the circumstances he found existing. He 
could not hold an inquiry to see what the trnth 
was ; he was on police duty, and certain facts 
were brought to his notice. ·what we hl1ve to 
see now is whether, these facts having· been 
brought under his notice, he did his duty ; be­
cause I apprehend thl1t if the captl1in of the 
"Swinger" did his duty this House is not to 
compensltte JYir. Hodgson becltuse he did his 
duty; or if so it is simply a case of generosity :-

"By ~fr. Chubb: Your name is Hugh Milman~ It is. 
" And you are the police magistrate at Oooktown P 

I am. 
" On the 9th .July last you were on board Her 

Majesty's ship 'Swinger,' commanded by Cavtain 
1Iarx ~ I wa,)ll. 

"You were, I believe, under instructions from the 
Queensland Government to make some inquiries as to 
the true state of the labour trade? As I was visiting 
~ew Gninea I received instructions from the Colonial 
Secretary to make all inquiries and give an account of 
how the traffic was being carried on in the waters which 
I should visit. 

'' I believe on this day the ' Fore;;;.t King ' was 
sighted? She was. 

" You were on board of her? I went on board in the 
afternoon. 

" With whom? With the Rev. 1.fr. 1Iachvrlane and a 
native teacher from Teste Island, named J err~·. 

" Did any of tl1e ofticers of the · Swinger' go \Yith 
you? No; they had gone on board previously. 

'· ''-"hen you got on boarll whom ctid you see? The 
Government agent. 

" What is his name? He is a man named Thompson 
-and the captain. 

"Captain Dickson? Captain Dickson I believe is his 
name. 

" Did you proceed to do anything~ I told the Govern­
ment agent that I was going to examine the re<~rnits on 
board, as I had a natiYe inter1n·etcr with me who could 
understand their langungc, to ascertain that they 
thoroughly understood that they were coming to 
Queensland fo1· tenus of three years. 

"·was Captain Dicl{son present when you said this~ I 
cannot saY whether he '''as there nt the time. I think 
he was eiigagcd with the officers of the man-of-war; I 
am not cm·tf~in. 

"Did you 1n·oceetl to the examination of the natives? 
I did; I had the na.tives mustered; I ordered the rct~rnits 
to be mnstercU on clock, forward. 

"·were they unu;tered? rrhcy were mustered. I can­
not remember, nmv, whether fonvard or aft by the 
deck-honsf'. I think now it was aft b\' the de<'k-house. 
They were mustered, and each one was called U}_) sepa­
rately by name. 

"·when this was being done was Dickson there, or the 
Government agent~ Yes, he wa-::;: and the two boarding­
officers of the man-of-war, Lieutenant 'l'orlesse and Sub­
Lieutenant Rrnce. 

"And 3-Ir. l\lachu·la.ne? Ye~; and .Terry. 
".Just tell us what was done. You say the recruits 

were called up 1Jy name!-- I got the names, tir.st of all, 
from the Govermuent age111 's book, and then I called 
each boy by hi~ name. That boy wa~ brought up and 
the question \Yas pnt to him. 

" Brought up by whom~ His name was called out 
and he came up himself-answered to his name him­
sell. 

''\Vas he called by name, or by number? By name. 
"\V ell, he came UJl·, Yes: he came up. 
"\ren, 1vhat was done then~ The question was put 

to each of them, how long was he going to Queensland 
for. 

"By ~Ir. llower: Ditl you put these wwstions your­
self, or did you hea1· thew put i-' I ordered them to be 
put. 

"Uy the Court: You told somebody in English to put 
them i' Yes; I ordered them to be put. I told Jerry to 
put the {1nestion to each boy, how long he was going to 
Queensland for. He put that queJottion. apparently. 

"He said something, anyhmv~ .Sometlliug, anyhow. 
''By )Jr. Chnbb: :Xot in Englisll !-' Xo. 
"In the native language!-' Ye.,. 
'·By the Court: Do you nnderstnnd the native lan­

guage? Xo. 
"By 1Ir. Chubb: It was in a foreign tongue? Yes; 

in a foreign tongue. 
"By the Court: Yon told him this in English? he put 

it to the boy in some language; then he smd something 
to you again in English, which you will tell ns r Yes; it 
was partly carriedon-as.Terry. t.lwugh he understands 
English. does not, well-through :Jlr. :\:1acfarlanc, in the 
first instance; then from Jir. }lacfurlane to hitn in Lifn 
language. In some instances I asked Jerry direct what 
did he say in l<~nglish, and he replied to me. 

" Was that in an the case,;; i-' In some instances he 
could not communicate with the boys at all. 

" In the instances 1vheu he appt ared to communi­
cate~ The answer was similar in each case. 

" In English to you? X at in English direct to me in 
every instanee ln some instances I a- ked him direct, 
after the ansv.er had been given to me by l\llr. l\-1acfar­
lane Did the boy ~ay so-and-so? 

"\Vha,t were the answer~ or answer that vou got 
through Jerry, either from Jerry or l\ir. :\1aefai·lnne. as 
the case might be? The answers 'vere the same fron1 
all those boys; that they were going to Queensland for 
tv•o months, to be returned the chird month. 

"Do you know-can you tell me-how many boys 
Jerry communica,ted with or appeared to get answers 
from? rrhere were thirty-nine boys in all, and there 
were nineteen boys that he \Vas unable to eommuni­
cate with. rrhat would leave twenty that gave him 
answers." 
Twenty boys said they were going for two months, 
and the other" could not be communicated with. 
There is no doubt thl1t happened. \Vhether 
these boyK told the truth is another question. 
This happened l1board the "Forest King"; that 
is the mltteril11 point. 

"Did you put any other questions through Jerry ~ I 
did, 011 a subsequent oecasion. 

''But not on that occnRion? Xo; I think that was all. 
''You told us that there were some you could not 

commnnicate with-that Jerry could not. Do yon know 
wllat islands they were from~ 'l'here were fourteen 
from Sud-J<~st Island, Lhree from the mainland of New 
Guinea north or Cape Ducie, one from JXormanby !~land. 
and oue from l;'erguson Island in the D'l1~n<rccastcaux 

group. 
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"Did Jeny appear to be able to communicate with 
the others ~ Yes 

'' ·w ... hen he spoke to them did they speak in reply? 
Thev did 

".Aft.er yon got ns far as this 1vhat did you do then? 
I went on board the ' Swinger.' and stated to Captain 
:uarx the information I had received." 

\V as he not bound to do that, Mr. Speaker? 
\V as he not ab~olutely bound to go and tell the 
captain of the "Swinger" the information he 
had received? 

"·what did yon state F That the majority of the boys 
were only recruited tor two months, to be retnrned on 
the third month, and that for the majority of the boys 
there was no interpreter at all. 

" (\rh en did J ou ascertain that? The first time, of 
course. 

" llefore you went on board to Oapta:in ::uarx you did 
:.omething else. You told us thE:re were fourteen boys 
from Sud-Est Island that C'~lnld not be communicated 
with by Jerry. ·was anythillg done for them~ The 
Government agent informed me t.hat the interpreter for 
tlH:lll had run away; but, it was their intention to get 
Rnother interpreter on board, for these boys, before 
returning to Q.uecn~land. 

" ·was uo other interpretm' produc~ed, or anything said 
to you about another interpreter on board r 'ntey said 
they had an interpreter for five of the boys that ,Jerry 
was unable to couummicate with. Tllere ,-.;;ere three, 
I think; one was the chief inte1·preter. 

'' I•'or the Jive boys \vith whom Jcrry could not com­
municate? Yes. 

"What was t.he name of these interpreters? I can 
tell you the name of one-Charlie. I do not know the 
nawes of the others. 

"\Yhat were the five nativ0,.,: 'fhree from the main­
l:.Jnd of Xev,r Guinea, near Cape Dncie, one from :X or­
man by I.sland, and one from I'erguson Island. 

"''Fhich one was pointed out as the interpreter for 
the tive ~ Char lie. 

"Did they tell you who had been the interpreter when 
they were recruited? Yes; they gave me to understand 
that Oharlie had. 

"Did you try to communicate "\vith these five through 
Charlie t I did. Char lie attempted to commnnicatc 
with them. and I was told in the first instance by .J erry 
that 'that fello"\v no understand those boys at all,' 

.. By 1-Ir. Power: You say in the first instane1J Jcn-y 
told you that: Yes. 

•·Bv )Jr. Chubh: \Yas that before or afterOharliehad 
comnlenced to speak to them? After Charlic had 
attempted to talk with them. 

" 'Yhat was the nwdus operandi of attempting to 
communicate with the boys through Charlic? Chm·lie 
~~pparently attempted to talk to them and got no a.ns,vcr. 

"Did ~you give him a question to put? I told him to 
put the same question as I had .Terry-thnt is, to ask 
tho.se boys ho\v long they had been recruited to go to 
Queensland for. 

"'l'hen Char lie spoke to t11em, and got no answer ? 
He got no answer 

"Did you observe the boys make any gesture? ~o. 
" Did the:v appear to understand him? They did not 

appear to understand. ,Jerry then said that Oharlie 
was atternp~ing to talk to them in Teste language, aud 
they did not understand his language. 

'' Did Charlie say anything to him? I then asked 
Charlie, cannot you make those boys understand~ 
Chnrlie hung down his head and did not ans,ver, giving 
me to suppo:.c he did not. 

"Did hP- say anything? Xo; I do not know if he said 
anything at the time or not. lie gave me to understand 
he conld not comrnunieate with the boys. 

" How about the fourteen boys from Sud-l~st? There 
\vas no communication held with them at all. 

"You noticed already that they intended to get an 
interpreter for them? 'fhe Government Agent told me 
that Captain Dickson had promised to get an interpreter 
before leaving those vmters, otherwise the boys \VOuld 
htwe to be returned to their islands. 

" "\\'"as the 1nterpreter obtained for you for those boys? 
For the Sud-Est boys, no. 

" Did the agent or the capU~it~ say anything? 'I' hey 
stated tlu~t they hnd not one. 

" 'rhen it was that you returned to the 'Swinger'? 
I then returned to the 'Swinger.' 

"·what did yon do on hoard the 'Swinger'? I told 
Captain .Jiarx that I had a:;certained from the boys that 
I was able to cnmmunicate "\Vith-twenty ant of some 
thil't,y-nine-that they had only been recruited for two 
months, to be returned in three months; that there 
were fifteen 1Joys with whom no communication could 
he ett'ected, and \V hen the interpreter who was provided 
attempted to communicate with them he failed to do so. 

"Then what happened: He said, 'I wish you to 
return to the 'l~orest King,' ~tnd ask each boy one 
question, namely-if they are willing to go to Q.ueens­
land for the full term of three years~ 

"Did you return on board the .ship r I did. 
" 'VhO \Vent with you? I was by myself then. 
'''V hat did you do then on board-whom did you see? 

The Government agent, tlw- captain, .Mr . .Jfa®";trlane, 
and IJieutenants Torlesse and Brnce "\Vere all on deck 
with the boys. 

"And you went up to them P I went up to them. 
" "\Vhat did you ask r I cnlled each boy by name. 
(• How did you do .so? The boys were on deck. 

told the Government agent I was going to call them 
again. I called each boy by name and he en me forward. 
I then put the qnestion through .Jerr)' to them. 'Are 
you willing to g·o to Queensland for three years P' 

·' Did you use ::\ir.1:Iacfarlane as an assistant behveen 
yon and .Jerry on that occasion r Yt;s; I think so. 'rhe 
Cxamlnation was held in a similar manner, exactly as 
on the previous occasion. 

" And you asked each boy, 'Are you \Yilllng to go to 
Queens laud for three years?' Yes; and I took down 
the answer of C'lCh boy in writing ~~t the time. 

""\\'hat nnswcrs llid you geL!-' Pive boj'S ont of those 
I wa~ a.ble to communicate with-I tllinl\: it is flve.­
[Paprrs handed to witness,] 

" \Vhat is that paper r That is the paper with the 
answers of each bO\' on it. [Exhibit No. 6.] 

·' ~ow, what arC the an,,wers P 'fhe information l 
took down was-The first four called there was no 
interprete1· for. 

"'Yhere were they from r 'l'hl'ee from Xew Guineft 
and one from Perguson Ish1nd. 

'' "rere those four out, ot'the five? Four out of the 
five which Oharlie w .s orig-inally unable to communi· 
cate with. 

" Did Char lie attempt to speak to them on the second 
occasion; did you nse him at all on the second oe('n~ 
sion r I cannot remember. I think so. lie was there 
at the time 1Ve were unable to eommunicatt-, 'vith him 
hy any mean~ on the ship. 

"And the next bov P The next boy I have was from 
.N"ormn.nby Island. ire deelined to go for three years. 

" 1Yhat Wa.'5 his number? I could tell you his name, 
bnt I did not take the nmnbers dmvn. ~ 

"1Yhnt nmnber of boys were ·willing to go for three 
years? 1-'!vc. 

,, And the remainder? rrhe:r declined-those we 
W<1re ablA to cmnmu>~kate with. 

" Did they say they were willing to go for any time 
at all~ Some said they 'vere willing to go for one year; 
and a f(~W said they were \Yilling to go for two years 

""''as th~t all von did then? I then returned to the 
'~winger,' and r8ported the result. 

"-what did you saY? I said I had examined the 
boys, and, of tflOse we were able to communicate with, 
all but 1ivu were unwilling to go to Queensland tor three 
y,·ars. He then requested me to make a report in writ­
ing." 

Now, sir, what conld a good and honest m01n 
have done but that? Yet an attempt has been 
made to vilify Mr. Milman for this. He has 
been accused of giving false information. These 
statements were made to l\Ir. Milman, and he 
could not ascertain whether thev were true or 
false. More than that, the statements having 
been made to him it was his simple duty, as 
much as it is the duty of any man to tell the 
truth or to keep his word, to report the matter 
to the captain of the ''Swinger." Mr. Milman 
reported the matter to Captain JIIIarx, in writing, 
as follows :-

"I have the honour to report to you, having been 
instructed by the Q.nez·nsland Government to inl1nire 
into the manner the labour trade is carried on in these 
·waters, thaL this day I boarded the recruiting schooner 
'Forest King,' of Brisbane, at this place, and with the 
assistance of the native teacher Jerry, "\Vho acted as 
interpreler, and \Vas kindly lout by :;.nr. )lncfar1ane for 
the purpose, I ascertained that, out of the thirty.nine 
natives on board, Hve natives from Cape Ducie (on the 
eoast or Xew Guinea) and from the adjacent islands of 
Pcrgn..,on and l\~ormanby did not eomprehend the nature 
of their agreements, being unable to communicate witL. 
anyone on board and there haYillg been no interpreter 
"\vho could understand their langnage when they wer­
l'ecruitcd, the so-called interpreter "\vho \Yas shipped 
for the pnrvose at Teste Island, sta-ting to me, in the 
11rescnce of I1ieutenant Torle~se. Sub-Uontenant Brace, 
and Jir. I\Iacfarlane. that he could not talk to them or 
make them understand. Of the balance, an (With the 
exception of fonrteeu recruited from Snd-Est) stated 



Seizure of the [6 N OV:)<MBER.] "Forest King." 1503 

they were engaged for two months, and to be returned 
the third month. These recruits were all spoken to 
separately. The natives from Sud-Est I was unable to 
communicate with at all, there being no interpreter for 
them on board, though I am informed that a competent 
interpreter had been on board when they were recruited, 
but had since run away. On further inquiry with the 
natives that I was able to communicate with (through 
Jeny), I found that only five were willing to go for the 
full term of three years. and consider it very doubtful 
if they fully understood what they \Yere agreeing to, 
the hRlance of them point hlauk declining to go for the 
term it was professed they had agreed to serve. UndPr 
the~e circnmstauees, I am of opinion that tl1ese na.tives 
lutve been recruited contrary to the regnl:Ltions of the 
Pacific Island labour trade, and have the honour to draw 
your a-ttention to t.he above-8tated facts." 
That was Mr. Milmari's action. ~ othing that 
happened afterw a,rds has anything whatever to 
do with the matter. Let us now see what 
Captain Marx R:1id. 

The HoN. Sm T. MaiL WRAITH: This is 
rather a mean thing-obstn1cting on a private 
1netnbers' night. 

The PHE:\UER: The hon. member ;ay~ it is 
a mean thing to obstruct on a private members' 
night! I intend that the House and country 
shall know the real nature of this transactio11, 
""nd will sit here until to·morrow morning, if 
necessary, to discuss the subject. \Ve are deter­
mined to settle the matter, and hav" it out. I 
will, however, make as short a speech as I can. 
As yet, I hftve only spoken half an honr, and two 
hours were occupied by the hon. member who 
moved the motion. I have not been guilty of 
any meanness in the sentiments I have uttered, 
or will, in anything I am to utter. I hope the 
leader of the Opposition will be able to say as 
much when he sits down. 

The HoN. Sm T. MciLWRAITH: Do not 
get angry. 

The PRE~UER : The hon. member seems to 
be getting into a very uncomfortable frame of 
mind. I have a very plain story to tell, and the 
telling of it will not take Yery long. I simply 
want to put the matter fairly before the country. 
I do not me"n that the hon. member for Fassifern 
put it unfairly ; but the hon. member has missed 
the point altogether, as I will show directly. He 
asserts one thing, and I am talking ftbout some­
thing else-something quite different. The hon. 
member's speech was really irrelevant to the 
que,tion before the House. And, now, what did 
Captain Marx say?-

,At the time that the licutena.nt and sub-lieutenant 
weut on board the · l<1orcst King,' the Rev. :J.:Ir. }inc­
farlane; l\fr. :J:Iilman, police magistrate of Cooktown; 
and a mission teacher named ',Terry.' lVcre on board the 
'Swinger.' also one other Paeitic Islander; }fr. 1Iac­
farlane has his head-quarters of the mission at Port 
l\foresby, Xew Guinea; his head station is at Dinner 
Island; 'Jerry' is a mission teaeher of 'l'este Island, 
under :VIr. :\Iacfarlane's supcryision; JetTY is a native of 
Lifu; 11r. ~:Iacfarlane has been stationed in th..ose parts 
ten or twelve years I think; ~fr. :Jlaefarlane is able to 
speak some of the native dialects or languages; the 
la,nguages of the islands are entirely distinct; JetTy 
can, I believe, speak more than one of the dia1ects; I 
believe so from observing· him about a fortnight he was 
with me aeting as. interpreter; after reeeiving a reply 
that the papers were all right, I recalled the boat, and 
sent Messrs. MacfarlanP, 1\:lilman, and Jerry on board." 

:iVIr. Milman, you see, was acting at the request 
of Captain Marx-
H rl,orlesse and Brnce remained on board the • Forest 
King'; after a time l\Ir. l\Iihna..n returned, and stated to 
me that there were live natives with whom he eonld not 
commnnicate at all, the interpreter produced by the 
ca.ptaiu of the 'Forest King' being unable to cmn­
mnnicnte with them, and also that Jeny our inter­
preter was also una .. ble to speak to thCm ; that he 
had questioned all the other labourers except four­
teen from Snd-l~st, the interpreter for whom hacl 
run aWlLy, and that they all stated that they were 
engaged for t'vo months, to be returned the third 
nwnth; I then requester! )ir. J.Iilman to return 
on board the 'Forest King ' and question each 

individual labourer whether they were willlng to go 
to Queensland for three years ; J.1r. ~filman went to 
the 'Forest King'; after some time Mr. Jiiilman re­
turned with Jlr. Torlcsse and Jfr. 1'Iacfarlane, and they 
stated to me that nearly the "\Vhole of the recruits 
declined to go for three years, that some were willing to 
go for two years, an11 others for various less periods ; he 
statPd on the second occasion that he was not able to 
communicate wirh the fourteen men from Sud-Est and 
the five men whom he had 1wevionsly found that there 
was no interpreter for; I then considered the matter 
until about 7 o'f>lock; the communication I reeeived in 
tlle first instance vNIS verbal, aud I requested it to be 
put in writing, I also !'law the boardmg-book of .:\Ir. 
Torlesse and ::\Ir. Jlacfarlane; Mr. ::\Incf~Lrlane "aJd 
exactly the same aR Mr. Jiilrmm, and J'lr. •rorlessc said 
exactly the same as 11r. 3Iilman and .1Ir. 1\'Iacfarlane." 

Now, sir, that is the statement of Captain Marx. 
iVIr. :iVIilman, ::Yir. IVIacffLrlane, and :iVIr. Torlesse, 
three gentlemen of unirnpeachfLble honour and 
character, notwithstanding all the ftttacks made 
on them in this House and out of it, informed 
the captain of the " Swinger" that after using 
the best means in their power to obtain infor­
mation they fonnd recruits on bemrd the "Forest 
King " who did not understand their agree­
ments. \Vhat, then, was Captftin l\Iarx to do? 
He hart only one duty under such circumstances­
to take possession of the ship. He was simply 
acting on his instrnctionf.', I will venture to go 
farther, and Sfty that if Mr. Milnmn had not 
given the information tu Captain l\'Iarx he would 
have deserved di8Illissal and would probably 
have got it ; and that if Captain Marx had not 
seized the "Forest King," if he had not been 
dismissed he would have been very severely repri­
manded, and left unemployed for a, considerable 
time. These are thPcircum,tances of the seizure of 
the "Fore:4t King," and whatever took place 
afterwards does not in the least degree increase or 
diminish the responsibility of the Government. 
These are the facts, and it is upon these facts that 
the question must be determined. The proceed­
ings before the select committee had no rele­
vancy whatever. What did they do? They did 
not inquire into the que,tion as to whether upon the 
facts prE•,ented to him Captain Marx was justified 
in seizing the ":Forest King," but whether 1'\ir. 
Hodg.son and his servants knew of any irregnlarity. 
They are two different questions. What the hon. 
member endeavoured elaborately to prove was 
that :iVIr. Hodgson and his servftnts were in­
nocent. I do not dispute that for a moment. 
They thought the islanders understood the nature 
of their engagement, and Captain Marx did not. 
But the real facts have nothing to do with the 
merits of the seizure. Each set of persons acted 
on the. information fLS it was presented to 
them. The captain of the" Forest King," when 
informed by the intervreters that the men 
understood the nature of their engagement, 
took them on board; and for that I do not 
blame him. But the men did not understand 
the nature of their engagement, and when that 
was pointed out to Captain :iVIarx his duty Wfts 
plain-it was to seize the ship. 'rhe hem. wem­
ber endeavoured to show that there was a con­
tradiction between the evidence of those 
witn&gses and the evidence given before the 
Royal Commission; but there was no contra­
diction at all. The hem. member also commented 
rather severely on the answer given by l'IIr. 
Rose, that he thought the evidence of the 
Islanders was the be•t possible evidence. I 
would correct that by saying that it was the 
only p<>ssible evidence. \Vhen it is stated that, 
according to t.he eYidence, the men did not 
understand the nature of their engagements, the 
hon. member thought he had a very pertinent 
answer by saying, "Here is a number of persons 
who thought they did." It does not matter that 
those persons thought the men understood the 
nature of their engagement except so far as 
it snved the ship from forfeiture. Otherwise 
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it i.• psrfectly irrelevant. The question the 
hnn. member went into before the select com­
mittee was, not whether the men understood 
the nature of their engagement, but whether 
the officers of the " l<'orest King " thought 
they did. I admit that there is no evidence to 
show that they did not think so. But that is no 
answer to the charge of having improperly taken 
away men from their homes. That they 
honestly believed they were doing right is an 
answer to the forfeiture of the ship, and that 
is all. As to the probability of the men under­
standing the nature of their engagement~that 
they were going to Queensland for three years, 
and were to receive £6 a year, and work on sugar 
plantations, I would as soon believe~and I form 
my belief from my knowledge of human nature 
and of the world~ I would as soon believe thc<t 
they understood the 47th proposition of the first 
book of Euclid. I have no more doubt of that 
than I have of my own ~xistence. The men were 
from a hitherto untried part of ]'\ ew Guinea; 
they knew nothing about time or money, and 
yet the hon. member would have the House 
believe that they under3tood all about it~ 
where they were going, what were they to do, 
for how long·, and how much they were to 
receive. On the facts I have not the slightest 
doubt that these men did not understand 
anything of the kind. I will call attention 
to one curiou::; fact : the recruiting agAnt and 
the Government agent of the "Ji-,m·est King'' 
do not agree as to the manner in which the 
time was explained to those men. The 
Government agent says he used to put out 
thirty-six matches or other articles to indicate 
three years ; and the recruiting agent said he did 
not do anything of the kind. I do not accuse, 
nor is it at all necessary to accuse, anyone on 
board the "Forest King'' of bad faith; for that 
is not the question before us. The claim of :i\Ir. 
Hodgson is that the vessel was wrongly seized, 
and that the Government are responsible for it. 
I have pointed 011t the circumstances under 
which she was seized, and I say that any man in 
the position of Mr. Milman would have done 
exactly what he did. For Mr. Hodgson I am 
sincerely sorry, but it does not follow that this 
Government is bound to compensate him for it. 
The Chief Justice pointed out that he could give 
no damages. He said :~ 

"uvon this point alone-the proved good faith of the 
defendants, without referenee to the proof of actual 
consent-the case for the Crmvn has failed. 'fhere is 
fairly satisfactory evidence that the oflicers of the 
'.ForPst King' a.~ted in good faith, l)elieving the natives 
fairly recrmted and consenting parties to theirremoval 
to Queensland. Nevertheless, the ci;cumstances llre­
sented to Captain )farx, on the report of :Jir. 1\IHman. 
were such as to raise a reasonable ground of suspicion, 
and to justify the s8izure and detention. T·he Imperial 
offic;f~r being justified, it follo,vs in this particular case, 
without la.ying down any absolute rule as to damages in 
future cases, that there eau be no damages against the 
Crown in respect of his act." 

The HoN. SIR T. M oiL WHAITH: That is 
on the report of Mr. Milman. 

The PREMIER: Mr. Milman told Captain 
Marx the exact truth. 

The HoN. SIR T. MciLWHAITH: No; he 
did not. 

The PHEIVIIER: Re did ; he told him the 
exact truth. Is that the point the hon. member 
is going to take? Does he intend to say that 
because the information given to Mr. Milman to 
Captain Marx in good faith was not correct, 
therefore Mr. Milman is a. liar? Mr. l\Iilman 
only told Captain Marx what he saw and heard. 
There is no suggestion made by anyone but the 
hon. member opposite, that Mr. Milman told 
Captain Marx anything but what he actually 
saw and heard, and he was corroborated by lHr. 
l\lacfarlane. The hon. member has also charac-

terised him as a liar, I know, but his reputation 
stands higher throughout the civilisecl world than 
that of the hem. member. J\Ir. J:I:Iacfarlane told 
Captain Marx exactly what Mr. J\Iilman had 
told him. 

The HoN. SIR T. MciL\VRAITH : I say 
that what Mr. Milman told Captain J:I:Iarx was 
false. 

The PREMIER : I do not know in what 
senile the hon. member uses words; we shall have 
to get that new dictionary of his. Does he mean 
that J\Ir. Nlilman's information turned out to be 
incorTPct ? Because that is not the meaning of 
" false. e, The hon. member is playing with 
wordR. The inforn1ation was given to Captain 
Marx, not only by Mr. Milman nnd ::\fr. l\Iacfar­
lane, but also by Mr. Tnrlesse and 1\Ir. Bruce, 
all independent honourable men ; and because of 
that the Chief ,J nstice held that the seizure and 
detention of the vessel were j•Jstified. That being 
so-if <ell those persons were acting lawfully and 
properly~where does the claim for compensation 
come in. I have, as briefly as I could, pointed 
out the real nature of the questions raised upon 
thi' matter. 

Mr. BLACK: Mr. Speakm·,~I beg to call 
your attention to the state of the House. 

Quorum formed. 
The PREMIER: I have, ns briefly as I could, 

pointed out the real nature of the question raised 
upon this matter-that is, whether the seizure of 
the "J!'ore'"t King" under the circumstances as 
they then existed, was judifiable. I have en­
deavoured to point out that nothing subsequently 
discovered can make any difference. Those 
were the facts as they were represented to the 
captain of the "Swinger," and upon them his 
action was right. Mr. :Milman, in giving the 
information he had, only did his duty, and he was 
confirmed by l\Ir. JYiacfarlane. That being so, 
although Mr. Hodgson sustained a loss~for 
which I am very sorry- no claim can be made 
against this Government. If a claim should be 
made against the Admiralty it is a matter for 
them to consider ; but the decision of the 
Supreme Court shows that, although the Kid­
napping Act expressly provides for indemni­
fication being 1nade in Cl> case of wrongful 
seizure, this seizure was not wrongful. Hon. 
members may very fairly differ in opinion 
upon the merits of the case. Some hem. members 
may think that these men did understand the 
nature of their agreen1ents. For n1y OViln part, 
I am satisfied they did not, though, as I say, 
some men may very fairly hold a different opinion. 
But what I have endeavoured to point out is that 
all that is quite irrelevant to the question now 
before the House. The formal question is as to 
whether we shall adopt the findings of the 
committee. That the allegations and state­
ments of the petition were nof substantiated there 
can be no difference of opinion. Tt is stated in 
the petition that the seizure was made at the 
express instance and instigation of Mr. Milman; 
of that there is absolutely no evidence. The only 
evidence is that Mr. Milman reported to Captain 
J:I:Iarx what he had discovered, and Mr. Macfarlane 
and Lieutenants Bruce and Torlesse corroborated 
what he said. It was not made at the instiga­
tion of Mr. Milman. The petition not only says 
that the seizure was made at the instigation 
of Mr. Milman, but that it was made whilst he 
was "engaged in the performance of duties on 
behalf of the Queensland Gov•crnrnent, but with­
out any lawful or just cause." I have pointed 
out on the facts of the case, which are uncontra­
dicted, that he was not engaged in the perform­
ance of duties for the Government in the sense 
in which the words are us eel, and that there 
wa::; a lawful and just cause, and that this 
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was found by the Vice-Admiralty Court; so 
that the statements contained in the petition 
are not true. Under these circumstances I 
submit that we cannot, as sensible men, adopt the 
findings and report of the selPct committee. I do 
not blame the select committee for their finding. 
They were possibly inexperienced in the duties 
of select committees. They did not get all the 
evidence they might have got, as I have pointed 
out, although there were means at their dis­
posal to obtain further evidence. That this House 
should be asked to affirm that this seiznre was 
;nade at the instigation of :Mr. :Yiilman, that the 
rslanders engagecl undm·stood the nature of their 
agreements, and that :\fr. Hodgson, in con­
sequence of the seizure of his vessel, suffered 
a loss of £3,000, are three propositions which 
there is no evidence to sup]Jort, and I therefore 
hope that the House will decline to affirm them. 

Mr. LU:'.1LEY HILL said: ~fr. Speaker,-­
The House )ms listened this evening 'Vith very 
great atteutrou to two very able and exh1mstive 
speec~es delivered from two clinmetrically oppo­
srte views-each ably expncssed, and with 1m 
equal amount of interest and feeling. I my,elf 
do not take such an extreme view as either of the 
speakers I have liiltened to. I hilve carefully 
~tudi.ed this case through all its stag·es. I looke;l 
Into It long before eor11ing into thiR House, and 
~nade up 1ny 1nind as to \V hat I was goin.g· to do, 
JUSt as I SU]>]JOSe every member of the House has 
made up his mind one wo,y or the other '"s to 
how he is going to vote upon this question. 
All the eloquence in the world will not shift anv 
one of them any more than the able speeches ··r 
have heard this evening luwe moved me from 
the opinion I have formed after reading care­
fully through the evidence taken by the Roval 
Commission, by the select committee, aml 
also the evidence taken in the cac.,, by the 
Supreme Court. I have read all the evi­
dence carefully, and the conclusion I came 
to in my own mind was that the correct tbirw 
in this case to do is to adopt a middle cmm;e. Y 
do not believe that this report is wholly right. 
~ cannot bring myself to vote for it. I think, 
m making a report like this which the select 
committee have presented to the House, they 
have submitted a claim to be considered 
almost infallible. I think it is quite open 
to exception that some points in the re­
port have not been clearly established. It 
reminds me of a time more than twenty year.> 
ag-o, when I was first admitted t.1 the Commission 
of the Peace, a very old 'md wise friend of mine, 
a legal 1na.n, gave me this advice-" \Yhen you 
give your judgment do not give your reasons· for 
your judgment. Your judgment will probably 
be right if you exercise an intelligent and 
connnon-sense vie\v of the UH'ttter, but your 
reasons for that judgment may be utter] v 
'vrong." I believe that was sound ad vie*":, ttnCl 
it was ad vie@ I acted on ; and I believe I should 
have erred if I had refrained from taking 
advantage of it. I believe that to a certain 
extPnt this committee have erred in that 
direction; they have f(iven too mnch to the 
House. I do not think they were entirely 
right, nor do I think that the commissioners 
appointed to inCJuire into the Pacific Island trade 
were entirely right in all their conclusions but 
there is a great deal of right !in both of them, 
and I believe there is substantial good in both 
of them. I believe that legally, in this case­
to which I intend to confine myself and to be as 
brief as possible-:\Ir. Hodgson has le>.;ally not a 
claim to a single farthing upon thi.s House. There 
is no doubt whatever npon that point in my mind, 
hut equitably I consider, after reviewing the 
position, that J\Ir. Hodgson has a claim ; I 
consider, myself, that there can he no don bt 
in any intelligent man's mind who follows the 
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case through with care and thought, that Mr. 
Hodgson h11s suffered a loss at the instigation 
of a man who was not actually authorised to 
"et in the position of a representative of the 
Queensland Government, but who, nevertheless, 
ostensibly and apparently did. He had no right 
to do it-his own instructions expressly forbade 
him to do it-but ostensibly he did appear as a 
representative of the Queenslaml Government. 
Ko man in this Committee, and I do not 
think that even the Premier, would tell me 
that Captain :Marx woulcl have seized that 
ship had it not heen for the representations 
of :VIr. l\1ilrnan. The Premier gilve us rather 
a strained illustration when he asked the question 
that supposing a senant of his gave information 
to the police, by which a man was illegally 
arrested in the street and lodged ingaolonacharge 
which tnrned out to be false, would the plaintiff 
have reco\use against the Premier himself? Of 
course certainly not, but I say this: that if I give 
infonnntion to a policmnan and instruct hiln to 
arrest a man on a charge that turns out to be 
f"lse, that nmn has a very gnod action for 
damages against 1ue, a.nd 1night go for n1e at 
oncf, and rw doubt would. That, I say, is the 
position here, becau;:;e l\Ir. l\Iihnan, to a certain 
extent, thoug·h without authority, was ostensibly 
the representative of the Queensland Government. 
He did that without a clnubt. I have no doubt 
he did it, but that he did it thmugh any of the 
wicked c>tt'"es <tlleged, or likely tn be alleged by 
some hon. members, I do not believe. I think 
it was simply an <cct of incliscretion. He is not 
the most discreet of indivicluals. I myself can 
speak feelinf(ly, llecanse I have suffered by his 
indi::;crction. It was through hiR indiscretion 
tlvtt 800 allditional ballot-pa]Jers were furnished 
which enalJied the fraud to be perpetrated <tt 
C>tliforni"' G-ully and Halpin's. I know that 
Mr. !IIilrnan did that inadvertently, because he 
told me some time before the polling, which 
enabled me to wire to my committee to look out 
for frauds, th11t the presiding officer at Herber­
ton had got possession of 800 ballot-papers, and 
warned them to watch California Gully and 
Halpin's; but the committee were remiss and 
consequently the frauds were perpetrated. 
Therefore I know the sort of indiscretions Mr. 
~Iilman is likely to commit, but I acquit him 
wholly of any dishonesty in the matter. I am 
satisfi~d that he had no bad motive whatever, 
and that he was a-cting simply accorc-ling to the 
best of his intelligence and the best of his lights. 
He deemed it incumbent upon him, from con­
scientiow; utoti ve::;, to rnake the representations 
he die! to Captain 1\farx, ancl upon those 
representations the Vt"'3sel Wtts seized. I am 
therefore decidedly of opinion that, equitably, 
l\lr. Hodg:-:;on has a clairr1 nron this HousB and 
U}lll!l the conntry. I consider it my bound en duty 
in my place in this Hou.,e to guard with almost 
exceHsive vigilance the public purse, in the inte­
rests of the taxpayers of the colony; hut I do 
think that in a case where it appears plainly that 
<tn individual citizen of the State has suffered loss 
and '~.rrong through the action-unintentional, 
ill-advised though it may have been, officious 
or anything else that hon. members may choose 
to stigm<'tise it as being-I say I do think that 
the ta•,payero of the colony, if they were polled 
to a man, would not object in such a case to that 
man bein~· recouped the loss he has sustained. I 
do nc.t belie Ye that 'my man would hesitate for a 
rnmnent in dning ~o ; and it i.s therefore tny in­
tention to n1ove, as an amendn1ent to the report, 
that this House is of opinion that Mr. Samuel 
Hodgson ought to be compensated for the loss 
sustained by him in consequence of the seizure of 
the schooner ''Forest J(ing." 

Question-That all the words after "that" in 
the original motion be omitted, with a view of 
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inserting " this House is of opinion that Mr. 
Samuel Hodgson ought to be compensated for 
the loss sustained by him in consequence of the 
seizure of the schooner ' Forest King,' "-put. 

Mr. DONALDSON said: I am aware, Mr. 
Speaker, that in making reference to the remarks 
of the hon. the Premier this evening I shall be at 
a considerable disadvantage, because he has 
sheltered himself entirely behind legal points. 
But that will not prevent me, sir, in the interests 
of truth and justice, from defending the action 
and finding of our committee after full 
investigation. The Premier states that the 
action of the " Swinger" in taking posses­
sion of the "Forest King" was similar to 
a policeman who might arrest a person for doing 
a wrong. vVhile I admit that the "Swinger" 
was acting very much in that capacity when she 
seized the "Forest King," we must not lose 
sight of the fact that certain information was 
furnished to the capt::tin of that vessel upon 
which he acted. The facts are these-I wish 
to be as brief as possible, and shall not make any 
reference to the earlier part of the voyage. I 
shall commence from the time of the boarding of 
the "Forest King" by Lieutenants Tor!esse and 
Bruce. These officers went on board and made 
an examination and certified that from the 
official log-the Government agent's as well as 
that of the captain's-everything was in order. 
Some time afterwards Mr. Milman and Mr. 
lYiacfarlane went on board and made an examina­
tion of the boys, and notwithstanding that the 
services of interpreters were offered to them 
they refused to take those interpreters, and 
acted entirely from the evidence of their own 
interpreters. Upon that they based a report, 
and upon that report the ship was seized. 
Anyone who reads the evidence that was given 
by ::VIr. Milman or by Captain Marx cannot help 
coming to the conclusion that they acted hastily 
in the matter and not after a proper investigation. 
It has also been stated that the committee did 
not go suff.ciently into the case and try and get 
the evidence of all the parties. We were twitted 
with the fact that we did not summon Mr. 
Milman before the committee for the purpose 
of getting his evidence, but had we done 
that could we have received one tittle more 
evidence than he gave before the court, where he 
was thoroughly examined upon every point 
brought forward on both sides by most eminent 
counsel? I think we should only have been in­
curring extra expense which would have served 
no useful purvose whatever if we had brought hirn 
to Brisbane, seeing that all the e;·idence that he 
could give had been already given. We con­
sidered that at the time. vV e considered every 
word of the evidence he had given before fram­
ing our report, and came to the conclusion that 
it was entirely unnecessary to bring him here. 
Bnt, sir, we acted in an entirely different way 
with regard to gentlemen within our reach. 
We took the opportunity of examining Mr. 
Rose, a gentleman who was connected with the 
Commission, and we wished to have the services 
of Mr. Buckland, but he took advantage of his 
privileges as a member of this House and refused 
to give evidence before us. Otherwise we should 
have had a little more information and--

Mr. BUCKLAND : I was never summoned. 
Mr. DONALDSON: You refused, neverthe-

less. You sent word, and admitted it last 
night, to the effect that you would not cam€. 

Mr. BUCKLAND: I sent no message. 
Mr. DONALDSON: Last night, Mr. Speaker, 

in reply to an interjection from me in this House, 
the hon. member stated that even if he had been 
summoned it was not his intention to attend the 
committee. 

:\fr. BUCKLAND : I never said so. Hefer 
to Hansa1·d. 

Mr. DONALDSON : It is omitted from 
Hmvsard, but I can appeal tu hon. members 
who he8.rd the hon. member. 

l\lr. BUCKLAND: I never said so. 
HONOUHARI,E MEMBEHS : Chair ! 
1Yir. DONALDSON: The hon. the Premier 

also stated that the f1uestions put were of a. most 
objectionable nature and could not be replred to 
by Mr. Rose, and I ask~d him twi_ce to state 
any one question to whwh he obJected, but 
he did not take anv notice of my remark. 
Now the Premier has "t8.ken the trouble to read 
the e'vidence which has been given by Mr. Mil­
man before the Vice-Admiralty Court. That 
may be information to many hon. 1_nernbers, but 
it was no information to the committee, because 
they had consinered it before. I shall ta]<e the 
opportunity of reading the whole of the eVIdence 
given by Mr. Rose before the committee, and I 
will leave it to hon. members to say whether 
they consider one of the questions that were put 
to him were improperly put. I can say truth­
fully that the questions put to ~Ir. Hose were put 
with the full intention of eliciting the truth and 
nothing more. The examination of Mr. Rose is 
to this effect :-

n 937. By the Chairman: Yon 'verc one of the mem­
bers, )fr. itose, of the Royal Commission to inqnire into 
the obtaining of these islanders r I was. . 

'' 9:18. In holding your inquiries, did you exanune 
anYone but the islanders-the recruits~ Yes; the in-
spectors at }iackay, Townsville, and Ingham. . 

•· :.'\Ir. Power aske<l if the committee vmre gomg to 
travel outside the '.Forest King'~ 

"'l~he Chairman said he tllonght not. 
"9:39. Bv the Chairman: You had to examine the 

islanders ihrouO'h interpreters in every case, ::\Ir. Rose? 
Yes ; in al::nost' every case. It is mentioned in the 
report when they were examined by means of_ inter­
preters and through what interpreters; and, 1f not, 
that also is mentioned. 

"910. ·what were the names of the interpreters that 
you had when you wm·e exa.I_nining the r~cruits by the 
'l~m·est King'!-' Cago, l'oiam1na, and Gatm. 

"941. Had those men had any exverience before as 
interpreters, Mr. Rose r Cago had; Toiamina also had 
-at any rate, I 'vas informed he had been ?roug~lt 
dmvn here as an interpreter, and was examined In 
the court; Gatin we found at Hamleigh Plantation, 
Herbert River. 

"!:-lt2. Did they strike you as being me~ of f~ir intelli­
gence as interpreters~ Cago and Gat1n d1d; Oago 
e:.;pecially; he had been a pnpil of and had ~een trained 
by either Mr. Jl<tefarlane him:~clf or one of lns teachers. 
~" 943. Could they speak English well? Oago spoke 

English pretty well. Toiamina, could not do so, nor 
could Gatin. \Ve used Toiamina and Gatiu as second 
interpreters. 

"94t. You appear to have examined, I think, 480 of 
those islanders altogethe1·? Yes. 

"945. In thirty sittings? I dare say. . 
"946. I suppose it became almost a formal tlnng 

before ron got through them-the same repetition of 
what had gone before- you just had to--: I do not 
understand. 

"917. You had to rely upon what an interpreter 
said in each ease. b1rgely 7· ·wen; excmse me a moment. 
[Perusing the lteport of the Royal Commission.] You 
will find on paragraph 12 of our l1oport, page 18 :-

" ' As a matter of course we \vere mainly dependent 
in the fulfilment of our commission upon the services 
of interpreters. Sometimes the eviL~ence had t_o be 
filtered, so to speak, through the medium of two Inter­
preters. 

"' 'rhat was the case with several of the · Porest King' 
bovs. Questions were put to Cago, and translated by 
Ca.'go to (~atin, and pnt by Gat1n to the islanders-the 
Sud-Est islanders. Cago could not talk Sud-}Jst. 

·· 'But as we gained experience during the inquiry 
we also found ma.ny checks by which to te5'!t their 
relbtbility; such as familiarity with the manner of 
witnesses the methods of the interpreters, and the 
private n~e of voeabularies compiled by the witnesses 
themselves of their different languages.' 

"And so on. As we went on I took, myself, and com­
piled little vocabularies to test the interpreters. As a 
rnatter of ff!,ot, on seven~! occasions I did, by the use of 
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those voc1.bularies-I do not know whether it was the 
case of the ' Forest King' boys or not, hut I was able 
to test thoroughly the reliability of the interpreters. 

"948. You got at the truth through them r I am 
:perfectly certain in my own mind that we got at the 
truth. I may say I looked over, this morning, the 
private notes that I took through the inquiry, with 
comments in the margin on the behaviour of the boys 
themselves and the manner in which the interpreters 
were doing their work: and, so far as the 'l~orest King' 
boys were concerned, I had five or six different entries 
to the effect that I was perfectly 8atisfied as to the 
trnthfnlnes" of the statements being made. 

"948. By the interpreters' And the boys. 
"950. You state, l\ir. Rose. in your report, page 19, 

clause 16, as follows :-
" '(2. l Even under the mo~t favourable circumstances 

the natives had very little conception of the real 
purpose for which thev were invited on board or 
engaged to go in the ship to Queensland. 

"' rrhat purpose ought to have been explained on 
three separate occasions-first. by the reerui.\.ing :tgcnt 
through his interpreter, and that in the presence of the 
Government agent who was bound to be in the covering 
boat-supposing the recruiting wa.<;;;; being condneted 
from the beach; second, by the G-overnment agent 
when on shipboarU he was entering the names of the 
recruits in his log; third, hy the Polynesian inspeetors 
ut the port of arrivalln the colonv. 

" 'You are aware that it ha~ ~lpJwnred in evidence 
in court that this was constantlY done on board the 
"Forest King" when she was recrniting? I am not 
aware.' 

"951. You would consider that if this had been 
done~if all the+·e precautions had been taken~the 
interpreters employed-the (~overnment ag'ent hr~d 
done his duty r As a matter of fact. 1 hose precautions 
were not taken. At least, that is my impre,sion. 

•· 952. But, as a matter of evidence, they were. It is 
repeated in evidence, and in clocnments written at 
the time. that those precautions and inst.nwtions "\vcre 
carried out and tal{ en? That is a, statement I do not 
admit-I do not acknowledge. 

''953. You do not acknowledge its trntht Rut rou 
do not denv that it is on record? I do not know· t\wt 
it is on recOrd. 

"954. It is on record, repeatedly. It is Olll'e<~ord. 
bnt. you do not believe it. You do not believe they did 
carry out those instructions~ I do not knmv that it is 
on record; but I do know that the evidence brought 
before us showed that those precautions v. ere lwt 
taken. 

"955. But you had no evidence, but the evidence of 
the islanders, ::\Ir. Rose? The best of a.ll evidence. 

"956. Hut those men who were espeeiallyimplicated. 
if there had been any irregularities in the mo!le of 
recruiting, \Vcre not there-were not examined by the 
Commission? The J·eport shows they were not. 

"957. In the sworn evidence before the Vice-Admiralty 
Court and in the logs of the captain, and the n-ovenl­
ment ageut on board the !'hip. it is on re<·ord in 
those docnments. and declared on oa..th in that 
evidence, that those instructions were innLriably eanied 
out-rigidly carried out. You are satisfied from what 
the islanders said that they were not r I am satisfied 
from what the islanders said that the purpose for which 
the islanders were being recruited was not fully 
explained to them, and that they did not understand 
they 'vere coming to Queensland either for three years 
or to 'vork on sugar plantations for that period. 

'· 958. ·well, you state further on, l\Ir. Rose:-
"'At times, no interpreter was carried in the 

recruiting agent's boat':-
This is a general statement,-
' and then, no matter how desirous he might be of 
dealing fairly with the natives in his negotiations for 
their hire he had to depend on signs' :-
And so on. Have you the imprt·,3sion or the recollection, 
Mr. Ltose, that it was ever the case ·wit.h the • Forest 
King.' that the boats carried no interpreters. or is it 
stated in your report!' Turn to page 34 of the Report, 
voyage No. 7:-

" 'The "Fort'st King" left Brisbanaon the 17th }'fay, 
and reached Rossel Island in the Louisiado Archipelago 
or1 the 27th, where an attempt was made to recruit 
without an interpreter. 1.'he Government agent, l\Ir. 
J. Thomp~on, however, 'vr·Jte an official letter to the 
captain, prohibiting recruiting without interpreters. 
The ship then made for Sud-Est and Rrierly Island, 
and at the latter place 1t native named Kasowai was 
engaged as interpreter. l~rom 2nd June till lOth .Tune 
Sud-Ij~st was exploited for recruits, a1td sixteen ~ecured, 
Kasowai, however, telling them that they "·ere to go 
on the ship as b~chc-fle-mer fishers; tl! to go and see 
white man·s plaee, not to work.' 

And so on. If I remember rightly, thare '''ere one or 
two boys who stated that the interpreters made signs to 
them. 

·· !:l59. W'ell. l\lr. Rose. it appears from your Report 
from which von have read, that they had various 
interpreters ii1 the ·Forest Kil1g'..;' recruiting boats? 
Yes. 

'' 95(1. They had various interpreters? Yes. 
"951. 'l'o judge by what you say of the blanders 

when brought b·!fore the Commis:-ion. you con~idered 
that those interlP't"ters deceiv•~d the islanders,-at any 
rate, they deceived the islanders, whether they deceived 
the ofticinls on the 'l''orest King' m· not? Certainly 
they deceived the islanders. It eame ont in theexami· 
nation ot them, especially of the Sud-.f<~st Isla11d boys, 
that the interpreters on board the 'Forest King' 
could not spenl;: Sud-Est One or two or them-'rosi, I 
think, was a remnrkably intelligent lad. Ha said that 
Ch~~rlie. that was one ot' the interpreters, learned Sud­
Est on the voyage to Bris!mne." 
It is very tedious going through the whole of the 
evidence, :\fr. Speaker, but I will still challenge 
the statement of the Premier that there is not a 
single qnestion in the evidence I have read that 
could not be honestly and fairly and straight­
forwardly answered. I do not wish to make any 
accusations against Mr. Rose, but I believe he 
was doing the best he could to support the 
report of the Commission, which he partly com­
pilerl. To one or two of the questions put to 
Mr. Rose, he stated they were hardly fair; but 
the committee endeavoured to elucidate the 
whole trtlth, and find out on what evi­
dence the Commission came to the conclusion 
that those boys had been improperly recruited. 
If we are taxed with having not fully investi­
gated this case hy getting evidence on both sides, 
what mnst the charge he against the Royal 
Commission? Did they, in any case whatever, 
try to secure the evidence of either the Govern­
ment agent, the captain, or the recruiting agent, 
or any one of the crew? No; they did nothing 
of the kind. In every case they only examined 
the islanders, and those islanders were interested 
in getting their liberty. Hence there was a very 
great inducement to them to lie-they framed 
their answers in such a way as to get their 
liberty. Not content with this, the natives were 
cunning enough and intelligent enough to know 
that when they were giving their answers­
probably being put up to it by the interpreter­
they would get their liberty eventually. If the 
Government say they are not responsible for the 
acts of 11r. ::\Iilman, why did they make them­
se! ves responsible, by returning the islanders to 
their islands afterwards? Surely, if any wrong 
has been dune iu recruiting improperly, the 
Government should have taken notice of it. Mr. 
li-lilman had certainly gone a long way out of 
his sphere, and exceeded his duty, when he made 
the report he did, and caused the vessel 
to be seized. \Ve have not a tittle of 
evidence before ns to show that any buy on 
board the ship was improperly recruited. I 
contend that, after full examination, it cannot be 
proved in one solitary case that an islander was 
improperly recruited. If they had taken a little 
more care they would have found that Mr. 
lHilman had reported that some islanders on 
board the "Forest King" fully understood the 
terms of their agreements. It was the opinion 
of Mr. Milman that five islanders understood the 
nature of their agreements. \Vhere are those 
five now ? Returned to their islands ; not one of 
them, when giving his evidence, stated that he had 
eng9ged for more than two or three months, and 
yet the examination had taken place six months 
or eight months after they had been engaged. At 
the trial here, and when they had been rubbing 
again8t ci vilitmtion for sorr1e time, at the exanlina­
tion before :Mr. \Voodward, the Polynesian 
Immigration Agent, not one of them stated 
that he had not been engaged for a longer period. 
The proper interpreters were employed, and 
every precaution was taken in examining them. 
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Notwithstanding that, no complaint was made 
that any boys had been improperly recruitood or 
did not understand the terms of the agreements. 
We had Mr. Woodward's evidence and Mr. 
Rose's, and would have been only too happy 
to have had that of the hon. member for 
Bulimba also, if he had graciously attended 
and given the information within his power. 
He acted ungraciously in not coming 
before the committee; he would have been 
treated honourably and honestly if he had come 
forward. The hon. Premier got very warm in 
his defence of :Yir. Milman. I am sorry that I 
cannot agree with him upon this occasion, 
because I believe that if any official ever exceeded 
his duty Mr. Mi!man did. It was simply from 
his actions that this unfortunate procedure 
has taken place. It has been unfortunate 
in every way, because the only persons 
benefiting by it were the lawyers. I notice 
the hon. Attorney-General smiles ; I do 
not wonder ; he was named for a good 
sum the other day for fees. I would not be 
surprised if we see another seizure of the same 
kind. My contention is, that I think it is far 
better to be a subject of any country than that 
of Queensland. Only a few months ago-some 
time last year-a German resident at one of the 
islands happened to have a few goods destroyed. 
What was the rewlt ? A large sum of money 
was paid to that man. It was paid hastily 
because a statement had been made that a 
British subject-a subject of Queensland-had 
destroyed those goods. 

The PREMIER : It was paid after a full 
inquiry. 

Mr. DONALD£0N: Inquiry has proved 
since that the damages were excessive. 

The PREMIER : No. 
Mr. DONALDSON: Some four or five times 

the amount of damage done was paid ; that has 
been proved since. 

The PREMIER: I have never heard of it. 
Mr. DONALDSON: If I make any misstate­

ment it is unintentional. 
The PREMIER: It has only been asserted in 

this House; there has never been any evidence. 
Mr. DONALDSON: I do not wish to make 

t.ny mistake ; but I heard it upon what I thought 
was good authority. The statement has been 
made that that man was reimbursed by a much 
larger sum than ht> actually lost. It is admitted 
by every member of the committee who has 
honestly inquired into the question that Mr. 
Hodgson suffered a great loss indeed. Surely to 
goodness we can go outside legal difficulties in 
this case, and can fairly take it into our con­
•ideration; and if he has suffered a wrong, 
and that wrong has been brought about in a 
large measure by one of our officers, we 
will only be doing a fair and honourable act in 
reimbursing a portion of that loss. I shall not 
take up the time of the House, because I 
have been informed that several hon. members 
wish to address themselves to this subject 
to-night, and while I have, a£ briefly as I pos­
sibly could, referred to the main facts of the case, 
and some of the facts that caused us to come to 
the conclusion we did, I must state that with 
regard to myself I very reluctantly accepted a 
seat upon that committee. I certainly went 
into the committee with a feeling that Mr. 
Hodgson was bringing forward a claim on this 
House that he was hardly justified in bring­
ing. I had not fully inquired into the 
matter or read up the proceedings of the 
Admiralty Court at that time, and I really 
thought he was seeking to get reimbursed by 
this House for a loss that he had sustained but 

was not fully entitled to, because he had escaped 
through a legal technicality. _That :vas the 
impression I went on that committee With : but 
after a full investigation my opinions greatly 
changed, and I am happy to say that we w~re 
unanimous in arriving at the conclusion we d1d. 
Every member of the committee came to the 
conclusion that Mr. Hodgson had suffered a 
wrong, and that that wrong had been chiefly 
brought about through the over-officiousness of 
Mr. Milman. Had it not been for him the 
seizure would not have taken place, and, having 
no remedy against the British Government for 
having seizecl the ship, it was fairly within our 
province to consider the claim and to award l\fr. 
Hodgson a fair and reasonable amount for the 
loss he had sustained. 

Mr. FOOTE said : Mr. Speaker,-! feel called 
upon to make some remarks in reference to this 
matter, having been a member of the committee. 
I must take exception to the remarks that fell 
from the hon. gentleman who jus~ sat down-;­
that every member of the committee was m 
accord with the report brought up by it. I 
was not present at the time the report was 
brought up-no doubt I ought to have been, 
but when I went on to that committee it 
was my intention to do the best I could-· 
in my own mind, and so far as my liE;hts 
went-to arrive at a satisfactory conclusiOn. 
I may say that I was somewhat disappointed. 
I was nisappointed at the manner in which the 
inquiry was conducted. I have n0 desire to take 
exception to the manner in which the proceed­
ings were carried on, as the committee had a 
right to conduct the inquiry on their own prin­
ciples ; but in my opinion the onus of proof 
should have lain on the petitioner. Therefore, 
when I saw the chairman place himself in the 
position of counsel, and observed that he was 
furnished with several sheets of foolscap con­
taining a number of questions in writing, ~he 
circumstance appeared to me very suggest! ve 
and my mind became prejudiced. I thought 
the inquiry was not a fair one, and the h~n. 
member for Fassifern will do me the justiCe 
to say that, after the first morning I was pre­
sent, 'I mentioned to him my belief that he 
was hardly pursuing the right course. I sug­
gested that he was taking up a wrong position in 
the matter. He, however, made no reply. I 
attended again once or twice, but I could not 
dispel the prejudice from my mind with regard 
to the position the chairman had assmped, 
which, as far as he knew, was perfectly nght. 
The hon. member has his opinion and I have 
mine. However, my mind was very much pre­
judiced, and I may say that I am not in accord 
with the report brought up by the committee; 
but I have tried to do my duty in the matter. 

Mr. DONALDSON: How many meetings 
did you atten<l.? 

Mr. FOOTE : I think about three. 
Mr. DONALDSON: You only attended two, 

and there was nothing done at one of those 
meetings. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: The hon. m€mber was asleep 
all the time. 

Mr. FOOTE : I was not asleep on any occa­
sion ; but when I saw the leading manner in 
which the questions were put I looked upon ~he 
inquiry as a were farce. That is the conclusiOn 
I have come to, and anyone who reads the evi­
dence given bef<,re the committee will see that 
the questions were leading questions, and that 
oftentimes the answer was put into the mouth of 
the witness. The hon. member for Fassifern 
says I was asleep. I was not_ asleep on that 
oc'casion or any other; and if hon. gentlemen will 
look at the evidence ~tnd see the questions I 
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asked, they will find that they were quite in 
accord with the bu"iness that was before the 
committee. At least, I think so. I should 
not have referred to my departure from the 
committee had the matter not been men­
tioned bv hon. members. Both the mover of 
the moti.on and the hon. member for vVarrego 
said that all the members of the committee were 
in accord. vV ell, it devolves upon me to state 
that it is not the case. I am the exception. I 
am not going through the evidence, ><s hon. 
gentlemen who have preceded me have doneth>tt 
to a very considerable extent, and because I 
believe that every member of this House has 
read the evidence for himself, and that it is 
by no means necessary for me to read it 
to the House. I wish, however, to make a 
few remarks on one or two points. The 
first point is as to what took place after the 
seizure of the vessel. The events up to that 
time have been discussed by hon. membeTs who 
have already spoken. It is very suggestive that 
after the vessel had been seized Captain Dickson 
arranged to navigate her to the port of Brisbane 
when he was so directed. But the ship seems to 
have become very much in disorder. I presume 
that is not to be wondered at under the circum­
stances. But it appears that the boys, instead of 
being kept down below, as usual, were allowed 
to come on deck, and it was in evidence that a 
strenuous effort had been made to show that 
Jerry incited them to jump overboard. 

Mr. DONALDSON: I rise to a point of order. 
The hon. member is not stating the facts accord­
ing to the evidence. No evidence c><me before 
the committee that the boys were not previously 
allowed on deck. 

The SPEAKER: Wh><t is the voint of order 
the hon. member raises? 

Mr. DONALDSON: The point of orde1· is 
that the hon. memberfor Bundanba is not quoting 
the evidence correctly. I am quite satisfied in 
having raised the point. 

Mr. FOOTE: I have read the evidence, and 
what I have stated is the inference I have drawn 
from the evidence. Prior to the occasion of 
which I am speaking the boys were kept below 
deck, and I say that it has been tried hard to 
put the blame for those boys jumping overboard, 
on J erry. An effort has been made to show 
that they did it at his instigation. Well, even 
if that should be the case-which I doubt, 
althoug-h it is in evidence that J erry did tell 
some hoys that if they went to Queensland they 
would not live-if he did do that he certainly 
had good grounds for doing so, because the 
statistics of the colony show that the mortality 
amongst kanakas here is very great. But I am 
rather inclined to think that it is more likelv that 
the boys were incited to jump overboard by S<>me 
of the other interpreters and not by J erry. If 
:ferry did or did not do it he certainly had the 
influence or power to get the trade-box open so 
that the natives could help themsel ve,. It is 
found in the reports that they did help them· 
selves, because some of thoge who were captured 
and brought back hml knives in their possession. 
If the Government agent and the captain had 
done no wrong, and had nothing to fear from an 
investigation, there wfts no reason why tho:;e 
boys should have been allowed to jump over­
board; but it seems to me that there was a fear, 
a very great fear, and the boys were incited to 
jump overboard not by J erry but by some 
other person who wished to get rid of them 
in order that they should not be present to 
give evidence in the proceedings before the 
court. There is one other point to which I shall 
advert, as I shall be glad for this discm;sion to 
come to a close. \Ve h>tve heard 80 much 

during the past few years about kanakas that 
I am sure anything we can say now will not 
be new. The point I refer to is, that the 
seizure of the "Forest King" was an act • 
performed by an officer of the Imperial Gov· 
el'llmen t, and I cannot see how the taxpayers of 
this colonv can in any way be held responsible for 
an act of an officer of the Imperial Government. 
That officer is responsible to the Imperial 
Government. No doubt the judgment of the 
comt was against him, and I am told that the 
costs of the proceedings have been paid by the 
Imperial Government. I have therefore come to 
the conclusicm that Mr. Hodgson suffered loss, 
as the hon. member for Fassifern said, in mind, 
body, and estate, for I can hardly understand 
how anyone can be engaged in a lawsuit with· 
out suffering in all those ways ; but I cannot see 
why the taxpayers of the colony should be 
saddled with any expense in reference to this 
matter, and it is my intention to vote against 
the motion. 

Mr. FERGUSON said: Mr. Speaker,-As 
one of the members of the committee who 
inquired into the petition of Samuel Hodgson, 
I think it is my duty to say a few words. I 
should not have spoken, however, but for the 
remarks just made by the hon. member for 
Bundanba with reference to the chairman of the 
committee, and I do not think those remarks 
will be endorsed by any other member of the 
committee. Eleven meetings were held, and the 
hon. member for Bundanba is down as having 
attended three. I believe he stayed a few minutes 
.. t two of the meetings. He has acknowledged that 
he was prejudiced, and that is quite true. There 
i3 no doubt that he is the only member of the 
committee who had a prejudiced mind. The 
hon. member for Fassifern conducted the 
inquiry in a most straightforward, unbiased 
manner, and did all he could to enlist evidence 
on both sides fairly and honestly. He did not 
show any partiality whatever. I think the hG>n. 
member for Bundanba should be the last to 
accuse anyone of partiality. I have had a little 
experience of that hon. member on committees. 
I have been a member of a few committees 
when h•l has been chairman, and I must 
say that I never saw any chairman act in 
such a biaeed manner as the hon. member for 
Bundanba ; so that he should be the last to 
accuse the hon. member for Fassifern as he has 
done to-night. The committee were unanimous, 
for 1 do not think the hon. member for Bun· 
danba shonl•l be reckoned, seeing that he was 
prejudiced and did not attend the meetings of 
the committee. 

Mr. FOOTE : In explanation, I may say that 
I did not consider myself a member of the com­
mittee. As I explained to the Hou•e, my 
mind was prejudiced, and I retired in con­
sequence. 

Mr . .FERGUSON: Then I think the speech 
of the hon. member should have very little 
weight in this House after that confession. vV e 
can say now that the con1n1ittee were unanitnous, 
and I believe that the verdict was just so far as 
my judgment goes. I went to the meetings of 
the committee to see fairplay and justice done, 
and whichever side harl sustained a wrong I was 
prepared to see that the wrong should be put 
right. I do not take any notice whatever 
of lawyer's speeches such as we have heard 
to-night. The Premier takes a legal view of 
the case ; but that was not the view tall:en by 
the committee. They took an equitable view of 
the case ; and, looking at it from that point of 
view, not a member of the House can say that 
Mr. Hodgson has not received an injury at the 
hands of the Queensland Government. The 
seizure was an arbitrary >tct, committed by an 
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officer of the "Swinger," at the request of Jliir. 
Milman, or through Mr. Jliiilman. :;'{ o one can 
doubt that. I do not know whether he acted 
maliciously; but there is no doubt that he 
was anxious to do something to please the 
Government of the day. He commenced with a 
mistake; but having begun, the thing had to be 
carried through ; and the evidence taken before 
the Royal Commission shows that he tried to 
carry out the blunder to the best ad vantage. 
The seizure was made without observing any 
justice whatever, because the examination was 
all on one side, as anyone can see on reading the 
evidence of the examinations by Mr. Macfarlane 
through the interpreter .Terry. The evidence 
on the other side was not taken at all. 
I do not think that any body of Britishers, 
such as we are, will allow such an arbitrary act 
as this-the seizure of a man's property, in con­
sequence of which he has suffered great loss­
without doing him justice. It is all very well to 
say that the taxpayers of the colony should not be 
asked to pay the money ; but I do not think there 
is one taxpayer who would for a moment l>egrudge 
the payment of this sum if it came to a vote­
except a few who may be prejudiced. As far as 
the evidence taken before the Royal Commission 
with regard to the " Forest King" is concerned, 
it is proved beyond doubt that the evidence of the 
boys at the time of the seizure was false, and that 
no evidence was obtained from the officers of the 
vessel. I hope the Huuse will see that this is a just 
case. There is no doubt whatever that the Royal 
Commission was a one-sided affair. vV e only had 
one of the members of that Commission before 
us, 1\-fr. Rose, and I shall read a few of the 
questimm I put to that gentleman. 

" On the sugg-estion of J.Ir. Donaldson, that Mr. 
)filman's statement sllonld be fonnd, 

"3-:Ir. Power read from page 5 of the Vice-Admiralty 
Court proceedings, an extract from Mr. :Milmau's 
letter to Captain )farx, a.s follm,-s :~ 

" 'On fnrther inquiry with the natives that I was 
able to counnunicate with (through Jerr.r1, I found that 
only five were willing to go for the full term of three 
years, and consider it very doubtful if they fully 
understood what they were agreeing to.'" 

Why should this be considered doubtful? Those 
five admitted nothing else but that they were en­
gaged for three years. 

"In cross-examination he said Captain )farx admitted 
that five boys were willing to come to Queensland for 
three years. 

"By the 0hairman : Had you any a.cquaintance or 
much intercourse with Polynesians before this. Mr. 
Rose? No. 

,, now long had you been in the ~olony at this time­
when appointed on the Commission r Three months. 

"You are a barrister. are you not, ~1r. Rose? Yes. 
"By :Mr. Ferguson: As an English barrister, did you 

consider that the inquiry-that is, only taking the evi­
dence of the recruited hovs alone-was a fair one ?-not 
taking any evidence on the other side of the question, 
evidence o! the officers, the captain, and the Govern­
ment agent of the ship P-Do you, as an }~nglish bar­
rister, consider that H was a fair inquiry into the case? 
I will an~wer by asking you another question ?-Is it 
!~:tir to ask me a question the tendency or which is to 
dis<?redit my own report 'r" 

That is the answer. I think that iR quite enough 
to show that the Hoyal Commission could not 
even e,nswer questions pnt to them when they 
came to be cross-examined. They felt so guilty 
that they could not reply to the questiuns put to 
them-could not say yes or no, although that 
was all the,t was required. I said :-

"It is a plain question-1Vould you yourself, as an 
English barl'ister-put it as a matter of common honesty 
-consider it a. !air inquiry into a case of that kind?" 

He said:--
"I have already ~aiel that I think it would have 

been better if we had had before no;; the recruiting 
agents, the Government ugcnt . ..;, and the captains.~> 

He admitted at last that it would have been a 
better course. There is no doubt that this House 
will agree that this was a wholly one-sided 
inquiry. 

:Mr. BROOKES : The committee? 

llir. :FEHGUSON : No; the Commission. 
"You do not believe it is a fair inquiry, then? I 

think we obtained .sufficient evidence to enable us to 
present a fair report.'' 
There is no doubt they presented a fair report ; 
but what is that report? Anyone who has read 
it can judge what it is. 

'''!'hat is not ans\vering the question. I ask you to say 
whether you consider that a fair ilHtniry,as an English­
man, as an English barrister. with a case of that kind 
-'l'aking only one-sided evidence, the evidence of the 
boys recruited, and not the evidence of the Government 
agent, the captain, or any other officers of the ship?­
Is it fair or not: was it a fair inquiry or not t-It is 
only 'Yes' or' Xo'? I think you must be content with 
the answer I llave given." 
That is all we could get out of Mr. Rose as far 
as that is concerned. I am not going to read 
any more ; it i~ similar all through. I need not 
say much more, as I know there are other hon. 
members who are better e,ble to speak on this 
question than I am. I can only say this-that 
the Government of Queensland, if they want to 
act honestly and for the credit of the colony, 
should pay this money without the •lightest 
hesitation. I do not think it is to the credit of 
the colony to deprive any man of what he is 
entitled to, or to seize any man's property by 
the action of an officer of the Queensland Gov­
ertllllent. 

::Yfr. BUCKLAND : Of the Imperial Govern­
ment. 

Mr. l<'KRGUSON: To stand up and defend 
such a thing as that in the House I think is a 
discredit to the colony, and if for nothing else 
than the credit of the colony the Government 
should at once admit the matter, square np, and 
pay the money. 

Mr. CHUBB said: Mr. Speaker,-I would 
like to say a few words on this question, and in 
doing so I will say at once I do not intend to 
regard the question from a leg·,.] point of view e,t 
all. Looking at it in a legal light the petitioner 
Juts not a leg to stand upon. That is to say 
he could not maintain the claim in any court of 
law against anybody. But, sir, I do not for­
get that this session we passed an Act of 
Parliament under which we proposed to 
give compensation to planters in reHpeet of 
losses sustained by them through the return 
of certain islanders who were improperly 
brought to this colony. They had sustained a 
loss by reason of an action to which they were no 
parties, and we recognised the principle that 
their case should be taken into consideration and 
heard before a district court judge, and that they 
should receive compensation on certain lines laid 
down in that statute. I look upon this petition 
as the e,pplication of a simile,r principle. It 
cannot be denied for a moment that the 
petitioner h~s suffered a loss, though it cannot 
be said he has sustained e,n injury, because 
if he had sustained an injury in a legal sense 
he would have had a right of action or claim to 
redress e,gainst someone. He has sustained 
a loss. 

:\fr. BJWOKES: £3,000? 
Mr. CHUBB : I do not say that. I am not 

prepared and do not intend to vote that the 
petitioner should receive £3,000. I do not say to 
what extent I think he should be compensated. 
He has sustained a loss, and that loEs was 
brought about by the lawful action of an 
Imperial officer, who, acting under the a·~thority 
of an Act which gave him power, on reason­
able grounds of suspicion, to seize the 
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vessel, did so seize the vessel. That 
officer was held by the chief authority in the 
colony, the Vice-Admiralty Court, to have acted 
legally-to have had sufficient ground for the 
action he took. That being so, the petitioner 
could have no right of complaint from a legal 
point of view ; but the court went further, nnd 
found it had not been proved that the provisions 
of the Kidnapping Act had been infringed, there­
fore the vessel wa~ restored to the petitioner 
and he was allowed costs. Damages were not 
given; because the court held that inasmuch as 
the Crown, represented by its officer, had 
acted legally, it was not a case in which damages 
could be given. Now, sir, the petitioner 
comes to this court-not a court of law, though 
it is contended that the House of Com­
mons is the highest court of the realm 
-he comes to this Legislative Assembly, a 
court of conscience, if I may use the term ; 
and he asks this Assembly to take his case into 
consideration and to award him compensation. I 
do not accept the report of the select committee 
that there is no evidence, and that the dam,-,ges are 
as they say. It is quite plain that there is a con­
flict of evidence. It was stated by Mr. Milman, 
and also by Lieutenant Torlesse, that when they 
went on board the vessel and proceeded to 
examine the natives, they were told distinctly 
that the interpreters for some of the islanders 
had run away, and the Government agent was the 
person who gave that information to Mr. Milman. 
That was denied by Mr. Thompson, Captain 
Dickson, and Charlie. On that point, there­
fore, there wa~ a conflict of evidence, but it 
was shown clearly that, so far as Captain Marx 
was concerned he had reasonable grounds for 
believing that the Act had been infringed. 
Assuming that the petitioner has a right to ask 
for compensation, the question then is, to whom 
should he go? Should he go to the Imperial 
Government, by whom the loss was caused, or 
should he ask to be compensated by this colony? 
There is something to be said in :iefence of his 
action in coming here. It may be said that his 
vessel was a Queensland vessel-a vessel em­
powered to carry on business by virtue of a 
license granted by this colony, and that the 
seizure of his vessel was the result of certain 
action taken by an officer of this colony. I 
think the real key to the whole proceedings 
will be found in the proceedings of the 
Vice-Admiralty Court, page 14, question 112. 
In cross-examin:>tion, Mr. Milman was asked, 
"In what capacity did you go on board?" 
-and he replied, "To ascertain if I could 
find out any malpractices in the way the 
labour traffic was being carried out in those 
waters, taking advantage of a proper and reliable 
interpreter." Now that, I think, is the key to 
the whole proceedings. Mr. Milman being on 
board the "Swinger," and in those waters went 
on b\)ard the "Forest King" to ascertain if there 
were any malpractices in the way the Act was 
being carried out, and he had the assistance 
of a reliable interpreter. Mr. Milman thus 
initiated the whole matter. It is no doubt a 
fact that Lieutenant Torlesse signed the log of 
the Government agent certifying that he had 
found everything correct, and that be afterwards 
altered the record by substituting the words 
" all papers." That was in accordance with the 
fact, for he did not find everything correct. He 
simply went on board, and examined the ship's 
papers, had a look round; but never attempted 
to examine any of the boys to see what they 
knew. Afterwards, when the examination took 
place, it was found by Mr. Milman that every­
thing was not correct ; and then Lieutenant 
Torlesse made an entry in the book in accord­
a,nce with the facts. If ;yrr. 1\Iilman had 
not gone on board, Lieutenant Torlesse 

having reported to Commander Marx that 
there was nothing wrong, there would have been 
an end of the matter, and the vessel would not 
have been seized. But Mr. Milman, possibly 
anxious to satisfy himself that everything was 
right, went on board, and, according to him, 
everything was all wrong. He reported to 
Capt>\in Marx, and by the inquiry that followed, 
his suspicions were confirmed, and the vessel 
was seized. As I say, the initiatory steps were 
taken by Mr. Milman, and that is the only ground 
on which the committee could ask the colony 
to deal with the matter. I am not prepared 
to say we ought to do so, but I would not 
throw the motion out. I am preJmred, in fact, 
to allow the motion to go into committee, 
or to accept the amendment proposed by the hon. 
member for Cook that Mr. Hodg~on is entitled 
to be compensated, leaving the amount to be 
fixed afterwards. Looking at the case in all its 
bearings, it is one of tho,;e the House might 
fairly take into consideration, and do what is 
generous. 

Mr. BLACK called attention to the state of 
the House. 

Quorum formed. 
Mr. BLACK said: Mr. Speaker,-I expected 

that a question of this sort would have been 
considered of sufftcient interest to keep the 
House together ; but it appears to me that hon. 
members on the Government side, who will 
entirely outnumber this side, have come to some 
understanding among themselves that the least 
said the soonest mended on this very awkward 
position which the Government find themselves 
placed in. 

The PREMIER: It is not awkward at all. 
Mr. BLACK: If the hon. gentleman will not 

interrupt we sh.•.ll get on with the business of the 
evening much more speedily. The hon. member 
for Bundanbn, who, I imagine, has gone home 
after his lengthy speech, certainly surprised me 
in the exception he took to the constitution of 
the select committee. Having occupied a position 
on a select committee with that hon. member, 
I can well understand that when he found 
he was not to have entirely his own way on that 
select committee-where he found there were 
other members of it who were able and deter­
mined to· exercise their own judgment-and 
when he found that he could not "boss" that 
committee, as I have known him anxious to do 
on previous occasions-he gracefully retired. 
But, as the hon. member for ltockhampton has 
remarked, his having withdrawn from that com­
mittee left the report which has been brought up 
unanimous on the point that :VIr. Samuel Hodgson 
has undoubtedlysuBtainedinjury. That is the con­
clusion they have come to after a most careful 
examination into all the bets connected with the 
case, and that he is entitled to certain pecuniary 
consideration in consequence, as they consider, 
of the seizure of the" Forest King" by H.M.S. 
" Swinger" owing to the injudicious action of an 
officer of the Government. I refer to the police 
magistrate at Cooktown, Mr. Milman. vVe 
htwe had no fewer than three inquirie.~ into 
this case of the " Forest King." l<'irst of all, 
there was the action tried before the Chief 
Justice presiding over the Vice-Admiralty 
Court, when the judge had every opportunity 
of weighing the evidence adduced both for 
and against in the case. Evidence was heard 
on both sides ; the islanders were examined, the 
Goverament agent, the captain, the recruiting 
agent and others, were carefully examined, 
and cross-e,.,mined by the learned counsel who 
took part in the inqnit-y. I think that any hon. 
gentlmuan who can weigh evidence in an hn· 
partial manner will be of opinion that the 
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conclusion that the Chief ,Justice arrived at in 
the very able verdict which he gave is en­
titled to the consideration of every person 
in the colony. And what was that verdict? It 
was, thateverythingthat had taken place on board 
the " Forest King" had been conducted in a 
legal and proper manner. That was the first 
inquiry, and it resulted in the vessel being 
released with costs against the Admiralty. I 
was at first led to infer from the Chief Justice's 
remarks that had it been in his power to award 
damages against the Admiralty, and in :Mr. 
Hodgson's favour, he would have done so. 

The PHEMIER : He did not say anything of 
the sort. 

Mr. BLACK : I accept the Premier's explana­
tion that tb.at is a misunderstanding. At all 
events, I know that that was the impression in 
the public mind at the time. He decided that 
all the proceedings in connection with that parti­
cular voyage had been in accordance with the 
law, 

The PHEMIEH: No; he only said the people 
on board believed it to be so. 

Mr. BLACK; I am not going to split straws 
with the hon. gentleman. He has had every 
opportunity of acting as an advocate in the caoe 
this afternoon, but I must say I prefer the very 
plain and lucid exposition of the case which we 
have had from the hon. member for Fassifern. 

Mr. BROOKES: :No doubt. 
Mr. BLACK : The speech of the hon. mem­

ber for Fassifern enlisted my sympathy; it 
appealed to my feelings ; every word of it was 
carefully weighed, and I believe he spoke 
honestly and conscientiously. The impression he 
made on my mind was that he had most carefully 
studied every sentence which was given in 
evidence before the select committee. I can­
not say the same for the speech of tb@ 
Premier. It was the speech of a very able 
lawyer-a speech which I certainly cannot from 
a legal point of view controvert, but it gives 
me the impression that, if tbe hon. gentleman had 
held a brief on the other side, be would have 
made an equally telling speech. It was the 
speech of an able ad vacate, but it did not 
appeal to my feelings at all. The second inquiry 
into the case was made by the Hoyal Commission. 
To that Hov>tl Commission it is absolutely neces­
sary that !"should briefly refer, as sevenil points 
in connection with its inquiry into the case of 
the "Foreot King" have not yet been referred to 
by any hon. member who has Hpoken yet. Tbe 
first point I would sp@cially refer to is the very 
extraordinary fact that Mr. Milman, by whose 
action the " Forest I{ing" \vas seized, was never 
present at all dnring the inquiry into the alleged 
kidnapping by her. Can the Premier give me 
any reason for that • 

The PHEMIEH: Because it was feared he 
might be thought prejudiced. 

1\lr. BLACK: Then the hon. gentleman made 
a very great mistake in appointing bim one of 
the Hoyal Commissioners if be feared he might 
be prejudiced. But, nntwithRtanding the fact 
that :Yir. Milman took no part in that inquiry, 
he signed the report of the Hoyal Commission, 
which says:-

" \Ve a.rc of opinion that all the reeruitR brought by 
the 'Forest King' were decoyed on bo:u-d unrler false 
pretences; that t.he nature of their engagement~ was 
never explained to them; and that none of them under­
stood they "\Vere to work on a su~ar plantation for any 
period, much less for three years." 
Although JYir. Milman WitS not present on thiR 
inquiry into the case of the ":Forest King," he 
signed this report, and I have just read the 
O{Jinion he endorses as a cmnmjssioner. But 
this is what Mr. Milman himself says in connec-

tion with tbe seizure of the "Forest King" : 
In a letter elated 26th July, 1884, conveying 
certain information to the Colonial Secretary 
upon the seizure of this vessel, he says, referring 
to the recruits who were on boanl :-

"These recruits were all spoken to separately. The 
natives from Sud-Est I ''as unabletoconununicate with 
at all, there being no interpreter for them on board, 
though I am informecl that a. competent interpreter had 
been on board when theY were recruited, hut had since 
run away. On further il1quh·y with the natives that I 
was able to communicate with through Jerry." 
Mind, "through J erry" ! That is the interpreter 
specially entitled to credence. He is tbe inter­
preter who accompanied Mr. Milman and the 
Rev. Mr. Macfarlane when they went on board 
the '' Forest King "; and this is what J erry tells 
him:-

11 I found thnt only five 'vere willing to go for tl1e full 
term of three years." 
Tbat is Mr .. Milman's own statement on the 
subject. After he had satisfied himself through 
J erry that five boys, at least, thoroughly under­
stood tbe nature of their agreements in signing 
the report of the Hoyal Commission he changes 
his mind and is of opinion-

" That all the recruits brought by the 'Forest King' 
Wd'e decoyed on board nnder false pret,ences; and the 
nature of their engagements was never explained to 
them; and that none of them understood they were to 
work on a sugar plantation for any period, much less 
for three years.,, 
\Vhen I see this unreliable evidence commenLed 
on by a member of the Hoyal Commission 
in this extraordinary way, it invalidates the 
value which this report of the Royal Com­
mission would otherwise have to my mind. 
Another significant fact connected with this re­
port, and one which concerns the bon. member 
for Bulimba, who also signed this report, and 
who was also of opinion that the whole of the 
islanders, some 500, examined by the commis­
sion were decoyed on board the different vessels 
under false pretences is this : I find that Mr. 
Bnckland, the hon. member for Bulimba, was 
absolutely absent during eleven out of the thirty 
sittings held by the Royal Commission, and yet he 
signs the report as being person>tlly of opinion 
that every one of the 500 boys examined 
had been misled as to the nature of their 
agreements. It is abwlutely necessary to 
refer in some manner to tbe report of the 
Hoyal Commission. Tbe position of the 
Government is this at the present moment:­
If it can be shown that in the case of the " Forest 
King· "-with the exception of the '' Hopeful" 
case, which was also tried before the Supreme 
Court and on which a verdict was given-I say 
if it can be shown that in the case of the "Forest 
King" the Hoyal Conunis"ion came to an 
erroneous conclusion, the whole of the deduc­
tions drawn in the report of the Hoyal Com­
mission are not worth the paper they are written 
on ; and that is the opinion I hold of 
their report upon the "Forest King" case. 
After the Hoyal Commission brought up a report 
in which they declared that all the islanders on 
board the "l<'m-est King" bad been misled and 
enticed on board under false pretences, Mr. 
Hodgson, who believer! he was used unjustly by 
the Royal Commission, after the verdict given 
him by the learned Chief Justice, believed he 
was entitled to some recompense for the loss he 
,mstained, and he did what was open to any 
other man in the country to do~asked an hon. 
member to move for a select committee to be 
appointed to consider the case. His petition was 
entrusted to an hon. member on the Government 
side of the House and a select committee was 
formed, consisting of four hon. members on 
the Government side and three members on 
the Opposition side of the House. Tbe 
whole case was submitteJ again to them-
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I attended two of the sittings of that committee to 
see in wh_at way the evidence was being taken, 
and I beheve t', .t every consideration was given 
by the commitcee to all evidence considered of 
importance bearing on the case. What was the 
re~ult? The select c<;nnmittee virtually confirmed 
-If any confirmatiOn was necessary-in fact 
entir.ely endorsed the view held by the Chief 
Justice on the matter after having examined 
both sides in the case-they affirmed that the 
whole transactions which took place on board of 
the "]forest King" were ·in accordance with 
law, and their report has to my mind entirely 
upset the value of the report brou"ht up by the 
Royal Con!mission. " 

An HONOURABLE MEMBER : \Vho were the 
other witnesses ? 

Mr. BLACK: In connection with the exami­
nation by the Royal Commission there is this 
sig1_1ificant fact to be considered; not a single 
white man who was connected with those re­
cruiting vessels was ever examined by that Com­
mission. Not a single witnes~ was examined who 
kn":w anything at all about it except the Poly­
nesians. I attended some of the sittings held by 
that Royal Commission, and nothing astonished 
me more than to find one boy say that he 
had engaged for two months ; another boy 
by t~~ same ship! engaged by the same 
recrmtmg agent, with the same Government 
<tgent, with the same captain on board-said 
he came for " three-fellow moon " ; another 
for five moons; another seven moons; another 
two moons ; another one year ; another 
two years; and another three years- and 
those boys cnme by the one ship with 
the S>>me officers and the same Government 
agent on board. Hearing that, I came to the 
conclusion at once that these boys had not got 
the most remote idea of time, 

HoNOURABLE l\1EMBERS on the Government 
benches : Hear, hear! 

The PREMIER : That is the whole thing. 
Mr. BLACK: I believe that they do not know 

the value of time. I believe those boys had no 
idea. of time, but I say had there been any 
conmvance between the officers of that ship and 
those men, they would have concocted a similar 
story; but that they had not done. It is not 
necessary to enter into the details of this case. 
Hon. members have had the evirience before them 
for some time, and the mere fact of reading ques­
tions and answers will not lead any member of 
the House to come to any different conclusion 
u~;on wha~ he ~as probably already made up his 
nund he Is gomg to do. I wish, however to 
point out one thing to the House ~nd 
that is the great importance which attaches 
to the reliability, or otherwise, of the evidence 
taken in the inquiries which we have had in the 
case of the" Forest King." vYe have had two 
inquiries held by intelligent people of this com­
ml,tnity ; the first one by the Chief Justice than 
whom I do not suppose there is a more able and 
learned gentleman i? the c<;>lony, if in the world. 
\V e know what his verdict was in the case. 
T~en we had the inquiry by the select com­
mittee the other day-gentlemen who I am proud 
to say are worthy of every credence in the 
matter. \V e have seen the verdict that thev 
have brought up. There are, therefore two 
inquiries which commend themselves to th~ good 
sense and judgment of every one in the country 
and what have we got on the other side? \Ve hav~ 
a one-sided committee, composed of three gentle­
men supposed to hold peculiar views <m the sub­
ject. At all events, with regard to two oft hem 
I should say that. With respect to the hon: 
member for Bulimb .. , I know what his views 
are. He is not an extreme man, I am happy to 
say ; but I know that he has certain views on 

the labour question, as I have. I should have 
been unfit to act on that Commission-I say 
that plainly, Mr. Speaker. It would not have 
been a fitting thing had I been appointed 
on that Commission, holding the strong views 
I do on the subject, nor was it fit that the 
hon. member for Bulimba should be one of that 
Commission; still less that Mr. Milman, who has 
been at the bottom of all this trouble-who has 
really been the cause of bringing a great deal of 
discredit on this colony-it was certainly not fit 
that he should be on that Commission. With regard 
to the third gentleman, I believe that had he had a 
few more years' experience in the colony, he might 
have been better fitted for the position to which 
he was appointed-a gentleman of undoubted 
legartraining, so I am told by the Premier, who was 
appointed owing to his special ability to criticise 
and dissect evidence-and what did that gentleman 
say? I heard him, when questioned before the 
select committee as to whether the evidence 
of blackfellows was to outweigh-was of special 
value-say that it wa.s the best of all evidence. 
Well, sir, I do not consider that it is the best of 
all evidence-the evidence of the"e islanders 
who were especially interested, who I know had 
been adduced to give false evidence by that 
missionary boy, Jerry; I knew that their evi­
dence would be false before ever the Commission 
visited the northern portions of the colony, for I 
was travelling about there at the same time, mid 
it had gone the rounds of the plantations " big 
fellow master come up; boy go home." That 
was before any inquiry was held. Against 
that evidence, sir, we have this rather · 
significent fact : Assuming that all these boys 
had been misled, that they were all so anxious to 
go home-why, we have read of the tears that 
were shed when the "Victoria" landed some of 
these boys-I do not believe a word of it; but it 
is a significent fact that something like 100 boys 
declined to go home. Notwithstanding that 
before the Commission they said they were only 
engaged for two or three moons to go fishing, or to do 
nothing, directly the Commission were gone what 
did they say-"\Ve engaged for three years, we 
will stop three years ; " ~nd there they are now. 
There are two sides to every question, J\Ir. 
Speaker, but I know it would never do to allow 
it to go forth to the world that the report of that 
Royal qommis•ion was not worth the paper it 
was wntten on. In my opinion-and it is im­
material to me whether I get anyone to endorse 
!tor not-the report of that lloyal Commission 
IS absolutely worthless, except in one case, that 
of the "Hopeful." It is of value there because 
the report is sustained by the verdict of the 
courts here, where both sides of the case were 
inquired into, and their verdict has been well 
supported; but, with regard to the seven other 
cases, to my mind the report is equally valueless 
as the report in this ''Forest King" case is, 
where we have two judgments given by tribunals 
that we can believe, as against one that we cannot 
believe. I stated that it would hardly suit the 
Government to have the report of this select com­
mittee sustained by the verdict of this House 
and '':ith their numerical strength I do not sup: 
pose It will be sustained; but, notwithstanding 
!hat,, I believ':' that the verdict of the minority 
m thm case will carry a great deal more weight 
than the verdict of the majority which the 
Premier can command in this House. I will 
tell you, M.r. Speaker, and this House, why it 
would not suit the Government that the report 
of this select committee should be sustained. 
The report of this Royal Commission has been 
made use of at home for politiceol purposes. We 
have seen the fair~ fame of this colony dragged 
through the dirt in consequence of the report of 
that commision. 

The PREMIER : No; cleared. 
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Mr. BLACK : And what will be the result 
when the report of this select committee-which 
is equally, in fact of far more value than that of 
the Royal Commission-goes home to England? 
I hold in my hand the London Times, of June 18, 
in which there is a letter from the Brisbane 
correspondent, dated April 25th. It is not very 
hard, in my opinion, to identify the writer of 
this letter. I shall not mention the name 
because I might be wrong, but I do not think we 
have very far to go outside the Royal Commission 
to find out. The letter says:-

" Greatexcitementhas been caused throughout Queens­
lam! by the publication of the Report of the Royal 
Couunif9Y~l011 appointed to inquire into the condnct of the 
labour trade in ~ew Guinea and the adjaeent islanlls. 
Public attention was drawn towards the close of last 
year in a more than usual degree to the enormities of 
the trafiic in Pacific Islanders by what are known as the 
' Hopeful' trials. 'l'he present Government. under the 
leadership of the Hon. S. W. Griffith, Q.C., maintain that 
they represent ~L party which has been evidently 
opposed to the Hystem of working plantations by 
black labour of any kind-whether coolie, Chinese, 
}Ialay, or kauaka-and indeed one of the planks 
of the platform on which they stepped into power 
was 'Queensland for the ·white man, and no black 
labour.' Among their first enactments was a measure 
amending the Pacific Island Labrmrers Act of 1880, and 
the traming of more stringent regulations for the con­
duct of the Soutl1 Sea labour trade. These are the 
regulations which the su12ar- planters of Xorthern 
Queensland have designated the ' east-iron rules,' by 
which they say the sugar indnstry of the colony has 
been ruined, and on account of which a crv has 
recently gone forth from the sugar-planting capitalists 
ror separation." 

The PREMIER: Hear, hear! 

Mr. BLACK : I think the hon. gentleman 
who says "'Hear, hear" knows son1ething about 
this. I think he could easily put his finger on 
the writer of this article. 

Mr. BROOKES: What does it matter about 
the writer? Is it true? 

Mr. BLACK : X o; it is not true. 

The PREMIER : Of course it is. 

Mr. BLACK: If the hon. gentleman wants to 
know my opinion, I say it is not true ; that it 
is unmistakal1ly false. The letter go"' on :-

" That the 'east-iron' regulations however. availcd 
not to put an end to the most atrocious iniquities in 
the trade, was demonstrated by the 'Hopeful' trials; 
and, accordingl,v, the Government issued the Royal 
Commission to inquire into the methods pursued by the 
crews of the labour ships in recruiting the natives 
of Xe'v Gninea, the Lonisiade Archipelago, and the 
D' Entreeasteanx group of islands. 'rhe Commissioners 
were l\Ir. John 1~. Buekland, ::\LP., )Jr. ·w. Kinnaird Rose, 
barristcr-1tt-law, and l\:Ir. Hugh .:\Iiles .J.iilman, police 
magistrate. The result of their investigations, which 
were contiu'1nsly pun;ned over a period of three months, 
during which they examined nearly fiOO witncs~es "-

}lark, sir, it does not say anything about the 
colour of the witnesses; not a single word about 
that, or the value of the evidence they gave-
" X early 500 witnesses, has been the disclosure of a 
system which rivals in wickednol'is and eold-blooded 
treachery the worst features of the old Afriean slave­
trade." 
Now, Mr. Speaker, with the exception of the 
" Hopeful" case I maintain that that is ab so· 
lutely false, and my reason for saying so is that 
the one case in which we have had an opportunity 
of thorough and searching investigation has 
proved that it was false; and that being false 
it invalidates the truth of every other case except 
that of the "Hopeful." That the other cases 
were proved on the same sound ground that the 
" Hopeful" was proved I cannot agree with the 
hon. gentleman; but if they were proved on the 
ground that the "Forest King" was proved on, 
then I say the report was not a true report and 
not entitled to an atom of credence. \V ell, then 

the art;cle goes on to describe the way recruiting 
was done with the same bias that pervades the 
report of the Royal Commission. 

Mr. BROOKES: You had better read it. 

Mr. BLACK : This is how it finishes up :-
" Such are the results of a system of labour traffic 

which the sugar-planter ... say is neceY>sary to the welfare 
and existence of :Xorthern Queensland." 
That is utterly untru~. The planters do not say 
that that sort of labour trade is necessary for the 
success of the sugar industry, and they never 
said so. But the friend of the Premier's who 
wrote that letter has endeavoured to perpetuate 
the slander cast on the planters in persisting that 
they have been participators in any illegality 
that took place in the islands. 

"And it is on the strength of the efforts of the pre· 
sent Queensland Government to regulate the traffic and 
cure its evils that th.e demand has been made both here 
and in London t'or the separation of Northern Queens­
land into a separate colony." 
Why, a greater libel on the separation movement 
was never uttered. The separation movement 
has had its existence for several years, and it 
originated outside the labour question-though 
I admit that the planters would be very glad to 
see separation, because they would be more 
likely to get justice done to their cause than they 
can hope for under the present system of govern­
ment. 

"Attempts ha.ve been made to disguise the fact that 
the separation moYernent is really and truly a pure 
hlack labour question, but these attempts hoodwink no 
intelligent man in the colony. The separation move­
ment was conceived, is carried on almost solely, and 
supported wholly, by the money of the sugar-planters; 
and, except in two sugar estate centres, it has fallen 
dead.'' 
I do not think that the writer of that article can 
say that now. Let him take a trip up north. 
Let him go to Charters Towers and inquire 
among the miners, and see what they say on the 
subjeet now. Let him go and ask those men 
what they think of the separation movement 
now. The hon. gentleman smiles. He knows 
that a change has come over the spirit of the 
dream at Charters Towers, and that the miners 
will now only too gladly accept the position 
which they see will lead to the rapid advance­
ment of the North. The "Coolie bogie "-the 
coloured labour cry-is dead, and the hon. gentle­
rmm will not be able to make a stalking-horse of 
the planters any more. The thing is played ont. 

The PREMIER: I hope it is. I wish I 
could believe it. 

Mr. BLACK: Let the hon. gentleman try 
and run an anti-separation candidate for any of 
the Northern constituencies, and see where he 
will be. I daresay he knows as well I can tell 
him. 

"It is to be hoped that before eYer giving ear to any 
reprcsent,ations on t.he subject from any quarter, the 
Imperial Government will make searching inquiry 
into the facts disclosed by the report of the Royal Com­
mi~sion, and the moti-ves \Vhich underlie all demands for 
a free land in the north-eastern portion of the Aus­
tralian continent. 'l'he present Government of Queens­
land deserve some credit for th~ courage with which 
they have endeavoured to lay bare the methods of the 
labour traffic." 
·well, I think, Mr. Speaker, anyone now, after 
reading the decision of the Chief Justice and 
the report of the select committee will come to 
the conclusion-they will be able to arrive at a 
correct opinion of the method that the Royal 
Commission have adopted in rlealing with the 
majority of those cases:-
"And should they, as rumourderlares they will, shortly 
send back to their ishtnds the whole of the natives so 
cruelly deceived and kidnapped, the.r will command 
the admiration of the civilised world for an act at once 
of justice to the islanders, a.nd ot high moral courage in 
redeeming, in t;Ome meusnre, the fair fame of Queens­
land from a foul and blood-stained blot." 
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Well, that is a very nice sentimental paragraph, 
and it has had this effect, as the Premier evi­
dently thougl.t it would-it had the effe_ct, at the 
time, of dragg-ing the fair bme of this colony 
through the mire. But what was the Agent­
General doing at the time? Did he attempt to 
state public opinion? Did that gentleman, know­
ing as well as he must have known the condition 
of the sugar industry at the time, attempt in 
anyway to sta,ve off the righteous indignation of 
the English people had the reports been true? Not 
he. He maJe capital out of it, knowing, as I 
fearlessly assert, that this was a, most gross 
exaggeration of the real facts of the case. But 
coming back to the report of the select com­
mittee on the "Forest King" case-I have 
given my opinion on the subject, holding, 
as I do, that a gross injustice was done to 
the owners of the ''Forest King," brought 
about by the action of an officer of the 
Government, who went down to the islands, 
I firmly believe, with the intention of raising 
trouble if he possibly could, and taking advan­
tage of the unsuspecting innocence of one of the 
officers of Her Majesty's fleet. He would not be 
o-uidecl by clear evidence, which he could have 
got on board the ship, but he and Mr. Macfar­
lane, against whom I have not a word to say, 
did the job together. Mr. Macfarlane had his 
missionary boy as interpreter, but I would point 
out to the House that Cha,rlie-the much quali­
fied Charlie, was also a missionary boy-a boy 
specially recommended to the ship as a missionary 
boy. That boy had been brought up amongst 
the missionaries, and was recommended by 
the wife of one of the missionaries as a boy 
who could be relied upon as an interpreter, 
and who, as the sequel proved, was able 
thoroughly to interpret everything necessary. 
But that boy was discredited and the other boy 
is proved in" examination before the Chief Justice 
to be not so good as he was thought. He told 
the other boys that if they went to Queensland 
they would die in two months, and, naturally 
enough, when they ((ot the opportunity, attemp­
ted to escape. "When they came here they found 
the work a little different to what they were led 
to expect, and they would say anything the 
Royal Commission chose to ask them. I do not 
attach very much credence to the evidence of 
the i'landers; they would say anything. I am 
prepared to admit that they might have been 
misled, but the idea of the Hoyal Commis>ion­
a Commission which, by the way, is going to cost 
the country £20,000 or £30,000 before we have 
clone with it; a Commission composed of three 
men supposed to be beyond the average i_ndi­
vidual in the matter of intelligence, and presided 
over by a gentleman of high legal training, 
whose specialty is dissecting and analysing 
evidence-the idea of those men being hood­
winked or misled does seem a little ridiculous. 
The idea of that Roy~l Commission being misled, 
and coming down and writing that report, and 
that report being sent home to England and 
being acted upon as if it were the common 
pr.,ctice of the colony to recruit labour in that 
way, reflected very little credit upon the Royal 
Commission, and still les~ upon the Govern­
ment. One of the ablest lawyers we have had 
in the colony took advantage of a popular 
prejudice to allow the fair fame of the colony to 
be dragged in the mire. I shall vote for the amend­
ment-that Mr. Hodgsonreceive such a sum as the 
House may decide that he is entitled to legally. I 
cannot refute what the Premier has said, and he 
is a<rain supported by the hon. member for 
Bow~n. Legally, Mr. Hodgson is supposed to 
have no leg to stand upon; but morally he has. 
I have heard the Premier state in this House, on 
more than one occasion, that if any man can 
show that he has been injured by any act of the 

Government, whether he has a legal claim or 
not if he has a moral one, it is the duty of the 
Go~ernment to give him consideration, and on 
those grounds I will vote for the amendment. 

Mr. STEVENS said: Mr. Speaker,-! do 
not intend to go into the evidence-either that 
obtained by the Royal Commissi<_m, or \he 
evidence taken by the select comrrnttee. Not 
because I do not think it a matter of very great 
importance, but because the hon. gentleman 
who brought the matter before the House dealt 
with it in the most exhaustive manner; and there 
is very little doubt in my mind that any hon. 
member who is not convinced by his speech, and 
by the sifting that he gave of the evidence,_ will 
be much assisted in his judgment by anythmg I 
or any other hon. member can say. I have 
gone into the case fully ; I was unable to 
attend all the sittings of the select com­
mittee, but I was there suffi9iently often to 
listen to a great deal of the evidence t!1at Wf'S 
taken. Since then I have carefully sifted It, 
and h,we also read the report of the proceeding-s 
of the Supreme Court, and the report of the 
Royal Commission. 'The history of the case 
briefly is, that Mr. Milman, empowered by the 
Government to report upon any cases tha:t he 
might think tit durir:g a visit to New Gumea, 
visited the ":Forest Kmg," and after a bnef and 
very one-sded examination, induced one of Her 
Jlilajesty's ships to take possession of her, and 
she was brought down in charge of Captain 
IVIarx, ::\fr. Hodgson, her owner, thereby 
suffering a severe loss. It has been sought 
to be proved that the evidence giyen 
by :i'ilr. J\filman's boy, J erry, was conclusive, 
that the ship had engaged in an nnlaw_ful trade 
and the boys had been unlawfully recrmted. The 
evidence brouo-ht forward by the select com­
mittee and al~o the evidence elicited from some 
Polyn~sians examined by the Royal Com· 
mission, goes to prove tha~ the boy J erry was 
thoroughly unreliable. There is no doubt that 
he was brouiTht bv Mr. Miln1an and the Rev. 
Mr. Macfarl'f.ne to prove that the boys ha~ been 
obtained unlawfully. That went without 
saying from the action taken by them, 
when ',J erry was taken on board the ship. 
The boys were examined by Jerry, who 
declared that they knew nothing about their 
aQTeements whatever. After they had been 
t~lked to by J erry for a short time the ship's 
interpreter was asked a question 0r two and 
was quite dumbfounded; and no wonder th~t. he 
was. The presence of the naval authonties, 
and, no doubt, having the fear before his eyes 
that he would be punished in one way or 
another would make him so. He was at a loss 
what to say ; but, after a moment, he said 
they were unlawfully recruited. Afterwards 
he admitted that they had been engaged for 
three years. N o!'e of those boys, or compar~ti.vely 
few, were questwned by the Royal Commtsswn ; 
only one or two were, the majority were not. To my 
mind it appears very clear that these men, who 
told one tale on board the ship and another to 
the Royal Commission, had some very ~'fOOd 
reason for contradicting what they said in the 
first instance. There is no doubt that, when the 
word was passed through the plantations that a 
commission was coming up to inquire. into the 
manner in which they had been recrmted, the 
Polynesians agreed among themselves that 
they should tell the one tale. No large 
number of men can come before a court of 
inquiry, and give a stereotyped answer 
as those men had done, unless they had been 
well tutored. Boy after boy came and told 
the same tale, a thing which would convince any 
ordinary juryman that their report was cooked, 
and they had been put up to it. The Premier, in 
addressing the House this evening, kept as far a.s 
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he could from rebutting the evidence elicited by 
the se!ect committee. He started his speech 
by saymg that Mr. Hodgson has no legal claim 
to the money. It has been admitted by several 
hon. gentlemen that he has not a legal claim, 
perhaps; but at tlie same time he has a fair 
claim. The Premier said that the action 
of :iifr. Milman in persuading Captain Marx 
to seize the "Forest King," was the same 
as if a man went to a policeman and 
told him that something had been done 
wrong, and the policeman had taken that man 
in charge, consequently the employer of 
that man was liable for all he had done. 
The case was the same as if Mr. Milman had got 
a warrant, and got Captain Marx to execute it. 
I am not very well up in legal matter,,, but I im­
agine that if a man obtains a warrant, and gets a 
policeman to execute it, he is liable for what may 
follow afterwards, and that in my opinion is :.tn 
exactly parallel case to the one we are now discus· 
sing. Some short t}me ago a telegram was received 
from the old country stating that the fair fame, 
or good name, of Queensland had been completely 
cleared before the world, and I do not hesitate 
to say that that telegram produced a feeling of 
gladness throughout the State. Butifit was known 
at home, as it is generally known in the colony, 
that our fair fame was cleared by crushing 
honest colonists it would not have had the effect 
it did have. There is not the slightest doubt 
that ::\fr. Hodgson has a fair claim on the 
Government, that he has been very hardly and 
very badly treated by a servant of the Govern­
ment. I do not wish to say much with regard 
to the Hoyal Commission. I will only point out 
that whatever decision they arrived at, it was 
likely to be a biased one from the fact that Mr. 
:1>1ilman was uue of its members ; and he was the 
cause of all this trouble. He was asked by 
Mr. Kinnaird Hose, one Jf the members of 
the Commission, if it would be possible to 
bring forward the captain and mate of 
the "Forest King" and examine them, and he 
replied that it was not possible. The only fault I 
have to find with the Commission is that they did 
not imist upon the production of those men, as 
their evidence, because of the straightforward 
way in which it was given, is such as carries con­
victiorl with it. I do not think it comes with very 
good grace from those members who have always 
been crying down black labour to say that the 
evidence of the natives is of equal value with the 
evidence of white men. It was with considerable 
reluctance that I took a part in this matter. 
I am not in favour of the employment of 
black labour, and would not support it in any 
way if it was not for the position in which the 
planters have been placed by the country; and I 
did not enter into this matter with any feeling 
in favour of Mr. Hodgson. But the more I 
heard of the evidence elicited by the chairman 
and the counsel for the petitioner the more I 
became convinced that he had been badly used. 
I appeal to hon. members to dismiss from their 
minds the qnestion of black labour. This is not 
a question of white or black labour, but of the 
claim of a fellow-citizen, and I think if hon. 
members will dismiss that matter from their 
minds and consider the case 011 its merits they 
will agree with me that Mr. Hodgson has been 
:;eriously injured and is entitled to compensation. 

Mr. ISAMBERT said: Mr. Speaker,-! shall 
not detain the House very long. I think that 
from all we can gather from the debate this 
evening, and from what we heotr about tha 
employment of black labour, we can plainly see 
that the civilised Christian man, in this latter 
part of the nineteenth century, cannot be 
entrusted with the management and disposal of 
inferior black race It is astonishing-, with the 

amount of special and re:;trictive legislation thai 
we have, how many villainies have crept into this 
trade. 

Mr. BLACK: Mr. Speaker,-I beg to call 
attention to the state of the House. No hon. 
member listens more attentively to other~ speak· 
ing than the hon. member for Rosewood, and I 
think he deserves a better audience than this. 

Quorum formed. 
Mr. ISAMBEHT said :Mr. Speaker,-It has 

been admitted that this trade has objec· 
tionable featureo. The islanders do not under· 
stand their agreements. Even when ships 
proceed in a legal manner there is always a 
covering boat with the recruiting boat. 
vVhat does a covering boat mean? It 
is a boat with men armed with rifles, to 
protect those engaged in recruiting. vVas such 
a thing ever heard of in engaging civilised men 
for any work? I think the Premier has put the 
whole affair in the proper light when he said 
that this colony is not responsible for what the 
British Government has done. If the colony is 
responsible in this case, it is just as much 
responsible for the loss sustained by Mr. Ran· 
some, or for the loss sustained by 11r. Peter 
Hansen through the reversal of a judgment 
arrived at by a judge and jury, or for the 
wrongs suffered by Leonidas Koledas through 
some action of the Mines Department. Parlia­
ment rejected those claims. I know that the 
present Ministry recognised that Leonidas 
Koledas had been wronged, but even if they were 
inclined to correct that wrong they could not do 
so, as the Act by which he could be compensated 
or reinstated in his claim has been abolished. 
I believe that Mr. Hodgson has suffered a loss, 
but since Parliament would not recognise the 
claims I have mentioned, I do not see how it can 
recogniHe the clain1 now made. 

:Mr. MIDGLEY said: Mr. Speaker,-'l'he 
Honse does not appear tn be in any particuhr 
hurry to deal with this question, and I have no 
doubt that the delay has resulted in disadvantage. 
I an1 in no hurry to come to a division, 
whatever may be the result, Since moving 
the adoption of the report the proceedings have 
taken another direction. I may say at once 
that I ha Ye not the slightf:st sympathy with the 
amendment, nor have I the least reaoon to alter 
my belief that the decision to which the select 
committee came should not be altered. The 
committee, after careful deliberation, after taking 
evidence and examining documents, came to the 
following cone! usions :-

"I. rrhat the allegations and statements of the peti­
tion have been substantiated. 

"I I. 'l'bat there is no evidence to show that the 
owner of the 'Forest King,' or anyone engaged on her 
dluing the Toyage when she was seized by the 
'Hwinger,' was gnilt~r ot', or aware of, any breach of 
the l::LWS anrt. regulations affecting the recruiting of 
islanders in Polynesia. 

"III. 1'hat in consequence of the seizure of hiR 
vessel, the 'Forest King,' the vetitioner snffered such 
loss, expense, and damage as are stated in detail in his 
claim, le<;;s the item of £600 for 'r-stimated net­
earnings,' &c. 

"IV. That the committee, after careful examination 
and due congideration, recommend the payment to the 
petitioner by the Queensland Government of tl1e snm 
of £3.0ll 7s. 6d." 
If we had come to this House and made the la:;t 
of these recommendations, without any of those 
preceding them, no doubt the Premier would 
have been able to say it was a strange thing to 
ask this House to award a sum of money to the 
petitioner and to state no reasons. If a man is 
disposed to quibble, he has never any need of 
material, and however carefully and conscienti­
ously the report might have been drawn up, it 
would have been exposed to attacks of this kind. 
Fault, no doubt, can be found by legal gentlemen 
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with the work done by the 'prentice hand of a mere 
layman in dr,wing up the report. I notice it is 
quite a habit with lawyers to treat with the utmost 
contempt any opinion• of laymen in regard to law. 
There are different kinds of lawyers a, there are 
ditierent kinds of planters; some of them are of 
the baser sort, and others are of the higher grade. 
The way in which htwyers turn up their noses, 
turn out their lips, and show their teeth, when 
laymen say anything ltbout law is ltlmost enough 
to disnmy and intimidate any ordinltry man 
from discussing legal subjects at all. They must 
h>we the impression that the laws we frame from 
time to time for the government of the colony 
are laws which cannot be understood by tlie 
people, and should not be understood by the 
people. I am quite satisfied that the contention 
which I held this afternoon has not been verv 
materially altered, even by the speech of th.e 
Premier. It is simply to my mind an attempt 
-I had almost used the word "mean "-to 
escape from responsibility, and to ltvoid the 
payment of what is fairly and rightly due. It is 
an attempt to evade the question by the old plea 
of no responsibility. The Premier admitted that 
Mr. Hodgson suffered actual and serious loss ; he 
admitted that neither Mr. Hodgson nor any of 
the Europeans on his ship, at the time she was 
seized, could be proved to have been guilty of 
any breach of the law. And is this man, 
who has suffered wrong, to be sent from 
pillar to post ; from one court to another ; 
and redress denied him, simply because 
it is impossible to sheet the responsibility 
home to anyone? Surely someone is responsible. 
The action of the Government in this matter 
does not commend itself to my admiration. He 
was undon btedly engaged in a service which hlts 
never been disowned by the Government since. 
The succeeding stages of this unhappy affair 
have never been disowned by the Government. 
It is too late now to take up the cry and the refuge 
of no responsibility. I think it is undeniable, 
Mr. Speaker, that had it not been for the action 
of Mr. Milman, the officQrs of the " Swinger " 
would never have seized the "Forest King." 
Did they who instigated the inquiry that re­
sulted in the seizure of that ship, use "'ll the 
means they might have used and ought to 
have used to ascertain the bona tides of those 
who hltd been engaged on board of her? I 
maintain they did not. Mr. Milman ar,pears 
to have thought it becoming of him, and seems 
to have regarded it as his duty to set himself in 
immediate and direct ltntagonism with another 
man equally a Government servant with himself. 
The Government agent on board the " Forest 
King" should have had every opportunity given to 
him to show that these men who hltd been obtained 
as recruits, had been fltirly and properly obtained. 
He declares tha.t an opportunity wlts not given : 
he declares the interpreters he had were not sub­
mitted to the test, and I can quite believe it. 
I believe Mr. Milman cltme into the whole busi­
ness with a strongly prejudiced mind. We find 
that, speaking of the cause which actuated the 
boys in jumping overboard, he gives two entirely 
different versions of that ltffltir. In his report 
to the Premier, page 5, he gives this version :-

" rl'he night previous to the 'Forest King's' de­
parture, and previous to Captain 2.\iarx putting his prb:e 
crew on board, an attempt was made bY the natives on 
board (with the exception of the Sud:J~st men l, who 
were near their homes, to escape, and sixteen succeeded 
in doing so, six being pickert np by the 'Swinger's' 
boat~. The circumstances under which these men 
escaped would lead me to suppose that their escape, it 
not actually ordered, was connived at by the authorities 
on board, who had everything to gain (in the event of 
the charges being proved) by these men escaping." 
That is one version that Mr. Milman gives, but 
as a member of the Royal Commission he gives 
a m~>terially different version, I admit that Mr. 

' Milman did not sit on the case of the "Forest 
King "-he ought never to have had anything to 
do with it-but ,]though he did not sit on this 
ca,se, yet he signed the report jointly with the 
other members of the Commission. His signature 
is attltched to the end of the document which 
concludes the report of the Commission. Now 
this is what he says as "' member of the Commis­
sion. If he does not believe it he should have 
dissented from it :-

" 'l'he 'Forest King' wa.s at Anchor Island on 9th 
July, and here JI.~f.S. 'Swinger' appeared on the 
scene. 'rhe boarding officers of the 'Swinger,' Rev. 
).f_r. l\Iacfarlane, )ir. H. :\1. l\iilman, and the interpreter 
.Terry, went on board the' Forest King.' Charlie and 
Jerry both spol\:e to the Sud-Est boys, but neither 
could ma}:e themselves understood. Two Sud-Est 
recruits who spoke a little Teste said that Charlie 
spoke 'l'esto, but that the:r 'no hear him good.' \Yith 
the other recruits from the other i.:dands both Char lie 
and .Terr.v could converse, and they all said that they 
told both that they had been engaged for two moons. 
Upon that Jerry informed some o.f them that they 
would have to 'work, worl\:, work,' 1n white man's 
country, that they did not understand how to work, 
and that they vwuld get sick and die. This frightened 
many, and that night twenty-two of thmn slipped 
overboard and attempted to escape, which some of 
them did." 
Now, I wltnt to draw the attention of the House 
to this fltct. In this report of the Royal Com­
mission, Mr. Mi!mltn-he attached his signltture 
to it-states that the reason these islanders 
jumped overboard was thltt .Terry had told 
them that in Queensland they would have to 
" work, work, work, and would get sick and die." 
That is one version he gives. In the report he 
sends to the Colonial Secretary, prior to this, he 
says that this was a concocted scheme on the 
pltrt of the officers of the ship -thltt they 
connived at the men getting away. Which is 
the true version ? As far as !'.fr. Milman is con­
cerned we have no help ; we can take whichever 
we choose. I slty there are evidences that Mr. 
Milman entered into this matter with prejmlice 
-that he wanted to find something out, and 
t.hat in trying to find something out-as some 
hon. member sltid he got the wrong pig by the 
ear. No wonder the pig squeaked. It is in 
the nature of a pig to squeak. It is in 
the nature of the right pig to squeak, and it is 
very much in the nature of the wrong pig to 
squeltk. Mr. Hodgson, feeling confident he had 
a good cause, has squeaked, and it is not to be 
wondered at. Now, ::Yir. Speaker, I have 
a word or two to say with regard to what 
fell from the hon. member for Bundanblt. 
I was unfortunately not in the House at the 
time, but I know what the hon. member said. 
He stated that from the very first he was con­
vinced that the committee- at any rate the 
chairman of the committee, that is myself-did 
not intend to go into the thing fairly-that I was 
either incompetent for the position I occupied, or 
that I was corrupt. 

Mr. FOOTE : That is not true, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: That is the fltir inference I 
cltn draw from it. It was 11 position I did not 
seek to occupy. If I hltd known that asking for 
the committee-the very fact of being the mover 
in the matter-reltlly meant that I should be the 
chairman of the committee, I might have hesi­
tated. The member for Bundan ba states that he 
was led to the cone! usion from the way I asked 
questions, that I was biased, that I was there ltS 
the "'dvot·,te of the petitioner. 

Mr. FOOTE : I must contmdict the hon. 
member. I did not slty anything of the sort. 

Mr. MIDGLEY: Well, I must take the 
hon. member's denial. I can only say he used 
words to that effect. 

Mr. FOOTE : No. I said I became pre­
judiced ; I did not slty anything about you. 
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Mr. MIDGLEY: I quite admit that the hon. 
member was prejudiced ; I believe he was the 
only prejudiced man of the committee, and 
as he has not spared me in this matter I shall 
not spare him, because the matter is one now 
for the public to judge. The hon. member 
stated that the questions I asked were ques. 
tions that showed my bias in the matter. 
I am going to read to the House the 
questions I did ask, and I shall show where 
the interjections of the hon. member came in. 
The first question I asked Mr. Hodgson was­
'' You are the owner of the '' lf'orest King?" 
Answer-" I am." Then the examination went 
on as follows :-

" You were the owner of this schooner at the time 
she was seized? I 'vas. 

" Had you been long engaged in the business of 
labour recruiting~ About three years. 

" Had this vessP-1 been on a labour voya.ge before:-
It was her third trip. 

" \Yith the same captain ? Xo. 
'· \Yith the same Government agent? Xo. 
"Both new to ller :- Both new. I may mention that 

Captain Dir~kson was for many years before in my emplo\'· 
in other ves~els. ~ 

"\Vas he employed in the labour trade before-in 
labour vessels? He was. 

" In any labour vessels of yours? Yes. 
"And while so employed had there been any reports 

or complaints aga5nst him? Xo, indeed. 
"1\Tor had he been 'logged' by the Government 

agent.? Ko ; there was never any complaint against 
him.'' 
It was at this juncture that the hon. member for 
Bundanha interposed, and said-" \Veil, I do 
not know whether the hon. member is retained 
as counsel for the petitioner, but these are 
leading questions." He has said that I made no 
answer. I treated the interjection with the con­
tempt it deserved. The only answer I was 
disposed to give was to vacate the chair, 
and throw up the whole business, but I thought 
it was not wise to attach too much importance to 
the interjection of the hon. member. \Vas there 
anything in these questioNs to justify the hon. 
member in asking if I was retained as counsel for 
the petitioner? Moreover, the hon. member said 
he saw a list of questions written out. There 
was a list, hut it was of questions written out by 
myself. Not a single question was suggested 
to me by anybody. The list was not put into 
my hand by anybody else. They were my own 
questions, and I should have been very glad to 
have had the position occupied by someone else. 
But there are now other hon. members here who 
wish to debate the question, and I am very 
willing to give way for them. 

The HoN. SIR. T. MciL WRAITH said : Mr. 
Speaker,-! have not been present during the 
whole of the debate, and am not aware of all 
that has been said. I had, however, the oppor­
tunity of hearing the speech made by the Premier, 
in reply to the hon. member for :Fassifern. I 
objected to the style in which that hon. member 
was interrupted by the Premier when he was 
stating the case in favour of his motion. I thought 
myself that, had the Premier done right, he 
would rather have complimented that hon. mem­
ber on having so clearly stated the case. I think 
it took away from the position of the Premier 
when he interrupted one who is comparatively 
a young member, and interrupted him too on 
one particular point that I noticed, with the 
effect of destroying that part of the hon. mem­
ber's argument. I think that was quite unworthy 
of the position of the Premier, and he ought at 
all eventB to have depended on the merits of the 
case, and I was no less astonished to find the 
Premier resting behind legal technicalities in 
place of facing the question straight. The 
Premier commenced hy saying he was not 
going into deto,il, hut the last part of hi• speech 
was nothing else but details-a taking up of 

the time of the Home hy reading a lot of 
unmeaning evidence, that of Mr. Milman; and 
he never showed the House how the argument 
applied at all. \Vhen the hon. gentleman comes 
forward and tells us that we should discharge 
from our minds altogether the proceedings of the 
Royal Commission, and that the only case we 
have to consider is simply whether we ought to 
adopt the report of the committee, he is telling 
us thorough nonsense. How is it that we can 
separate the work of the Royal Commission 
from the report of the committee? \Vhy, the 
whole of the evidence of the Royal Com­
mission was adopted by the committee. It 
forms a part of their report, quite as much as 
the evidence taken by themselves. We have 
also the additional advantage of the cross­
examination of the Commissioners themselves, 
which in itself is a valuable addition to the 
evidence. Hon. members should read it, and if 
they do I have not the slightest doubt they will 
come to the same conclusion as the committee. 
The Premier says that the whole question is: 
Was the seizure of the "Forest King" justifiable 
at the time that it took place ?-and he said that 
if it was justifiable, if Mr. Milman ho,d reason· 
able grounds for taking the action he did, it 
did not m8tter at all what action took place 
afterwards ; the Government are responsible 
for nothing. 'l'he answer to that was put very 
clearly before us by the hon. member for Cook, 
shortly after dinner. I agree myself that if we, 
by the injudicious action of any of our officers, 
have brought any loss on any of the citizens of 
the colony, we are responsible ; and I believe it 
can be easily shown that :VIr. Milman brought 
the loss upon the owners of the "Forest King." 
The case is very ulear. J'lrr. Milman, who was 
viewed with evident suspicion hy the Govern­
ment, sought in the broadest terms for some 
authority to act. Up to the last moment the 
Government declined to give that authority, 
or any authority whatever, except that when 
in the South Seas he might report. They 
evidently viewed him with suspicion, and 
no authority was given to him, except that 
he was to keep his eyes about him and write to 
the Government. Yet he saw fit to take action 
in a very peculiar case. The "J!'orest King" 
was boarded by the officers of a man-of-war. 
They examined the officers of the ship, and the 
Government agent, and came tu the conclusion 
that all was correct, and they signed to that 
effect. Afterwards Mr. Milman communicated 
information to them, which information sub­
sequently turned out to be completely wrong, 
but which when given was, in the opinion of the 
Chief Justice, at all events, a sufficient justifi­
cation for the captain of the "Swinger" to 
examine into the matter himself. Well he went 
on hoard or sent his officers on board again, and 
they made a further examination. That examin­
ation was of a very peculiar kind, and ought to 
have excited the suspicion of the Government. 
The information given to the captain of the 
" Swinger" was that the boys on hoard the 
" Forest King" had been kidnapped, or at all 
events that they had been got on board and were 
being taken to Quenslaned not knowing the 
terms of their engagement. That was proved 
to the satisfaction of the captain and officers 
of the " Swinger" by this process : islanders 
from the different islands were brought up 
to he examined on that point; in the case of a 
Teste Island boy the questions we1·e put through 
a missionary boy who understood English, as 
was proved a month or two afterwards when he 
was brought down to Brisbane and proved him­
self to be a very efficient interpreter. One would 
lmve supposed that the communication would 
have been made direct between the interpreter 
who knew the Teste language, as well as English, 



Seizure of the [6 NovEMBER.] "Forest King." 1519 

and the Teste Island boy ; but it was not done 
in that way. The questions were first put 
by Mr. Milman to an English missionary, 
who understood Lifu, and he translated tha 
question to the missionary boy, who, in 
his turn, put it into the Teste language. 
Then the missionary boy got back the answer 
in the Teste language, which he translated 
in Lifu to the missionary, who translated 
it into English to Mr. Milman and the captain. 
Does that not look su~picious in the face of it. 
Here we have a boy capable of speaking both 
the English and the Teste languages, and 
where was the necessity for an additional 
interpreter in the shape of an English mis­
sionary who intercepted with an additional 
language? It was quite impot~sible that Mr. 
Milman or the officers of the ship could know 
what was taking place. The interpreter knew 
the language at each end of the chain, and 
there was no necessity for an additional 
language being introduced. No one could know 
w_hat was really going on, except the missionary 
himself, who had sole control over all that 
passed. Going a step further, let us look at the 
examination of l\fr. l\Iilm"'n, and see how he 
tried to evade the point, how he equivocated and 
prevaricated when brought to the point as to 
whether that was actually the means of com­
munication between the islanders and him­
self. He would not say it positively, but 
he at least admitted that that was the way in 
which the evidence was taken. No one who 
thinks can help coming to the conclusion that 
the missionary wanted to have the entire com­
munication between the islanders and the 
captain of the " Swinger " in his own hands, 
without the slightest check from Mr. Milman or 
anyone else. The result was that on account of 
the action of Mr.l\J:ilman, who was not authoriBed 
by the Queensland Government, and whose action 
was quite nlt1·a vi1·es, and whose only authority 
for acting at all, according to the Premier, was 
that he was an honest man, induced the captain 
of the "Swinger" to take the ship in charge, 
and it remained in charge until the case was tried 
before the Brisbane court, with the result which 
we all know. The Government had unlimited 
means, as far as money was concerned, to do 
justice to their case, and to exonerate the officers 
of the ''Swinger" ; and they did their best 
because they felt themselves responsible to a 
certain extent, owing to Mr. Milman's action. 
The court decided that the Government had 
failed to prove that those boys were kidnapped, 
or that any of them were there without having 
been properly recruited according to the law and 
the regulations under that law of the Queensland 
Government. The owners of the ship proved that 
in each individualcaseevery boy on board had been 
properly recruited. Now let us carry the matter 
a step further. After that decision was come to 
the boys had to go through another ordeal. The 
Government had kept back, and properly kept 
back, the passing of those boys by the Polynesian 
inspector in Brisbane ; but after the matter was 
decided a strict inquiry was made a" to whether 
all those boys had been properly recruited. Mr. 
vVoodward, the head of the staff, who under 
ordinary circumstances would have entrusted the 
work to one of his subordinate officers, took the 
examination upon himself, and he certified weeks 
after the trial that every one of them had been 
properly recruited according to the laws of 
Queensland. Now comes the next stage in the 
proceedings, which the Government are very 
anxious to separate from the case of the " 'B'orest 
King." The Government appointed a Royal 
Commission to examine into the way in which 
the labourers from certain ships had been re­
cruited, and among them the recruits that had 
come by the "Forest King." One member uf 

this Commission was a member of Parliament, 
who has never yet been known to have a 
different idea from the Premier on any 
subject, who is one of the most subservient 
supporters of the Government, and whose 
qualification, as stated by the Premier, was 
that from his know ledge of his character 
he was a good man to make a juryman; 
that he had a good evenly b<tlanced mind. In 
choosing jurors, however, there are always two 
parties. There is one p:uty that can challenge 
at once, without giving any reason at all. Mr. 
Buckland in that case would have been thrown 
out at once, without any reason being asked 
at all. If the right of challenge had been 
yielded at all, Mr. Buckland, being so strong 
a partizan of the Government, would have been 
thrown out, because it would have been shown 
why he should never have been a man chosen to 
try such a case. \Vho was the next one? l'!Ir. 
l'!Iilman, the culprit, upon whom we are sitting 
now-who is being tried. He was the originator 
of the mystery. He tried to get into this coolie 
and black labour racket, and had got the Govern­
ment into all these difficulties, and got the 
captain of the "Swinger" to seize this ship, 
which seizur~ the Supreme Court of this colony 
declared to he illegal. The man w hu, if there is 
anyone in this colony, is on his trial in this case. 
He was appointed the second member of the 
Royal Commission. \Vho was the next man ap­
pointed to be tt juror? The next man appointed 
to be a juror was a man who was utterly igno­
rant of the condition of the colony-a perfect 
"new chnm." He has earned his spurs here 
as well as in other countries as a journalist, 
otherwise he had no !qualification whatever. 
Anyone who has read that report writte1' 
by him-because there is no question ::bout who 
has written it-so far as it may be considered a 
literary composition, Mr. Rose has the whole 
merit of that report, for every word of it is his 
own. In fact, one can see that it is not 
the report of a lawyer who had digested all 
the evidence given, and had reported according 
to that evidence. It is just what a first-class 
correspondent would have written to a paper 
knowing the kind of cue he was expected to give. 
It is not, I say, a digest of the evidence, but a 
first-class report of a man taking; up a certain 
line. It has been said thttt Mr. Rose has been 
hardly treated by the committee. I should like 
to know how? There is no doubt he was in a 
position peculiarly pitiable. I have read the 
evidence and I can see it all. Mr. Rose goes up 
to the different places and takes only one class 
of evidence. He knows perfectly well that other 
evidence should have been taken-for instance, 
the men whose character and interests in life 
in the colony are so much at stake-the 
captain, owner, and inspector on board of 
that ship. That evidence, of course, ought to 
have been taken. JYir. Rose admits it at once. 
\Vhy was that evidence not taken ? Because 
Mr. Milman had put objections in the way. 
I say it is actually pitiable to see-I can fancy at 
all events the way in which Mr. Rose tried to 
get out of answering that question plainly­
that either Mr. Buckland or Mr. Milman had 
put objections in the way. ,Just consider how 
this thing has been managed. vVith any 
respect for decency could l\Ir. Milman have 
sat while the "J!'orest King" case was under con­
sideration? No; and be was judiciously absent. 
Mr. Bucklanrl again was absent during a 
great part of the time, and I believe during a 
portion of the time the "Forest King" case 
was going on. vVhile they claim the credit 
of not having interfered with the case in which 
they were directly and personally interested - I 
am referring now more particnlarly to Mr. 
l\Iilman-they claim credit for having the good 
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taste not to be present in a case of that kind, 
but they carefully left their proxies with Mr. 
Rose, that only certain particular witnesses 
should be called, thereby ensuring that the result 
of the case would be in their favour. Talk 
about that being justice in a country of this 
sort ! It is ridiculous to consider it in that 
form. Look at the almost ridiculous conclusions 
they came to! They might have had sufficient 
respect for the Chief Justice of the Supreme 
Court to have read, at all events, the evidence 
that was taken when the "l<'orest Kin~<" case was 
tried in Brisbane. I will put it in another shape: 
Mr. Milman acknowledged that night, when 
the recruits were examined by Her Majesty's 
officers, that five out of those on board the 
"Forest King" understood that they were 
engaged for three years, and meant to go. It 
was proved afterwards, in the evidence, thn.t 
among the twenty-one men returned to the 
islands, there were certain boys of that five. 
But, sir, in the face of that, this is what, on the 
evidence of the boys, those commissioners thought 
they were entitled to report with reference to 
the" Forest King." They say:-

" 1Ve are of opinion that all the recruits brought by 
the 'Forest King' 'vere deeoyed on board under false 
pretences; that the nature of their pngagements was 
never explained to them; that none ot' them understood 
that they were to work on sugar plantations for any 
_pel'iod, much less for three years." 

This is a more severe verdict than was given in 
any of the other cases, and is opposed to the 
whole evidence given on their own side of the case, 
and the admission that a large number of those 
men-" five" is the number stated, but it was 
afterwards admitted that there were more 

1-five at all events of these men verfectly 
understood the arrangement, and were '}uite 
wiling to abide by it, and actually did 
abide by it. I have got down now to the 
Royal Commission. >Ye have here a Hoyal 
Commission which has reported that the whole of 
these "boys" were kidnapped. The Supreme 
Court tried the case under quite different con­
ditions altogether. The Commission had the 
whole of the Government influence and the 
Government money to get the best evidence they 
possibly could to establish, if possible, that one 
single "boy" out of the lot had been kid­
napped. The judge laid it down as law, 
that if they could prove one single case" 
where a "boy" was brought on board without 
understanding his agreement-where the regula­
tions were violated-that would have been a 
sufficient justification for the captain of the 
" Swinger" to seize the ship. The result was 
quite different ; not only did the Government 
fail to prove one single case, but the other side 
proved most distinctly every case, on the part 
of the defendants, to have been a legitimate case 
of recruiting. 

The PREMIER : No ! 

The HoN. Sm T. MciLWRAITH: Every 
case was proved to be a legitimate case of 
recruiting. 

The PREMIER: No! 

The HoN. Sm T. MciLW"RAITH: "No." 
If that is the way in which the hon. member 
always tries to get out of it, I have the docu­
ments here and I will read the judgment of the 
Chief Justice. It has been read before but I will 
read it again. It is contained in the last para­
graph of the judge's summing up. I thought I 
might have been able to give it in a few words, 
so as to save the time of hon. members, but I will 
read it all :-

" I think the weight of evidence is rather in favour of 
Oh a die and Harry"-

Two of the witnesses who were examined for l\Ir. 
Hodgson-

" I think the weight of evidence is rather in favour of 
Charlie and Harry having made the islanders Hl:der­
stand the nature of their engagements in the first in­
stance, in which case the defendants must have the benefit 
of it as a. proof of consent. rrhat, some of the islanders 
did not rf•ply to Charlie in :Hr. "l\Iilman's presence after 
Jerr.v had endea.Youred to speak to them may have 
arisen from the unusual circumstances of the arrival of 
the man-of-war, the frequent qUf"';;tioning, .Jerry's des­
cription of t,he risks of eoming to Queensland, and other 
incidf'nts or the honr which would make men, who arc 
but ·children of a larger growth,' aet like children and 
remain silent. Uharlie gave :Jlr 1\lilman to understand 
(\vhethcr in words or by ' hanging down his head ' does 
not appear) -but somehow :J.ir. Milman understood 
that Charlie meant he could not communicate with the 
before-mentioned five natiye:-;, which is. of course, 
true if they had beco1ue unwilUng to reply to hlm, 
I tbink that it is to be regretted that the ship's 
interpreter,-: were not tested before Jerry had been 
ano-weCl to spe:1k to the i~l:wders. It seems clear that 
from some person's information they had been ilis­
crerlited in }fr. J.filman's mind. Bnt assuming th·1t 
Charlie and Harry did not truly or correctly state to 
the natives the terms of the proposed agreements, is 
there an.v cvidmwc tl1at the recruiter. captain, or Gov­
ermnent agent \vere parties to the fraud or mistake r 
I think there is none. They 'ivere ignorant of the 
languages· in which ('harlie and Harry spokf>, or pre­
tended to s11eak. Is there not, on the contrary, then, 
evidence that the agent, eaptain, and reernitcr. fnl­
tilled all the reqnireinent..-; of the law, and hon(l jidP 
believed that the natives had consented 1 o come 
with them, understa!:!ding substantially the terms of 
their contract? On behalf of the Crov,rn it is said 
that there \Vas bad faith on thtl part of the Govern­
ment agent, tht~ cnptain, and the recruiter~ that 
they were all engaged in the commission of these 
felonies. rrhere is no evidence. other than that I have 
already de-:crihed in snpport of this s'veeping accu~a­
tion. 'ro believe them guilty I must, not. only have full 
confidence in the truthfulness of the natives, in .Jnrry's 
accura('y and truth as to tlwir statements to him, in 
3-:lr. 3Iilman's perfect comprehension of Charlie's acts. 
and of the motives anrl conduct of the natives when 
questioned; but I mnst disregard the sworn tf'~"'timony 
of the persons nccnscd. and I must conclnde that the 
novernment. agent deliberately falsified the official log 
from the beginning of the voyage to the time of the 
seizure. on purpose to aid and at1et tl1e ship's officers in 
the commission ofthPse offences. 1'he Government agent 
is an officer who has heen accredited by the Qneenslaud 
Government on six successive o~casions. No questions 
were asked tending to discredit the character of the 
agent, the ca.ptain, or the recruiter. The Government 
agent complied with all the regulations and instructions 
of the Government, Rnd the captain !ieferred to his 
directions and control in all matters relating to the 
employment of interpreters a.nd recruiting and landing 
nat1ves \Yho did not appPar to unclerstand the terms of 
agreement. rrlw ngent regularly records the circum­
stance where the natives appeared fnlly to understand 
their agreements. To ~ome of them the terms were 
thriec explained by three different interpreters. Captain 
::\Iarx told the agent his log was 'well \vritten,' which 
I understood at- first as conveying an imputation on 
the conduct of tltc agent. Captain }Iarx, howr·ver. 
explained that he meant. not that the Government 
ttgcnt was 'a fraud.' but that he had Pnde~tvonred to 
do his duty. If he did so, and -was satisfied, ·unless it 
can be shown that tlle captain and recrnitm· knmv 
that the natiYes had been deceived, or that they did 
not, in fact, understand the terms of the agreement 
thev were about to enter into, or that they were not 
"\viliing to come with them, the case for the Crown 
must fail. Upon this point alone-the proved good 
faith of the defendants. without reference to the 
JH'oof of actual consent- the case for the Crown hHS 
failed. There is fairly satisfactory evidence that the 
officers of the 'Forest King' acted in good. faith, 
llelieving the natives fairly recruited and consenting 
Jlarties to their removal to Queensland. ;.J"everthe-
1~-"'.;;s, the circmnstane.e . .s vresented to t'aptaln ~:Iarx:, 
on the report of :J-Ir. ::\Tihnan, were such as to raise 
a rp;t~onable grouud of suspicion, and to justify the 
:-eiznre and detention. 1~11€ Imperial officer being­
jnstificd, it follows in this pari icular case, without 
laying down any absolute rule as to damages in future 
f'Rses, that there can be no damage agaiu.st the Crmvn 
in re~pect oi' bh; act ; but when the Crown authorities 
11roeeed for condemnation and do not succeed they 
must, like other unsuccessful suitors, pay their 
opponent's costs. I therefore pronounce that it has not 
been proved that the ship had been, during her said 
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voya,ge, or at the tim3 of her seizure, employed in the 
commission of a.ny of the offences cha.rged; and order 
that the said vessel he restored. together with the goods 
and effects ou board thereof, and with costs." 
That I take to be as plain an admission as it is 
possible to conceive on the part of the Chief : 
.T nstice, that not only did the Government fail 
to sheet home to the owners of the vessel the 
charge that they had recrnited illegally, but that 
it had been actually proved, on the other hand, 
that every islander who was on board that ship 
had been recruiter! according to the laws and 
regubtions of the colony of Queensland. 

The PREMIER: No. 
The HoN. Sm '1'. MciL\VRAITH: I sav that 

is the effect of the judgment of the con-;.t, I 
know quite well that the hon. gentleman hns 
said the opposite, bnt that is my interpreta­
tion of what the judge said, and which is borne 
out by the statements I have just read. \Vith 
regard to the last point, the j l!dge said that 
there was justifie.ttion for the captain of the i 
" Swinger" in the action lw took- that he ' 
was justified in that action by the information 
which he had rAceived, and that got him out , 
of paying darnages. \Vhy? Sin1ply by throw- ' 
ing the responsibility on Mr. Milrnan, and 
thereby on tu the Queensland Government ; 
because the argument used by the Chief ,Justice 
says this : that ?.Ir. ::vi:ilman being in .so respon­
sible a position as an officer of the <cluennsland 
Governrnent surely he could be taken aB an 
accredited authority for a statement such a' he 
made to the capt;\in of the ''Swinger," and 
therefore the c:1ptain of the '"Swinger'' \Vas 
ju,;tified in the action he took. It is clear that 
the judge did not agre" with the evidence taken 
that resulted in the seizure ; and in stating 
those facts he threw the whole rhponsibility 
on to the Queensland Government. \Ve have 
now got as far a;;; the Cornrnission. The Corn­
mision, I hold, ought to have taken very dif­
ferent evidence to what they did, and having 
declined to take that evidence and having written 
that report, I think a autn may he accused of 
being very thin-skinned if he comphins of having 
been asked to justify what he has done as a com­
lllissioner before a committee of this Hoase. .Yfr. 
Rose was asked to justify that, and he admits that 
he did not take the evidence that he ought to have 
taken ; that, had he been left to his own juclg­
rnent as a barrister-or as an honel:5t n1an, aR I 
would put it-not using the two terms synony­
mously-that had he acte-d according to hig 
own judgment he would have called other 
evidence; in fact, he virtually admits 
that he could not answer certain questions 
without invalidating his report, ancl he 
asks the committee piteously whether he 
should say anything t<J invalichtte that report. 
That does not at all justify the impassioned 
terms in which the Premier com]Jlained of the 
treatment 1\fr. Rose had received from the com­
mittee. He seemerl to forget that Mr. Hose 
had put himself in that position, and that had 
he called proper evidence the result would 
have been that probably he would not 
have been called upon to give evidence be­
fore the select committee. I am perfectly 
satisfied that had he don8 so he would not 
have brought up such a report as he did with 
regard to the case of the "Forest King." 
\V ell, sir, thrtt is not the only result of it. The 
result goes further. \Ve have got this member 
of Parliament, who is essentirtlly a party man, 
without a hair-breadth of opinion on any point 
in the world. vVe have got Milman, who is one 
of the parties implicated as the originatOl' of this 
mischief; and we have got Mr. llose. Ko\v, 
what is his position. No sooner does he send in 
his report than he writes another report to the 
English people in the shape of a letter to the 
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Time,,, I will ask anyone who has read that 
letter, if they consider it a fair account of what 
has been going on in Queensland. I have read 
it, and the comments on it, and I believe it 
to be a gross libel upon the colony of 
Queemland, and that it has done it an 
immense amount of discredit. The same 
moming on which that lett8r appeared in the 
'l'imes an article appeared in that paper re­
flecting on the way in which the slave tmde was 
carried on in Quec,nsland. But the Times article 
was mild in comparison with an article on the 
same subject that appeared at the same time 
in the St. James's Gazette, which accused us of 
being a nation of slaveholders, and hinted that 
the South Sea Islanders that were left in Queerm­
land harl actually been kidnapped. ::'\ow, I have 
stated it before, and I repeat it now, that on 
the smne evidence tltken by JVf r. Hose the 
colony can well be convicted of having in 
its possession at the present time 10,000 or 
12,000 kidnapped islanders. The same evidence 
that was taken by the Commission can be got 
to convict every shiv's load of i,;landers now 
being brought to the colony. Take the ;ase on 
the umtter of probability alone. The Govern­
ment who have been on the lookout for abuses in 
the South Sea island trade were, I presume, not 
likely to haYe cases of this kind in greater 
number tlmn those which occurred during the 
,.,:rJii<W of the late Government. If kidnapping 
has taken place during the reign of the present 
Govern1nent how 1nuch \vorse mu:st the evil have 
have been under the late Government? At the 
time the Commission was appointed, 10,000 
or 12,000 ishwders had come into the country 
nnder the previous Government, but those 
rnen's ca~e:; had never been inquired into, 
and it was the duty of the Government, 
1nerely if there wa,s a chance of one single 
slave living on any plantation in Queens­
land, to in vesti"·ate that case :m cl decide whether 
he ,;]ionic! not be sent back to his home. A1·e 
we to come to the conclusion that the whole of 
the kidnapping has been confined to these six 
ships, or are we to conclude that kidnapping 
took place under the previous Government, and 
that not one of those cases has been inquired 
into? \Vhat conclusion are we to come to? 
Either that the present Government have con­
nived at a system of slavery and have, at the 
same time, had the cunning to put it down, 
or that they have submitted to a system 
of :1lavery which is now exir-;ting in the 
colony. The G<>vernment cannot avoid either 
one nr othet of tho~e conclusions. I say, sir, 
that the whole case discloses the fact that the 
Premier and the Government gave the clue 
to the Commission as to what they were to do. 
From the constitution of the Commission there 
is not the slightest doubt about what they were 
meant to do. They took their cue and they per­
formed their businese well, bnt that 1\Ir. Rose is 
thoroughly ashamed of his part of the work I 
have not the slightest doubt. I have no doubt 
wh><tever that, so far ab his credit as a barrister 
is concerned, he reg-rets the day when he sat on 
this Commission. The work has given him, 
perhaps, some kndos as a journalist, bnt has 
destroyed his fair fame as a barrister and his 
reputation as a judge of facts. Before leaving 
this subject I will draw your attention to another 
point in the evidence which the committee have 
brou<Sht oL1t as far as l'ossible, and which 
one ennnot but see was right after reading 
the evidence taken before the Vice-Admiralty 
Court. I refer to the way in which the evidence 
of this boy Chm·lie was ignored by the !loyal 
Commission. They got hold of a boy named 
Ca()>o, who figured prnn1inently in the '"Hopeful" 
cas~. He acted as one of the interpreters when 
the " Forest King" W'IS taken charge of. That 
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the boy's interpretation was credible 1 do not 
think anyone can believe. Was it not extra­
ordinary that a boy of that sort, young, and so 
untruthful, should be brought down here, should 
not be considered able to take care of himself, 
and should be confined in the house of one of the 
commissioners until an opportunity was ghen 
to take him away? I do not think that it was 
fair to discredit this boy Char lie in the way in 
which he has been discredited. Here is a boy 
who was on board when the " Forest King" was 
seized, and he appeared in the Vice-Admiralty 
Court as one of the best English-speaking 
witnesses of the whole lot. Now, the reason why 
the examination of the boys was put. specially in 
the hands of Mr. ::VIilman on that night of the 
seizure was, that it was alleg·ed that there was 
no one on board who was able to speak the 
Sud-Est language. But what are the facts of 
the case? This boy Char lie, who was on board 
the ":Forest King," and who said he could spe<tk 
the language, was not only rejected, but his ser­
vices were not called into requisition; but when he 
came to Bl'isbane "'nd was examined before the 
court, what was the result ? It is a difficult 
thing for people who do not know the Sud-Est 
to judge as to whether an islander is or is 
not speaking the language, but an intelligent 
man who knows languages can put a te,ilt 
which will satisfy all intelligent men as to 
whether the language is actually being spoken 
by the interpreter. Now, this boy, whose ser­
vices were not availed of on board the "Forest 
King," was brought into court by the counsel 
for the defendant, and the opposing side was 
challenged to examine him to see whether he 
could talk the language or not. The test was 
actually submitted, and some Sud-:Est boys 
were brought into court, with the result that 
the Chief Justice in his notes said that the 
interpreter freely communicated with the Sud­
Est boys. Now, can it be believed that the boy 
had acquired that language during the short time 
he was in town here? The fact of the matter 
is that he knew the language all along, and we 
know also that he was the best English scholar 
of the lot. I will not, however, go into details 
and point out how the witnesses of the 
Government have been since discredited. 
There is no doubt in the mind of any­
one who reads what I consider to be im­
partial reports--there is no doubt in the mind 
of anyone who reads the B1·i"bane C01uier's report 
of the expedition to retnrn these islanders-that 
that expedition had been arranged, and was known 
of amongst themselves ; and there is no doubt 
that that boy Cago had told them that if thev 
said they had only been engaged for three month"s 
they would be returned to their country, and 
have plenty of trade to take back with them. 
Do not we knuw perfectly well that to homesick 
boys that would be quite sufficient to justify 
them in telling the lies they did ? That they did 
tell lies, there is not the slightest doubt on the 
part of anyone who reads the evidence. As a 
matter of fact the boys admitted it to the 
Cou1·ier reporter, and to the reporter of the 
Sydney Moming Herald. The Premier says 
that we should not give so much money for 
damages if the report of the committee be 
affirmed, and gives as a reason, that lYir. 
Hodgson has offered the ship to him for 
employment within the last few months, at a 
low price, and therefore she could not be very 
profitable. There is no wonder that he did ; if 
it were only within the last few months that he 
made the offer, we could not be surprised if he 
had offered her upon any terms. But that does 
not prove that a great loss has not been sustained. 
The committee were not at all called upon to 
prove the amount of damages that Mr. Hodgson 
has sustained, for the reason that in the cross-

action which was tried in the Admiralty Court 
the damages were not questioned by the Gov­
ernment ; in fact they were admitted, and 
if damages had gone against the Government 
they would have had to pay them. Therefore, 
the committee had every reason to suppose that, 
the Government having admitted the damages, 
they were not c11lled upon to go into the details. 
I do not want to go into the details that T 
intended to, and which I should have been 
perfectly jnotified in going into. I will simply 
give a 1'(5U1n.e of the case. ~Ir. Milman, acting 
on behalf of the Queensland Government-and 
his deeds h>we been since adopted by the 
Queensland Government-took certain action in 
the seizure of the " :Forest King," that resulted 
in a great loss to the owner. The case came on in 
the court in Brisbane, held before the Chief ,T ustice, 
and the facts were thoroughly gone into-where 
the Uovermnent had every power, and they 
exercised it, of bringing the best witnesses they 
coulcl on their side ; the result being that the 
court decided that all the islanders had been 
lawfully recruited. 

The PREYITER : No. 

The HoN. Sm T. :MciLWRAITH: In addi­
tion to that, or included in that, was the result 
that the Government did not prove one single 
case in which the law had been violated-to put 
it in the mildest way. That was the result after 
a most thorough inve.stigation. The judge then 
stated, as plainly as possible, that legally he 
could not give damages against the Crown, 
hut if his judgment meant anything it 
meant that, equitably, the Queensland Govern­
ment were responsible, because it was the bad 
judgment of Mr. Milman that led Captain 
Marx so far astray from his duty. The case 
then went on a further stage. The Government 
themselves took up the examination, and, as in 
duty bound, examined the boys. It was no 
ordinary exmnination; it was a close investiga­
tion by the chief inspector, in Brisbane. He 
examined those boys, and actually certified that 
thfly were properly recruited, and gave them Ol:t 
to the different employers, and they went to their 
work. Then came the next case. The Govern­
ment, for their own political reasons, appointed the 
commission, which was clearly a one-sided commis­
sion. In the first place it had the merit of secur­
ing a decision in one way, and in the next place it 
had the merit of rewarding their own supporters 
for what they did. Therefore it was a suborned 
commission from the start, and no report could 
have been expected except one, and that one 
actually came. Then, of course, as that reversed 
the decision of the Supreme Court, where evi­
dence was taken from both parties, I hold 
that it was a very proper thing on the 
part of this House that they should ask 
for a committee. That committee sat, and 
it has been competent for the Government 
to give any evidence they liked. I think the 
most damaging evidence against the Govern­
ment is the evidence given by Mr. Rose, in which 
he admits that the evidence he took was not the 
evidence 1Jpon which an honest man ought to 
have come to a conclusion. He admits that in 
his evidence; and, so far from considering that 
he has been in any way bullied by the com­
mittee, I think he has been treated wonderfully 
leniently. I am told that he was rather 
pitied for the humiliating position into which 
he was forced, not through the way in which 
the questions were asked, but from the very 
fact that he had made a report without taking 
proper evidence. We have therefore the Supreme 
Court evidence, and the evidence of the committee 
of this House-upon which committee I believe 
the majority were actually Government sup­
porters. But apart from that altogether, it was 
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a committee that was approved by this House, 
although the House mif(ht have had the certain 
control over it by_ making it, elective by ballot. 
\Ve h_ave the ;-erdiCt of the Supreme Court, and 
of ~hrs commrttee, and that of the Cmnmission 
whwh was organised by the Government for the 
purpose of bringing before the conntry a fore-
gone conclusion. · 

M~. KELLET'\ said: 1\Ir. Speaker,--I should 
not_hke to allowtlns matter to go to a vote without 
Hay1:1g a few wordH upon it. Previous tnthe 1natter 
comm!)" before the House I care£ 11lly went through 
the evrdence, so that I shou],[ have my opinion 
upon it before it was debD.ted here. ·I cannot 
see where the exception can be taken to the 
terms o~ tl;e r~port. There is only one very little 
I';latter m tt~m the 2nd clause-that mig-ht pos­
srbly !'e altered. That is where it says, "There is 
no. evr;ience to show that the owner of the ' Forest 
King, or anyone engaged npon her durino- the 
':oyac;e", etc. I think it should have" said 
'·any white man." It would then have been 
perfectly correct, although no doubt some 
isl~tnders rnight know smnething a.bont it. I 
th;nk that has be~n pretty well proved by the 
evrdence, and I thmk the mover of the revort is 
to be :ong-ratulated upon the trouble he took 
over rt. I thoroughly belieYe in a man 
\~~1en he takes . an:ything in ~1a,nd, going 
rr,ht throug:h wr~h ;t, and spanng no pains 
or tro~1ble 1n bnng1ng about the concbudon 
he thmks a proper one. I think the 
hon. member and other hon. meml1ers of the 
committee got the best evidence they conld to lead 
them to come to a fair rlecision. I think a better 
or more reliable agent than Mr. 'l'hompson could 
not have been on board the ship so far as we can 
gather; an~ I must say I am very pleased to 
read tlns endence and see this report, and I am 
sn_re that a great number of jJeople in Queensland 
wrll be very proud to know that they are 
able to change some opinions that· they 
have held and be able to think that all the 
ships which come here with South Sea 
Islanders are not the tmme as the "Hopeful." 
I was mybelf led further aw"'y than I think I 
wonld be now in this black labour business, for 
the reason that I thonvht nearly all the cases 
were like the "Hopeful" case, as onlv the ·worst 
cases have been brought before us, .. the better 
ones not coming under our eyes at all. I a1n 
sure that the people of Queensland will be !;lad 
to find from the report of these six nnprejudiced 
gentlemen that they are not all " Hopeful" 
cases. It is well known that I have a strr•no­
feeling against black labour, and that I httv~ 
spoken against it, both inside and outside 
this House. . If. there is any kidnapping 
connected wrth rt the sooner it is done 
away with the better. Bnt to come to this case, 
we find that the Government agent, J\lr. 
Thomyson, wa_s, as ha" been admitted by the 
Premrer, a rehable man. The first island the 
vesse~ went to he would not allow the ca]Jtain to 
recrurt; he would net allow any recruitino- to 
take. place _before it suitable interpreter ~vas 
obtame;l, whrch was. not done until they got to the 
fourt? rslan~ at w hrch they called. He did not 
permrt any Islanders to be recruited until they 
obtained an interpreter who could make the 
islanders understaml their agreement. I do not 
think any man could have gone further 
than he did. It is said that all the evi­
dence taken by the committee was on one 
side. I deny that. Mr. Hodo-son and the 
captain may be said to be on one ~'ide, but Mr. 
\Voo?ward and the Government agent could not 
be sard to be on the same side; nnd Mr. \Vood­
w'!'rd, who knew that it would be a dangerous 
thmg- for a Government officer to be cauaht 
tripping, stated in his evidence that he \~as 

satisfied the islanders knew the nature of their 
agreement, that he certified to that effect, and 
tlu':t he allowe~ them to be sent awlty to planta­
tatwns. I beheve that the conclusion he came 
to was a proper one. l'\ow, I will refer to 
J\!Ir. R:os:, one of t~e members of the Royal 
ComnnsSJOI~. I_ thmk the way in which 
he gave hrs eVIdence has been pretty well 
put before the House by the leader of the 
Oppositi<~n; Ev_idently !Yir. Rose was in a very 
ngly pos1tlon ; nHleed, a 1nan could Rcarcely be 
!n a more i_n vidious position than he was placed 
m. He tned all he could to give little informa­
tion. We knuw what a turn lawyers have for 
that. In t;nnversing wi~h an eminent lawyer the 
other evemng I told hnn that l\1r. Rose did not 
give a straight amnver, and he replied " Lawyers 
never do." There iH, however, eviden'ce tha.t Mr. 
Rose states that the Hoya] Uommission did not 
f(Gt '!'ll the evidence they should hnve obtained. 
I tlnnk I have read all his evidence throuuh and 
that is the conclusion at which I 'have 
arrived. There is no doubt that lYir. Rose 
has erred in such a way thttt it must be 
rem~mbered during his career in Queensland. 
~e rs a new ?omer to ~.).ueensland,. a_nd not being 
l1msed or mrxed up m party pohtrcs he should 
not have allowed any man to overrule him ; he 
should have brought out whatever evidence he 
considered was fairly just. As to l\1r. Milman 
I have no doubt in my mint! that he was the mar: 
who brought about all this trouble, and I cannot 
help thinking that the GoYernment althrm"h 
they will not acknowledge it, must b~ satisfi~d 
now that they made a mistake in appointin" 
him ~m the Commission. He was the last 
man m the colony who should have been 
appointed. The lawyers now tell us that if 
there has been l<ny loss sm;tained by the owner 
of the ship we are not the parties responsible. 
I hold that we are responsible-that the captain 
of the ''Swinger" \vnuld never have seized 
the "Forest King". except for Mr. rvlihnan. The 
officer:;;; of the •' Swinger" went on board and 
examined the papers, and certified that all was 
correct, and left the vessel. 1\Ir. Milman then 
came t<nd told another story, and .Raid thttt the 
ship had done so-and-so. Evidence was then 
t~ken, :>nd, as. stated by the leader of the Oppo­
srtwn,_ rt. Wt<s filtered through an interpreter and 
the miSSIOnary, rvir. !Yiacfarlane. I do not want 
to impute motive, to any man, but I say that 
on account of his action on that occasion 
J\lr. Niihnan should have been the last man to 
be appointed on that Commission. He was 
bound to defend the case as any other man 
placer! in the same position would be and 
make out the b:st case he possibly could. ' I am 
perfectly satrsfied that a correct conclusion has 
been arrived at by the select committee. There 
is one other matter to which I will allude. 
The Premier remarked that the amount of 
money recommended by the committee is absnrd, 
and that the owner has claimed the gross 
amount of takings and then added on expenses. 
It is ViJry evident to my mind that the hon. 
gentleman-who is one nf the best b:1rristers in 
the colony at figures and mathematics-has not 
looked very carefully into the matter, or he 
womld not htwe come to that conclusion. The 
expenses of the voyage have been really paid by 
the owner. 

The PREMIF~R: The voyag-e was not 
finished. 

Mr. KELLETT : The voyage was finished 
when the vessel arrived here. I do not call that a 
part of the voyage when the ve•sel was comino­
up the river flying the Admiralty's flag, but th~ 
cap~ain and _crew had to be paid their wages 
durmg that tnne. All the expenses charged in 
the claim were expenses paid by the owner 
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of the vessel while she was lying in the river. 
All the other expenses of the trip had 
been alreccdy paid, and amounted to £1,500. 
I am satisfied that the Premier would not have 
made that statement if he had looked into the 
figures. I had a hope, but it is getting less every 
day, that when any matter was brought before 
this Assembly, ccnd it was shown that a man 
had suffered an injustice, the members of this 
Assembly would see that injustice remedied. I 
am satisfied that injustire has been done to Mr. 
Hodgson, and that he has sustained great 
loss-greater than the actual money loss, 
because it has upset him so much during 
during the last six months that it is likely 
to bring him to his gTave. Anybody who looks 
at him now must be of that opinion. I had a 
hope that this question would be considered 
fairly, and that no party matters would be 
introduced ; but the question has been con­
sidered by some to be a condemnation of the 
Government. I do not look upon it as a con­
demnation of the Government beyond what 
everybody in the colony must cmi.clemn-the 
appointment of Mr. Milrnan. That has been 
clone, however, and cannot be got over. There 
is no doubt in my mind that J\1r. Hodgson is 
entitled to compensation. 

Mr. ANNEAR said: Mr. Speaker,-! am not 
going to give a silent vote. I believe, with the 
hon. gentleman who has just sat down, that we 
should approach this que,tion without any bias 
whatever; but, after reading the evidence, I 
cannot help thinking that a great deal of bias 
was exhibited when the inquiry was held. I 
find that a great many of the questions were 
evidently concocted, and pnt in a very leading 
manner. I will not go so far as to say that 
the chairman of the committee has any interest 
in the decision arrived at by the committee 
or that he has any interest in the decision to 
which the HolF'e may arrive. I fully believe 
that the hon. member is sincere and considers he 
is doing his duty, no more and no less; but I think 
a mistake was made by Mr. Milman in going 
down to the ship and taking upon himself the 
duties he did take upon himself, and which he 
almost forced the Government to give him to do. 
vVe are told that he had leave of absence. He 
should have gone to New Guinea the same 
as any other gentleman would have clone. 
He should have taken his holiday to himself, 
instead of interfering with the bnsiness of other 
people. It seems to me that Mr. Milman is a 
very officious gentleman. He wanted to make 
himself very prominent in doin~ a duty he was 
not asked to do, and I think the Government 
were to blame when they went so far as to say 
to him-" Report only." I think that the 
Premier should have said to him-" Mind your 
own business. Go and take your holiday trip." 

Mr. MOREHEAD: ''And never comeback." 
Mr. ANNEAR : That is the answer that 

should have been given. Perhaps, after hearing 
the able speeches made by the Premier and the 
leader of the Opposition, a simple wind like mine 
becomes somewhat unhinged as to knowing what 
to do; but I have no doubt that Mr. Hodgson 
has suffered a great injury. I cannot vote for 
the adoption of the report, however, because the 
evidence is very one-sided, bnt I intend to vote 
for the amendment moved by the hon. member 
for Cook, Mr. Lumley Hill. The gentlemen 
who sat on the select committee are well known 
to the Honse and to the country, and I believe 
they went into the question thoroughly unbiased 
and with a determination to do their duty. I 
have seen Mr. Milman once, and I think I should 
know him again if I were to see him. I think 
he is a very officious person, and that he was the 
cause of all this trouble. If it had not been for 

his pleasure trip, and for the weakness of the 
Govern1nent in saying " Report only," this case 
would never have been brought forward. JYir. 
Hodgson was engaged in a legalised trade, his 
vessel was under Government control, but if we 
adopt the report it will be as much as saying that 
the whole of the trade-some of which has been 
carried on in a shameful manner-has been carried 
on in a proper manner, that none of the abuses 
known to exist, and that none of the crimes for 
which men are now suffering, were committed. 
vVe know, however, that abuses have taken 
place, that crimes have been committed, and 
that sentences-not too heavy-have been 
passed on the men who have committed those 
crimes. It would be against law and order and 
against the ruling of the judges, especially the 
Chief ,Justice, a gentleman whose sincerity, 
honour, and integrity no one doubts, who is not 
only a credit to Queensland but to the whole 
of Australia, to adopt this report and thereby 
to reverse his decision. 

Mr. BLACK: Confirm his decision. 
Mr. AN~EAR: I do not think so. I hope 

substantial justice will be done-I do not wish 
to put off the evil day-to a gentleman who has 
suffered at the hand, of JYir. 1Y1ilman, and Mr. 
Milman only, for I firmly believe that had it not 
been for the advice given by Mr. :Milman to 
Captain :Marx, the "Forest King" would not 
have been seized. I have that faith in the 
Government that I believe, should this House 
decide that Mr. Hodgson has snffered a wrong 
and that we should redress it, they will see that 
redress faithful!~· carried out. 

Mr. MOREHEAD said : Mr. Speaker,-I 
think myself that this question-and my mind 
is quite unbiased in the matter-may be resolved 
into a nutshell. 'fhere was a certain decisicm 
arrived at by the Supreme Court with regard to 
this '':Forest King," and after that the matter 
was relegated to a committee of this Hou•e. I 
think it can hardly be said that that com­
mittee had any undue bias in the direction 
which some hon. gentlemen on the other side of 
the House have shown in this matter. I think 
myself that there could not have been selected 
from this side of the House any three members 
whose politics were more uncoloured than the 
three members who were selected-that is to say, 
they could not be called strong partisans. There 
cou.ldnot have been a more colourless tribunal; 
I do not mean colourless in the way of indicating 
that there was not capacity, but that there was a 
want of strong political bias. That, I think, will be 
admitted by everybody, and anyone who has read 
an account of the way in which the evidence 
was taken, will admit that it was taken in a 
perfectly fair manner. A report has been 
brought up lJy this committee, which should re­
ceive acceptance at the hands of this House, 
backed up as it is by the decision of the Supreme 
Court. Now, with regard to the composition of 
the Commission, which is a material matter to he 
considered in discussing this question, I think 
that every member of this House will agree with 
me that the tribunal which was appointed by this 
Hou'e was more competent to decide the matter 
than the tribunal appointed by the Government. 
Now, howewer, we will deal with this Mr. 
Milman. Mr. Milman is very chameleon-like. 
From my knowledge of that gentleman I have 
every reason to believe that when the late 
Government was in power he was very glad to 
serve them ; perhaps he was too eager to serve 
them. He perhaps went beyond his duties as a 
police magistrate. vVhen he found that the late 
Government were put out of power, and that 
there was likely to be trouble with regard to an 
election petition submitted to this House, he 
changed his colour again, and then thought he 
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would !ll[Oke friends with the mammon of 
unrighteousness, which he did, as is shown by 
his action on this Commission. The statement I 
have made can, I think, be borne out by facts. 
I could say more about that gentleman. I could 
point out that he was the first man in this colony, 
I believe, to employ kanakas and not pay them. 
He left them unpaid, and they had to be returned 
to their islands at the expense of the State. 
That is one fact I could record against that 
~entleman. I could also put this on record­
that there is hardly a tradesman in Rockhamp­
ton who does not remember that gentleman very 
well, the record being that he has not paid his 
debts. He therefore was not an exceptionally 
good man to be put on this Commission. He was 
determined to right himself in the eyes of 
the powers that existed, and he did it, I 
believe, by bearing false '"itness. I think the 
report we have before us vindicates that state­
ment on my part as regards :Mr. Milman. Now, 
with regard to !VIr. Bucklancl, the hon. member 
for Bulimba, whom I am sorry not to see in his 
place. ·what were his qualifications to be a judge 
in this matter ? ·what did he know about it? 
He knew he had a very good thing on ; he knew 
he was to get £4150 to act on this Commission. 
A man who gets £430 paid by the Government 
side of the House is not at all likely to bring up 
a report adverse to what the Government ex­
pect. Now, sir, with regard to 11r. Rose. I 
do not know what his peculiar qualifications 
were that he should have been selected to 
Le a member of that Commission. He 
was a man who was utterly ignorant of 
the question which he was appointed to 
inquire into. He certainly is a gentleman who, 
I believe, has been connected with Bulgarian 
outrages, or had to deal with Bulgarian outrages. 
He was sent out there, I believe, by wme 
newspaper, and apparently finding the thing 
paid so well he came out here to discwer 
Polynesian outrages. 'l'hat appears to me to be 
the only logical reason that Mr. Hose was put on 
that Commission. He certainly was a man who 
rose very suddenly ; I do not think any one would 
eYer have known about 11r. Hose unless he had 
written advertisements about himself which 
appeared in the newspapers, and by which he suc­
ceeded in getting put on the Commission. I have 
very friendly feelings towards :\1r. Rose, who. I 
believe, sits in the gallery and makes notes ·on 
us-except yourself, 11r. Speaker, you arc ex· 
empted by your position-and I suppose we have 
a rod in pickle if we make any notes on him. 

Mr. LUMLEY HILL: A rosebud. 

Mr. MOREHEAD : I suppose that is a witty 
remark, but I must say my obtuse mind does not 
grasp the witticism intended by the hon. member 
for Cook, except that I believe he owns a station 
called "Rosebrnok." That is the only possible 
connection I can see between "rosebud" and 
the statement I have made. But, sir, to 
come back to the wbject-matter under dis­
cussion. I do not see, and never have seen, 
why Mr. Rose should have been appointed on 
this Commission, unle,s, indeed, the Government 
were afraid he would be such a literary lJOwer 
that he would scathe them with his literary flail 
if they did not give him something to do~-that 
is to say, he was to be another 450-poundel'. 
\Vhat other reason there was for putting this 
gentleman on the Commission I think this House 
has yet to learn. However, the Commission 
contained one individual, a member of this 
Hotme, who was utterly ignorant on the subject 
he was to deal with; a second member of that 
Commission was a Civil servant who was upon 
his trial, and who was made judge of his 
own conduct, go{)(! or bad ; and the third was 
i.LU untried ::icotch advocate, who had been 

recently admitted to the bar, and who has, I 
believe, some literary pretensions, whether good 
or bad I do not know and I do not care. That 
was the composition of this extraordinary com­
mission, which brought in a most extraordinary 
report. Well, the history of this case is as ex­
traordinary as the constitution of the Commis­
sion, because, when the matter came to be dealt 
with by the highest court in the colony, there was 
an utter failure as regards the report of that Com­
mission. Then when the matter is relegated to a 
committee of this House-certainly an unbiased 
committee, certainly a fair committee, I might 
almost call it an unfairly fair committee so far as 
dealing with the question relegated to them was 
concerned-they bring up a very strong report 
indicating that an enormous injustice has been 
done to an individual, and recommending that he 
should be recouped for the loss he had sustained. 
Now, with rP'"(ard to the amendment of the hon. 
member for Cook, I do not know if it cornmends 
itself to other members of the House, but it 
does not commend itself to me, for, although 
recognising, as it does, the injustice under 
which Mr. Hodgson is suffering, it does not 
go so far '" the recommendation of the 
committeee very properly goes. I know that 
some hon. members may be in favour of thR hon. 
member for Cook's resolution and will probably 
not vote for the recommendation of the com­
mittee, but I would ask them to consider the 
question in all its bearings. Here we have a 
recommendation brought up by a body of men 
whose capability no one would doubt, who 
have goue into an inve~tigation in which they 
had no personal interest, and, after sifting the 
evidence, have come to a certain definite conclu­
sion--namely, that Mr. Hodgson is entitled to 
compensation. Up to that point the amendment 
of the hon. member for Cook goes. But the com­
mittno go farther for a very good and sufficient 
reason, for if you admit their premises or the first 
part of their conclusions you must admit the 
second. Having found that Mr. Hodgson had 
suffered a loss and injustice they go on to assess 
that loss, a work which I think they were most 
competent to perform. I think it would be not 
only casting· a slur on that committee to not 
pass their recommendation, but it would be 
prolonging the settlement of the question. \V e 
should accept the finding of the committee to 
which the matter was referred by this House as 
the verdict of a jury. The committee have 
stated that an injustice has been done, and have 
~ssessed the dmnages, and no good can be done 
by simply affirming the fact that Mr. Hodgson 
has been injured and at the same time depriving 
him of eo m pensation. 

Mr. HAMILTON said: Mr. Speaker, -At 
this late hour of the nig-ht I do not intend to g-o 
into the case in detail, but I do not care to give 
a silent vote on it. But first I must say that 
charges should not be made in this Chamber against 
any gentleman withollt any foundation. I refer 
to the statement made by my colleague, :i\Ir. 
Hill, when he attacked Mr. Milman on a matter 
quite foreign to the case under discussion. I 
allude to his charge that Mr. Milman, when re­
turning officer for Cook when the hem. member 
was rejected, h>td made him suffer by sending 500 
ballot-papers to Herbertnn. ::VIr. Milman did 
that, as was subsequently proved before the 
Election Committee, at the request of the pre­
siding officer there, who understood that he had 
from that centre to supply with ballot-papers the 
numerous polling-places which were in the 
vicinity of Herberton. At any rate, no one but 
a first-class ass could detect any impropriety in 
such conduct, as it is always desirable to have 
a spare supply of ballot-papers at places far 
remcwed from where they are printed, and they 
are useless uuless the signature of the presiding 
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officer is upon them. The hon. member on 
several occasions informed the House that the 
so-called frauds at California Gully caused his 
rejection. That is untrue- and I will now 
so plainly prove this to the Committee that I 
think after this the hon. member will not repeat 
it. The grounds of the petition which the hon. 
member lodged ag-ainst my election were, that at 
two places-· California Gully and Halpin's-there 
were only 3U voters, yet 228 voted for me and 39 
for Mr. Hill. His statement, that there were 
only 3U voters, had no foundation whatever, but 
even admitting it to be true, and wiping- out the 
whole of the Yotes that were given for 
each at those two places- namely, :Mr. 
Hill's 39 and my 228- even after doing 
this Mr. Hill had no chance whatever, as 
the number of votes I had was 83.5 to J\Ir. Hill's 
579. The hon. member must also recollect 
that the committee unanimously agreed that, 
after hearing the whole of his evidence, 
it was not necessary for me to even con­
tradict it, and that, even if it were true, 
it did not affect my return in any way. 
The Premier has stated that the real 'l uestion 
is: \Vas the seizure of the "Forest King'' un­
justifiable, and if so who WC\S to blame? If it was 
unjustifiable, :\Ir. 1\filman was to blame, because 
the action was taken on his report and he 
was the responsible officer of the Government. 
Upon his report the captain forfeited the vessel, 
and, in my opinion, he did not get all the evi­
dence that was obtainable. 'rhere was evidence 
to show that he refused to accept any interpreters 
except his own man, who has subsequently con­
fessed to :Mr. Thompson he did not truthfullv 
interpret what the boys said. :\Ioreover, if ft 
can be shown that every responsible individual 
on board had taken every possible precaution in 
getting these natives, that the provisions of the 
Act were complied with, then the seizure of the 
vessel would not be justified. It is only justi­
able according tc, the Act if it is shown that these 
persons knowingly decoyed the islanders. It 
has since been conclusively shown tlmt every 
precaution was exercised by the Government 
agent, and that even if the boys did not under­
stand their agreen1ent, there was no intention 
on his part to deceiv0 them. \Vhat was the evi­
dence on which the seizure was made? It was the 
eviclence of a blackfellow who has since ad­
mitted, on the testimony of the Government 
agent, that the evidence he gave was not 
true. The Premier attempted to mislead the 
House by stating that the cn,ptain of the 
"Swinger " seized the vesHel on the evidence 
of Mr. ::Ylihr.an corroborated by Mr. Macfarlane 
and others. The evidence the vessel was seized 
on was ::Yir. J\'lilman's statement to the captain 
of the " Swinger," that he waR infonned by 
Mr. Macfarlane that a blackfellow told him 
that some other blackfellows said that they 
did not understand their agreements. It 
appears that ::VIr. :\Iilman sometimes askerl 
,J erry questions and on other occasions asked 
lVIr. 1\facfarlane to put them to ,Terry. :\Jr. 
Macfarlane put them to J erry in the Lifu 
tongue, then J erry put them to the blackfellows 
in the Teste language ; then the blackfellows 
replied tu J erry in the Teste language, who 
replied to Mr. JVI acfarlane in the Lifu tongue, 
and then Mr. Macfarlane interpreted the 
answers to Mr. }filman in English. Only 
two conclusions can be arrived at. .Jerry was 
not a sufficient nmster of English to reply in 
that language to Mr. Macfarlane, and if so, it 
is only natural to suppose that, when he 
replied to Mr. Milman in English, he could not 
correctly gi vc him the proper purport of 
the answers he got from the blackfellows. 
Also, when he received the questions from 1\Ir. 
Milman, he could not be depended on to under-

stnnd the purport of them. If, on the other 
hand, he understood both what Mr. 1\filrnan said 
'md wtts able to reply in :English, then there 
is smnet11ing Rinister in the fact that he gave 
the purport of the mlSwers to }fr. Macfarlane 
for tlutt gentleman to put into English. But 
that is not all; the boy has since admitted 
that his evidence was untrue. The Premier 
al1-.;o points to the I~oyal Cmnn1ission as having 
justified .Mr. ::Vlilman's report with regard to 
this vessel. 'Who was that Royal Commission 
composed of? I think it is '" most indecent 
composition. :Mr. J\Iilman is actually there 
put in a pnoition to report on his own action in 
connection with the "}'nrest King." Mr Buck­
land was, no doubt, put in with a view to his 
receiving the gratuity of £450. On a previous 
occasion that gentleman handed over £600 
to Mr. Griffith-a subocription ,-,hich we re­
collect all about. There is such a thing as 
gratitude, and it is very easy to be grateful at 
the expense of the State. vVith regard to 
1Ir. Jtose, ·he was the only man on that 
Commission who was willing to give fair play. 
He desired to exan1'ine the c;-overnn1ent agent 
and the various white men on that vessel, but 
that desire of his wus overruled by the other 
members of thP Commission. But the evidence 
taken by that Royal Commission has now been 
considerably ,,haken. For instance, one witness 
stated that Charlie was the interpreter when he 
was recruited, and it now turns out that Charlie 
did not join the vessel until some days subse­
quently to that man being recruited. In another 
case a man stated the whole details as to how he 
had been captured and put on board the vessel : 
it has since been proved by overwhelming evi­
dence that he mtme in his own canoe. 1\Ir. 
Thnmpson, a reliable witness, has also upset a 
good deal of the evidence that was given before 
the Royal Commission. But we have alw the 
decision of the Vice-Admiralty Court., which 
occupied about as many days as JYir. 1\filman 
spent honrK in examining the boys, and its deci­
sion should commend itself to any impartial man. 
The more this matter is inquired into the more 
flagrant it will appear, mul I for one shall vote 
for the adovtion of the report. 

Mr. ALAKD said: Mr. Speaker,-Ihave made 
one or two attempts to address the House on 
thi,, question, and now that the opportunity to 
do so has arisen I will not detain h()n, n1e1nben; 
very long. As a member of the select committee 
I 'lhould like to say that I thoroughly endorse 
the report as drawn up by the chairman. The 
committee had anything but a pleasant task 
assigned to it, foe we felt that our report on the 
evidence 1nust be nwre or less conden1natory of 
the Government. However, that consideration 
harl no weight with the committee. \V e were ap­
pointed to do certain work, and I believe we did it 
faithfullY and well. I was astonished at the asser­
tion of the hem. member for Bundanba that the 
chairman of that committee held a brief for Mr. 
Hodgson, and I did not wonder at the indignation 
which that hem. member felt, nor that he was 
h>tlf disposed to throw up his commission. How­
ever, I rtm gl>td to oay of our chairman that he 
stuck to his work manfully, »ml fulfilled his 
duties towards the committee in a way that was 
highly creditable to him. It has been occasicm­
ally said that the evidence we bring up is of an ex 
parte nature. Possibly it is, but so is the report of 
the Royal Commission. But we have the report 
of that Commission to go to; we have our own 
witnes,es, and we have the report of the Vice­
Admiralty Court. And seeing that our report is 
based, and, I maintctin, fairly based, upon a full 
consicleration of those three reports, our report 
cannot by any mem1s be called an ex P'"·te one. 
At this late hour I will not detain the House, for 
we are all anxious to get the matter closed. 
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Before oitting down I will say, to prevent any 
misc<mception similar to that which occurred on 
a previous occasion, that I have agreed to pair 
in the division on this rruestion with ~lr. Mellor. 

Mr. SALKELD said: Mr. Speaker,-I have 
listened with great interest to the speeches that 
have been delivered on this subject, particularly 
those of the hon. member for :Fassifmn, the 
Premier, the member for \Varrego, and the 
leader of the Opposition. I have also previously 
carefully gone through the reports of the Royal 
Commission and of the select committee, and they 
have both struck me as being to a certain extent 
one-sided inquiries. They are not what we under­
stand by a trial in tt court of law. Along with 
other members, I was struck with the number of 
leading questions which appear to have been 
asked by the chairman of thio select committee. 
'With fullest belief in the sincerity of that hon. 
member, I cannot help thinking that his manner 
of conducting the inquiry has minimiserl th8 
value of the committee's report. \Vithout 
unduly detaining the House, I would like to say 
that while the hon. member for Fassifern has 
shown himself extremely sensitive to the loss 
sustained by the petitioner in this case, and 
waxed eloquent in adYocating that justice 
should be done, yet he never had a word to 
spare for those poor ishtnders who were taken on 
board the "I<'orest King," to say the least, 
unfairly, whether through the fault of the 
Government agent or the interpreter he wonld 
not undertake to say. It ought to have occurred 
to the hon. member for Fassifern that those men 
have rig·hts. It was not their property merely, 
but their bodies, their liberty, their lives, 
that were at stake ; and the hon. member 
had not a wmd to say on their behalf. 
I say a man's life and his lwalth are of more 
importance than his pocket. That has been lost 
sight of to-night by the hon. member for Fassi­
fern, who would have appeared to greater 
advantage to my mind and to the minds of the 
mass of the people of the colony if he had 
shown some consideration for the rights of those 
poor islanders, as well as for the rights of the 
petitioner in this case. The second finding of 
the committee is as follows :-

''That there is no evidence to sllmv that the O"\vuer of 
the 'Forest King,' or anyone engagcrl on her during 
the Yoyage when she \Vas seized by the ' Swinger,' wa.,•;; 
gnilh- of, m· aware of, any breach of the lnws and 
regnhLtions affecting the recruiting of islanders 1n 
Polynesia.'' 
'\V e may believe that and yet believe tlmt these 
islanders have been wrongfully recruited. There 
is no evidence to pro' e that the interpTeters did 
not know they were doing wrong even though 
they might be satisfied that the white men on 
the veosel might not be aware of it. The evi­
dence taken by the Hoyal Commission showed 
that these islanders did not unders.tand their 
agreements. The only contention the select 
committee could set np is that if they did not 
understand their agreement' it was not throng h 
any fault of the owner and white men on board 
the "Forest King," but that will not take 
them out of the difficulty as they cannot 
prove it was not the fault of the interpreters. 
If that was the case the same shield that 
would shield the owner and white men on the 
"Forest King" would equally shield :Mr. Milman. 
He had certain information in his possession, :tnd 
he went to verify it, and eo far as he (Mr. 
S11lkeld) could gee it was correct. What did he do 
then? He ;;ave the information to the Imperial 
officer whose duty it wa., to put a stop to kid­
napping. If Mr. Milrnan had done what 'ome 
hon. members say he should have done-minded 
his own business-what would have been the 
result? It reminds me of a notorious crimi­
nal at home who wati hanged for murdering a 

man, and his jmtification was that he 
was interfering with him, and did not 
mind his own business. Suppose :Mr. Milman 
had done what some hon. members said he should 
have done, and minded his own business, even 
though he had that information in his pos8ession 
-had he withheld that information, and had the 
vessel come into port, and the information 
given to Mr. Milman been proved correct­
what would have been said of that gentleman? 
The hon. m8ll1ber for Fassifern would have been 
one of the first to condemn him. All right-minded 
men in this colony and in the civilised world 
would condemn him, and the Government would 
have had no option btit to have dismissed him. 
Hon. members are lo;;ing ~ight of the fact that the 
great question, in considering what is the truth of 
the matter, is the trustworthiness of the interpre­
ters. The greater weight of evidence supports the 
suppositiou thc't those men were brought away 
without understanding what they were coming 
for, or for how long they were coming. The hon. 
member fur l<'assifern said he did not place much 
value on the evidence of kanakas or semi-savages 
when compared with the evidence of white men ; 
but there are white men and white men. 

Mr. MIDGLEY : I did not say that I 
put no confidence in the evidence of black 
men as contrasted with that of white men. 
What I said was, that under no possible 
circumstance" that I could imagine would 
it be right to take the evidence of black 
men or semi-savages to the exclusion of the evi­
dence of white men; and I s'1id that there might 
he cases in which the evidence of a black man might 
be better than the evidence of a white man, but 
that in no case could I accept their evidence to 
the exclusion of the evidence of white men. 
That is just the very opposite of what the hon. 
member has said that I said. 

:Mr. SALKELD : I do not wish to misrepre­
sent the hon. gentleman, but if his words mean 
anything, they mean that he would not take the 
evidence of Ren1i-savage"". 

Mr. MIDGLEY: To the exclusion of the 
evidence of white men. 

:i\Ir. MOREHEAD : The term "semi-savage" 
would apply to the hem. member for Ipswich. 

:Mr. SALKELD : I take no notice of the 
remarks of the hrm. member for Balonne. He 
is sometimes witty and at other times very 
silly and offensive. I understood the hon. 
member for Fassifern to say that he would 
prefer to take the evidence of white men 
if he could get it ; and I say there are white 
men and white men, and we all know that 
the evidence of men who are interested in the 
result of an inquiry cannot be considered as 
valuable as the evidence of persons who are 
not so interested. 

:Mr. MIDGLEY : That applies to black men 
as well as to white men. 

.Mr. SALKELD: Of course it does: but there 
were '11 great many more islanders examined than 
white men. Mr. Hodgson undertook to tell the 
committee that tho'e men understood their 
agreements, and yet he had never been on the 
"]<'orest King" at all. vV e should not want inter­
preters at all if we could ha Ye had a man living 
in town here who could give us all the informa­
tion. The Government agent, owner, captain, 
and boatswain of the "Forest King" were 
examined by the committee; and, if the evi­
dence taken by the Royal Commission was 
accepted, all these men would have been very 
seriously compromised, so that they are certainly 
interested in upsetting the report of the Com­
mission. I shall not Yote for the adoption of the 
committee's report, on the ground I have before 
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stated-that it is a very one-sided inf[uiry-cruite 
as one-sided as the report of the Royal Commis­
sion. That is also one-sided ; but I believe that. 
the balance of evidence is in favour of the report 
of the Royal Commission. 

Question-That the words proposed to be 
omitted stand part of the r1uestion-put. 

The HoLlse divided:-
AYES, l.i. 

Sir T . .:\Iciiwraith, ::\Ie!-lsrs. Xorton, Hamilton, Black, 
Stcvenson, Lissuer, Kellett, Jlidgle.r, Dona.Idson, Kate:s, 
:Pcrguson, Pahncr, Stevet1S, Lumley Hill, and Jiorehcacl. 

X or·:s, 2:3. 
:Jiessrs. Dickson, ltntledgc, :\Iilc".:5, :.Uoreton, Dutton, 

Higson, Sheritlan, l~oxton, Griflith. Fraser, l\:Ic.J.raster, 
Bnlcock, Smyth, I~ailcy, Campbcll, Brookes, Grimcs. 
Bnckland, Jordan, Isambert, Annear, Salkeld, and 
:\iacfarlane. 

Pairs: Mr. Aland for the "Ayes," l\ofr. 
Melior for the " Noes"; Mr. Chubb for the 
"Ayes," Mr. Beattie for the "X oes" ; ::\Ir. 
Macros~an for the "Ayes," J\ir. Foote for the 
"Noes." 

Question resolved in the negative. 
Question- That the words proposed to be 

inserted be so inserted-put. 
The House divided:­

Ans, 16. 
Sir T. )icllwra.ith, :Messrs. J\-m·ton, Ha.milton, Lissner, 

Midgley, Stevenson, Kellett, Black, Kates, Lumley l!ill, 
Donaldson, Jla.lmer, Annear, D1orehead, Stevens, and 
Jo'erguson. 

NoEs, 22. 
1Iessrs. Dickson, Griffith, Rutledgc, ~Ues, J.Ioreton, 

Sherirlan, DnHon, Higson, roxton, nlrJiaster, l~ras{Jl', 
Bulcoek, Campbell, Bailey, Grimes, Jordan, Isumbert, 
Buckland, Brookes, Salkeld, ::uacfarlane, ancl Smyth. 

Pairs: Mr. Aland for the "Ayes," J\Ir. 
}fellor for the "Noes"; Mr. Uhubb for the 
"Ayes," Air. Beattie for the "J'\ oes"; J\Ir. 
J\!Iacro~san for the "Ayes," l\fr. l<'oote for the 
''Noes." 

Question resolved in the negtttive. 

ADJOURNMENT. 
The P .REl\HER said : I move thttt this House 

do now adjourn. 
The Hox. SIR T. MciLWHAITH said: I 

suppose there is no business on the paper but 
the Estimates? 

The Pl't.EMIER: As we are likely to be sit­
ting some days next week, we mav make some 
p;·ogres~ with other business. 

Mr. MOHEHEAD: I do not quite understand 
the Premier's reference to other b1miness. What 
measures do the Government provose to brin~ 
forward? It will be well to know definitely 
what the Premier intends to do. 

The PRJ~:VIIER said: I shall be glacl to dis­
pose of the Justices Bill if there should be time, 
although I do not propose to ask the House to 
sit for that purpose. If we are sitting for other 
purposes we may as well go on with other busi­
ness than the Estimates. 

Mr. BLACK : \Vhat is the position in which 
the "Forest King" is left? The report, I 
assume, is not ::1dopted. I am astonished that 
the Premier should not have had sufficient 
courage to press the real cruestion to a division, 
but I assume that he wishes the matter to be 
shunted for the session. Although the question 
has been well ventilated, I a·"'ume that no 
decision has been arrived at. 

The HoN. SIR T. }!oiL WRAITH said: The 
Pre1nier 1nakes a sugge~ti()n as to how we should 
spend our time next week when the other 

Charn\Jer is deliberating. The Government have 
not kept their promise in providing a day for a 
discussion of the case which has been on to-night, 
for it has been taken on private members' day. 

The PREMIER: That was not our fault. 
The HoN. Sm T. MaiL WRAITH: No; it 

is not the fault of the Government, but it is their 
manipulation. I do not think the case we have 
had before us to-night has been thoroughly 
ventilated, and before any other business is 
brought forward it would be advisable that we 
should have a further discussion upon it. It is 
perfectly evideut that the whole strength of the 
Government has been brought forward to defeat 
this motion, and that if the report had been adopted 
it would have been a censure upon the Government. 
There is no doubt that the Premier has rounded 
up his followers and held a caucus meeting, at 
which it wn.s decided to vote in a bocly. It 
recruiJc.·s the whole of the prestige of the Govern­
ment to defeat their motion. The Premier has 
drawn the attention of the House to a q-reat deal 
of evidence, and I would like to do the same ; 
and if we have a spare night we might as well 
have another discussion upon that case. 

Mr. S'l'EVENSON said: Some time ago when 
the Elections Bill was before the House, I under­
stood that an understanding had been come to 
between the leader of the Opposition about a Bill 
being introduced to provide for the creation of 
some tribunal for the purpose of trying election 
petitions. I should like to ask the Premier 
whether he intends to bring that Bill forward 
this session ? 

The PRKMIEH : No. 
Mr. STEVENSOX : The hon. gentlem>tn 

made that promise, and he should carry it out. 
The PREMIER : I made no such promise. 

Mr. STEVENSON: Anyhow, I should like to 
hear what the hon. gentleman has got to say on 
the Cjuestion. 

Mr. Al'\XEA!t said : 1\Ir. Spettker,-There is 
a Bill that affects this colony greatly, and one in 
which every person is deeply interested, and 
which has been well considered in another place. 
I wish to ask the Premier if the Justices Bill 
will go through next week'? It has passed through 
the upper House and has been carefully scruti­
nised by able men there. I hope the session will 
not close until that Bill is paE,ged. 

Mr. HA::\IILTON said : Mr. Speaker,- I 
must say that the hon. Minister for \Vorks has 
miRtaken his vocation. If he were as good a 
buffoon as he is a bad Minister for ·works, he 
would makr: his fortune. If the Premier did not 
distinctly state that he would deal with the 
matter of the Elections and Qualifications 
Tribunal this session, he conveyed that im­
pression. I have been positively assured that 
the se;1t of one hon. gentleman opposite is to be 
challenged on the same ground as that of the 
late hon. member for Aubigny-that of Mr. 
Bulcock. It is exceedingly childish of the 
Premier to walk out of the House when any 
member asks him a f[Uestion. He sheuld stay 
and ansvver it. 

l\Ir. ALAXD said: Mr. Speaker,- I have 
been in the House for several sessions ; but I 
have never seen, until this session, the leader of 
the Government cross·questioned by every hon. 
member of the Opposition as to the conduct of 
business. They may have a right to do 
so, but it has not been done before. '!'he 
leader of· the Opposition and the leader of the 
Government have always arranged the matter 
between themselves. In reference to the pro­
mise which it has been alleged the Premier made 
concerning a Bill to provide a substitute for the 
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]~lections and Qualifications Committee, I can 
distinctly state that there was no promise given 
on the subjec·.. He promised that the matter 
should receive the future consideration of the 
Government as to what that tribunal should 
be before which disputed elections should be 
tried. 

Mr. MORE HEAD said: Mr. Speaker,-! 
rise to a point of order. I assert that the hon. 
gentleman has stated what is not true. 

Yl:r. ALAND : Is that a proper expression? 
Mr. MOREHEAD : I maintain that the 

Premier did state to this House--
The SPEAKER: I hardly think that is a 

point of order. 
Question put, and the House divided. 

There being no tellers for the "Noes," the 
question was resolved in the affirmative. 

The House adjourned at seventeen minutes 
past 12 o'clock. 
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